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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The dwectors present their annual report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2009

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The company 1s a holding company and through its subsidiary undertakings 1s primarily engaged 1n publishing and
providing information, principally in North Amenica and Europe

The company 15 jomtly owned and controlled by Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV

BUSINESS REVIEW AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS
Results and dividends

Revenue for the year was £6,01 1m (2008 £3,281m), up 14%, including a full year contribution from the
ChowcePoint business acquured (n September 2008 At constant exchange rates revenue was flat compared with
the prior year Underlying revenues, 1 ¢ before acquisitions and disposals, were 7% lower principally reflecting
the impact of the global recesston on our markets, most particularly the sigmificant downturn in advertising and
promotion markets in Reed Exhibitions and Reed Business Information (RBI)

Adjusted operating profit (1 ¢ before amortisation and impairment of acquired mtangible assets and goodwill,
exceptional restructuring and acquisition related costs, and the equity share of taxes 1n joint ventures) was
£1,515m (2008 £1,330m), up 14% including a full year contribution from the ChoicePoint business acquired in
September 2008 At constant exchange rates. adjusted operating profits were flat Underlying adjusted operating
profits, 1 e before acquisitions and disposals, were 10% lower reflecing the operational gearing on underlying
revenue declines of 7% The overall adjusted operating margin was unchanged at 25 2%

Reported operating profit was £744m (2008 £863m). down 14% The decrease principally reflects intangible
asset and goodwill impairment charges relating 10 RBI and increased restructuring and acquisition integration
spend, partly offset by currency translation effects

The amortisation charge in respect of acquired ntangible assets, including the share of amortisation 1n joint
ventures, amounted to £356m (2008 £270m) up £86m as a result of ChoicePoint and other 2008 acquisitions, and
currency translation effects Charges for impairment of acquired intangible assets and goodwill were £177m
(2008 £9m) principally relating to RBI and certain minor exhibitions businesses

Exceptional restructuring costs incurred amounted to £182m (2008 £152m) relating to the major restructuring
programmes announced in February 2008 and 2009 and included severance, outsourcing migration and related
vacant property costs Acqusition related costs amounted to £48m (2008 £27m) principally in respect of the
integration of the ChoicePoint business into LexisNexis

Disposals and other non operating losses of £57m (2008 £93m) comprise restructuring costs in relation to assets
held for sale and related closures, 11 particular RBI US controlled circulation titles, less net gains on disposals of
minor titles and imvestments and fair value increases n the portfolio of venture capital investments

Net finance costs were higher at £649m (2008 £500m, inctuding £17m of acquisition related fees incurred in
connection with ChoicePoint acqgumisition financing) principally reflecting a full year’s financing of the
ChoicePoint acquisition and currency translation effects

The reported profit before tax 1ncluding amortisation and impairment of acquired intangible assets and goodwall,
exceptional restructuring and acquisition related costs, and non operating items, was £38m (2008 £270m)

The effective tax rate on profits before exceptional restructuring and acquisiion related costs, disposals and other
noh operating ttems, amortisation and impairment of intangibie assets and goodwill was 29 436 (2008 27 2%)
The effective tax rate has increased largely due to geographic mix effects The reported tax charge was tower at
£8m (2008 £99m) reflectuing the reduced reported profit before tax, geographic mix effects, tax credits on prior
penod disposals of £28m and the full year deferred tax credit on amortisation of the deferred tax hability
established on acquisition of ChoscePoint in relauion to us intangble assets

Net profit from discontinued operations of £18m n the pnor year comprised the gan on disposat of the remaming
Education Dhvision businesses of £67m less taxes of £49m

The reported attributable profit of £26m compares with £185m 1 2008, reflecting the lower reported profit before
tax partly mitgated by lower tax costs and currency translation effects
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During the year the company paid dividends of mit (2008 £500m) on the * R ordinary shares, mil on the E°
ordinary shares (2008 ml), and preference dividends of £7 500 (2008 £7,500) and subsidiary undentakings paid
dividends of ml (2008 £953m) to Reed Elsevier NV

Cash flows

Cash generated from operations was £1,550m (2008 £1.401m), up 11% compared with the prior year principally
reflecting the increased adjusted operating profits Including net interest payments of £672m (2008 £479m) and
tax paid of £90m (2008 £160m), net cash from operating activities was £788m (2008 £761m) The decrease in
tax paid principally reflects the cash tax benefit of exceptional restructuring spend The increase in net interest
payments principaily reflects a full year’s financing of the ChoicePoint acquisition and currency translation
effects, less the benefit of cash flow and proceeds from share issuance

Caputal expenditure was £241m (2008 £172m), including £163m (2008 £115m) in respect of capitalised
development costs included within internally developed intangible assets  The increase reflects a full year of
ChoicePomnt capital expenditures and increased investment 1n product platforms and related infrastructure, and
currency translation effects  Spend on acquisitions was £94m, including £56m of payments in respect of
ChoicePoint change of control and other non operating habilities assumed on acquisition

In August 2009 the company 1ssued ordinary shares to the existing shareholders for net proceeds of £913m No
ordinary dividends were paid :n the year by the company to shareholders (2008 £500m) and no dividends were
paid by subsidiary undertakings 10 Reed Elsevier NV (2008 £953m)

Debt

Net borrowings at 31 December 2009 were £11,060m (2008 £13,720m), a decrease of £2 660m since 31
December 2008 The decrease principally reflects the August 2009 share 1ssuance, which raised net proceeds of
£913m, net cash flow from operating activities and currency translation effects, partially offset by capital
expenditure and acquisition spend  Currency translation effects decreased net borrowings by £1,288m reflecting
the impact of the weakening of the US dollar, from $1 45 £1 at the beginning of the year to £1 62 £1 at the end, on
the largely US dollar denominated net debt

Net borrowings from shareholders and affiliated undertakings at 31 December 2009 amounted to £8,689m (2008
£10 183m) Other borrowings amounted to £2 906m (2008 £3,781m) and the fair value of related derivative
liabihties was £9m (2008 mil) Cash balances totalled £544m (2008 £244m)

Net pension obligations, 1 € pension obligations less pension assets, at 31 December 2009 were £235m (2008
£369m) The decrease reflects the impact of higher plan asset values, pension benefit curtailments and currency
transtation partially offset by the effects of lower discount rates and an increased inflation assumption tn the UK
scheme

Operating business review

The results of the businesses are reported 1n four segments Elsevier, LexisNexis, Reed Exhibitions and Reed
Business Information

Adjusted figures and constant currency growth rates are used by Reed Elsevier Group plc as additional
performance measures Adjusted operating profit 1s stated before amortisation and imparment of acquired
intangsble assets and goodwill, exceptional restructuring and acquisition related costs, and 1s grossed up to exclude
the equity share of taxes in joint ventures Exceptional restructuring costs principally relate to the major
restructuring programmes announced 1n February 2008 and 2009 Constant custency growth vates are based on
2008 full year average and hedge exchange rates

Elsevier

Elsevier had a relatively robust year In a challenging academic budget environment, the journals business entered
2009 with good subscription renewals from 2008 In Health Sciences, growing online sales in medical reference,
clinical decision support and nursing and health professional education were partly held back by weak pharma
promotion markets Adjusted operating margins improved through significant restructuring and cost actions

Revenues and adjusted operating profits increased by 4% and 9% respectively at constant currencies, both before
and after minor acquisitions Cost growth was hmited to 196 through significant cost savings, including the
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streamhiming of business processes 1n shared services, the continued ramp up of journal and book production
operations in our Chennai facility, the further outsourcing of IT development and back office activities, including
apphication management and financial transaction processing, the consolidation of activities, including technology
operations and real estate, and more effective leveraging of global procurement

The reported operating margin, after amortisation of acquired intangtble assets and excepuional restructuring costs,
was 26 9%, up 2 2 percentage points

Scrence & Technology saw revenue growth of 5% at constant currencies This was driven by good ScienceDirect
subscription rencwals entering the year Online usage of ScienceDirect continued 10 grow close to 20% The
Scopus abstract and indexing database saw strong growth in subscriptions and was expanded through the additton
of new content in the humanities Good growth in e-books and other online transactional sales were offset by
lower print book sales reflectng tighter customer budgets and channel destocking

In Health Sciences, revenues were up 3% at constant currencies Strong performances in medical research, nursing
and health professional education, and 1n clinical decision support were 1o part tempered by continuing weakness
in pharma promotion markets Pharma promotion and other advertising revenues which accounted for
approximately 20% of Health Scrences’ revenues, were down 7%, reflecting fewer blockbuster drug launches and
a reduction in the marketing budgets of pharmaceuticai compantes Excluding pharma promotion and other
advertising, revenues were 5% ahead at constant currencies The growth in medical research reflects growing
online subscriptions to med:cal content In nursing and health professional education. strong growth was achieved
through the increasing demand for healthcare professionals, new publishing and the further development and
inereasing penetratton of online resources Double digit growth was seen in climical decision support with growing
demand for online workflow solutions that combine content with predictive analyuics [n clinical reference strong
growth in MDConsult and other online reference products was offset by lower print book sales

Elsevier has contmnued its long standing commitment to innovation and new product development In scienufic
and medical research, the focus 15 on building out new content and data sets and increasing the functionality of
cross-discipline and disciphine-specific research and discovery tools Instituuonal planning and performance teols
are also being developed to help improve economic outcomes for researchers and academic leaders Additionally
in Health Sciences there 15 particular focus on increasing the range and sophistication of our climical decision
support solutions to make healthcare more efficient and to improve medical outcomes

For 2010, good momentum 1s expected 1n health sciences from the continued growth (n the health professions and
the increasing adoption of online resources, although pharma promotion and other advertising revenues remain
weak Academic budget pressures are expected to continue Overall revenue growth 1s expected to be lower for
the year

LexisNexis

LexisNexis had a challenging year The core law firm business was flat in the US and marginally lower
mternationally reflecting the downturn in the legal industry whilst US directory listings were well behind the prior
year as firms cut back on directory spend Corporate, government and academic markets were lower ChoicePoint
made an excellent contribution 1n its first year, growing its profits strongly and boosting overall revenues and
profits Adjusted operating margins were shightly lower due to the underlying revenue decline largely mitigated by
further restructuring and cost actions and the strong growth in ChoicePoint profitability

Revenues and adjusted operating profits increased by 14% and 13% respectively at constant currencies including a
first full year contribution from the ChoicePoint business acquired in September 2008 Excluding ChoicePoint and
munor acquisitions and disposals, underlying revenues and adjusted operating profits were down 4% and 15%
respectively The overall adjusted operating margin was 0 4 percentage ponts tower at 26 0% reflecting the
underlying revenue decline and increases in spending on new product development, sales and marketing and
operattonal support, largely mitigated by the further restructuring and cost actions, and the increasing profitability
of ChoicePoint

Cost savings include the full year benefit of the consolidation in 2008 of the Corporate and Public Markets
business with US Legal as well as the consolidation of US operations, continued outsourcing of systems
engineering and maintenance, software development engineenng, data fabncation, and other production activities,
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the further consolhidation and streamlining of technology operations and real estate, more effective leveraging of
global procurement, streamlining of the screening business in Risk, and consohdation of activities on the
integration of ChotcePoint

The reperted operating margin, afier amortisation of acquired intangible assets and exceptional restructuring and
acquisition integration costs, was 13 2%. down | 8 percentage points, reflecting intangible asset amortsation of
the ChoicePoint acquisition and acquisition integration costs

The US Legal business saw revenues decline 6% at constant currencies, or 4% before changes in revenue
recognition in Martindale-Hubbell, largely driven by weakness in corporate, government and academic markets
and cutbacks by law firms on directory spend The core law firm business held up well, with revenues flat, despite
the significant impact of the economic downturn on the legal indusiry This reflects the continuing demand for
legal research information services and growth m workflow solutions particularly in htigation services

The Martindale-Hubbell lawver directory listings business saw revenucs down 17% on a like for like basis as law
firms cut back on directory marketing In recogmtion of Martindale-Hubbell's transformation mto a web
marketing services company, all listing revenues in 2009 have been attributed to the online histings and recognised
rateably over the listing period, print directories are no longer provided except as separately ordered by customers
The change in timing of revenue recognition has a enetime adverse effect 1n 2009

Good progress 1s betng made 1n developing the next generation of legal research products, and the advanced back
office infrastructure to support them, to deliver an integrated and supertor customer experience across legal
research, workflow tools, practice solutions and chient development Progressive product mtroductions over the
next few years will combine advanced technology with enniched content and sophisticated analytics and
applications LewxisNexis’ goal 1s to deliver not just better search results, but better outcomes for customers In
addition, sales coverage 1s being expanded and more inturtive user interfaces and expanded htigauon workflow
tools are being added to the current offering This will result 1n a higher ongoing level of capital expenditure and
lower margin through continuing development spend and will over the longer term drive growth and operational
efficiencies

Government, corporate and acadernic markets were 6% lower with customer budgets under pressure and reduced
transactional activity, impacting n particular the news and business information databases

The LexisNexis International business, 1 e the non US businesses saw revenues decline 3% at constant
currencies, or 1% underlying before taking account of the sale n the prior year of the Latin American business
The pressures on the legal services industry internationally mirror those seen in the US particularly in the UK
with the impact mostly on print product sales as customers increasingly rely on the online service With less
penetration of online services in international markets than 1n the US, online revenues have continued to grow
strongly at 9% as firms seek to increase their effectiveness This has targely been offset by the dechine in print
sales

The Risk Solutions business saw revenues almost double at constant currencies including a full year contribution
of the ChoicePoint business acquired in September 2008 Underlying revenues, before ChoicePoint, were 2%
lower reflecting the slowdown 1n transactional activity n the US economy, largely offset by strong growth 1n
government markets

The ChoicePoint business saw revenues up 1% on a proforma basis with adjusted operating profits up 44%,
delivering a first year post tax return of 6 0% on the $4 1 ilhon purchase Strong revenue growth 1n the insurance
segment, up 10%, was driven by high transactional activity in auto and property insurance markets and by
increasing sales of more powerful data and analytics products This strong growth 1n insurance and cost savings
from the integration of ChoicePoint and LexisNexis drive the inereased profitability The 1% proforma revenue
growth 1s after a 13% decline 1n the non-insurance businesses, principally in pre-employment screening, reflecting
the economic downturn Significant cost acuions 1n the screening business limited the profit :mpact of this decline

The business trends seen in US legal and international markets are expected to continug into 2010 reflectung the
continuing pressures on the legal industry and the subscription nature of much of the revenue Good growth

momeritum 1s expected in the wnsurance segment 1n Risk Solutions and screening markets should stabilise as the
US economy recovers The overall adjusted operating margin 1s expected to be lower, reflecting the effects of a

wh
-
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weak revenue environment and ncreases 1n spend on product development. infrastructure and sales and
marketing 1n the Legal business partly mitigated by continuing cost actions and the growing profitability of the
ChoicePoint business

Reed Exlubitions

Reed Exhibstions had a difficult year with customers cutting back on promotional expenditure and the net cyching
out of bienmal exhibiuons The revenue decline, miigated in part by substanual cost savings, has reduced
adjusted operating margins

Revenues and adjusted operating profits were down 21% and 28% respecuvely at constant currencies or 22% and
3 1% before munor portfolio changes Adjusted for bienmial show cyching, underlymng revenues and adyusted
operating profits were 13% and 18% lower respecuively Sigruficant cost savings were made through management
streamlining, operational efficiencies and headcount reductions across the business The operating margin, after
amortisation of acquired intangible assets and exceptional restructuring costs, was 17 1%, down 0 9 percentage
points, before goodwill impairment charges on certain minor shows

Sales of exhibition space and ancillary services were lower across all major geographies There was also a dechine
1n paying delegates at the small number of shows which charge sigmficant fees for participaion Across the
regions, annual show revenues were 14% lower in the US 13% 1n Japan, and 17% in Europe The shows overall
have however been successful with attendances remaining resihent and strong satisfaction expressed by exhibitors
and visitors

Whalst 2010 will see the benefit of the net cycling 1n of biennial shows, bookings going wnto the year remain
cautious with exhibitors committing later than usual and revenues from annual shows are expected to be lower

Reed Business Information

Reed Business Information had a very tough year with advertising markets severely impacted by the economic
recession Print subscription revenues declined less and data services saw good growth Adjusted operating
margins were lower due to the revenue dechine partly mitigated by substantial cost savings

Revenues and adjusted operating profits were 18% and 35% lower respectively at constani currencies, or 18% and
34% before acquisitions and disposals Total underlying costs were 15% lower driven by substantial cost savings
The operating margin, after amortisation of acquired intangible assets and restructuring costs, was negative 2 4%
before impairment charges, down 7 9 percentage points reflecting the revenue dechine and sigmificantly hugher
exceptional restructuring costs

Overall advertising revenues (47% of RBI revenues) were down 29%, with online advertising revenues down 14%
and print advertising revenues down substantially more at 37% Print subscriptton and other revenues declined
10% In contrast, data services revenues (17% of RBI revenues) grew 10%

The controlled circulation magazines and certain other print titles 1n the US, accounting for 47% of US revenues,
are bemg sold, restructured 1n anticipation of sale or closed Varrety and the entertainment group, RCD (Reed
Construction Data), and the BuyerZone lead generation business are being retained These businesses saw
revenues decline 16%

The imperative 15 10 continue restructuring the magazines busness and the adverusing dnven portfohio, 10 align
the cost base with reduced revenue expectations, and to further grow the data services business

Adverusing markets remain difficult and late cycle effects continue to put pressure on subscriptions Data services
continue to grow well 2010 will be another difficult year for RBI with further revenue declines

Future prospects
Business trends seen n the second half of 2009 are continuing in 2010, particularly with regard to late cycle

effects in our relatively resilient professional markets Advertising and promotion and certain other markets, such
as employee screemng, reman difficult while the rate of decline 1s expected to slow as comparatives get easier A
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madest reduction 1n adjusted operating margn is expected due to the weak revenue environment and wncreased
investment 1in legal markets While late cycle effects will continue 1n 2010 and be particularly severe in the first
hali, Reed Elsevier Group plc has high quality assets in atiractive global growth markets and we are confident that
our longer term prospects are encouraging

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of Reed Elsevier Group ple are described in the consolidated financial statements, and are
n accordance with International Finaneial Reporung Standards (IFRS) The most significant accounting policies
n determining the financial condition and results of the group, and those requiring the most subjective or complex
judgement, relate to the valuation of goodwill and intangible assets, share based remuneration, pensions, taxation
and property provisioning Further detail of these policies 15 set out on pages 5510 61

TREASURY POLICIES

Financial instruments are used to finance the Reed Elsevier Group plc’s businesses and to hedge transactions
Reed Elsevier Group plc s businesses do not enter into speculative transactions The main treasury risks faced by
Reed Elsevier Group plc are liquidity risk, interest rate risk, foreign currency nsk and credit risk The board of
Reed Elsevier Group plc agrees overall policy guidelines for managing each of these risks  The policies are
summarised below

Liquidity

Reed Elsevier Group plc maintains a range of borrowing facilities and debt programmes from a variety of sources
to fund its requirements at short notice and at competitive rates The significance of Reed Elsevier Group plc s US
operations means that the majority of debt is denominated 1n US dollars A mixture of short term and long term
debt 1s utilised and Reed Elsevier Group plc maintamns a maturity profile to facihitate refinancing Policy requires
that no more than $1 5 billion of term debt 1ssues should mature 1n any 12-month period In addition, minimum
levels of borrowings with maturities over three and five years are specified, depending on the level of net debt

From time to time, Reed Elsevier Group ple may repurchase outstanding debt in the open market depending on
market conditions and, during 2009, $44m of US term debt maturing in 2097 was bought back opportunistically
following reverse enquiry by investors

At 31 December 2009, the Reed Elsevier Group plc group had access, along with other affiliated companies, to a
$2 5bn commtted bank facility maturing in May 2010, providing back up for commercial paper borrowings and
other short term debt, none of which was drawn, and a $2 Obn committed bank facility, forward starting 1n May
2010 and matunng in May 2012 In January 2010 the $2 5bn commutted facility maturing in May 2010 was
cancelled and the start date of the $2 Obn commuuted facility brought forward to start immediately This back up
facility provides secunty of funding for $2 Obn of short term debt to May 2012

After taking account of commutted bank faciliies and available cash resources at 31 December 2009, no
barrowings (other than from affiliates) mature in the next two years (2008 17%), 14% mature 1n the third year
(2008 30%), 15% n the fourth and fifth vears (2008 9%), 54% 1n the sixth to tenth years (2008 13%), and 17%
beyond the tenth year (2008 11%) The Reed Elsevier Group ple group also has borrowings from 1ts affiliate
Elsevier Finance SA totalling £7,054m (2008 £8,040m) of which 30% mature in the next year (2008 22%), 18%
mature in the second year (2008 17%), 16% mature 1n the third year (2008 18%), 27% mature in the fourth and
fifth years (2008 31%), and 9% mature 1n the sixth to tenth years (2008 12%)

Interest rate exposure management

Reed Elsevier Group plc’s interest rate exposure management policy 1s aimed at reducing the exposure of the
business to changes 1n interest rates Reed Elsevier Group ple uses fixed rate term debt, interest rate swaps,
forward rate agreements and interest rate options (o manage the exposure Interest rate denvatives are used only to
hedge an underlying risk and no net market positions are held

At 31 December 2009, 81% of net borrowings were either fixed rate or had been fixed through the use of interest
rate swaps, forward rate agreements and options
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Foreign currency exposure management

Translation exposures anse on the earnings and net assets of business operations in countries other than those of
Reed Elsevier Group ple These exposures are hedged, to a significant extent, by a policy of denominating
borrowings in currencies where significant translation exposures exist, most notably US dollars

Currency exposures on transactions denominated in a foreign currency are required to be hedged using forward
contracts In additson, recurring transactions and future investment exposures may be hedged, 1n advance of
becoming contractual The precise policy differs according to the speeific circumstances of the individual
businesses Highly predictable future cash flows may be covered for transactions expected 10 occur during the
next 12 months (50 months for Elsevier science and medical subscnption businesses) withun limits defined
according to the penod before the transaction 1s expected to become contractual Cover takes the form of foreign
exchange forward contracts

As at 31 December 2009, the amount of outstanding foreign exchange cover against future transactions was £1 0
bilhen (2008 £1 1 billion)

Credit risk

Reed Elsevier Group plc has a cred:t exposure for the full principal amount of cash and cash equivalents held with
ndividual counterparties In addition, it has a credut risk from the potential non performance by counterparties to
financial instruments, this credit nisk normally being restricted to the amounts of any hedge gain and not the full
principat ameunt being hedged Credit nisks are controlled by monitoring the credit quality of counterparties,
principally icensed commercial banks and investment banks with strong long term credit ratings. and the amounts
outstanding with each of them

Reed Elsevier Group plc has treasury policies in place which do not allow concentrations of risk with individual
counterparties and do not allow significant treasury exposures with counterparties which are rated lower than
single A At 31 December 2009, cash and cash equivalents totalled £544m, of which 95% was held with banks
rated A+ or better by Standard and Poor’s, Moody’s or Filch

Capital management

The capital structure 1s managed 1o support the objective of Reed Elsevier Group ple’s parent companies, Reed
Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV to maximise long-term shareholder value through ready access to debt and
capital markets, cost effective borrowing and flexibility to fund business and acquusition opportunities whilst
maintaining appropriate leverage to optimise the cost of capital

Over the long term Reed Elscvier Group plc targets cash flow conversion (the proportion of adjusted operating
profits converted nto cash) and credit metrics to reflect this aim and that are consistent with a sohd investment
grade credit rating for the Reed Elsevier combined businesses Levels of net debt should not exceed those
consistent with such a rating other than for relatively short periods of time, for instance following an acquisition
The principal metrics utilised are free cash flow (afier interest, tax and dividends) to net debt, net debt to ebitda
(earnings before interest, taxation, depreciation and amortisation) and ebitda to net interest

Reed Elsevier Group plc s use of cash reflects its objectives through selective acquisitions and a dividend policy
which ensures distnbutable reserves are mantained at an appropnately high level to meet the requirements for
dividends by Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV This regular remittance of dividends also creates the
opportumty to exanune regularly the capital structure of each subsidiary and ensure that fiscal efficiency 1s
achteved Reed Elsevier Group plc’s balance sheet was strengthened by the 1ssue of shares to existing
sharcholders in August 2009

The balance of long term debt short term debt and commtied bank facilities 1s managed to provide security of
funding, taking into account the cash generation of the business and the uncertain size and iming of acquisition
spend

There were no changes to Reed Elsevier Group plc’s long term approach to capital management during the year
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DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

Reed Elsevier Group plc has high quality assets in attractive global growth markets We are commuitted to
delivering world class information and tools that enable our customers to make crnitical decisions, enhance
productivity and improve outcomes This 1s combined with a relentless pursuit of process innovation and cost
efficiency Total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2009 was £6,011m Adjusted operating profit for the
year ended 31 December 2009 was £1,515m

Elsevier

Elsevier 1s the world s leadmg provider of scientific and medical information and serves scientists, health
professionals and students worldwide Elsevier provides world class information and tnnovative workflow tools
that enable customers to make critical decisions, enhance productivity and improve outcomes

Total revenues for the year ended 31 December 2009 were £1 923m Elsevier 15 a global business headquartered
in Amsterdam with principal operations 1n Amsterdam, Beying, Boston, Chennai, Dellm London, Madnd,
Munich, Oxford, New York, Paris, Phuladelphia, Rio de Janeiro, St Louts San Diego, Singapore and Tokyo
Elsevier has 6,600 employees

Elsevier has two market facing businesses Science & Technology serving the scientific commurnuty and Health
Sciences serving the health commumnity, both of which are supported by a global shared services organisation
which provides integrated editonal systems and production services, product platforms and distribution, and other
back office functions

Science & Technology 1s the world’s leading global scientific information provider It delivers a wide array of
information and workflow tools that generate valuable insights for researchers in the advancement of scientific
discovery and improve the productivity of research Its customers are scientists and professionals, academic
libraries, corporations and governments, who rely on Elsevier to provide high quality content, to promote, review,
publish, disseminate, and preserve research findings, and to create innovative work flow tools to improve the
efficiency of their endeavour

Science & Technology publishes over 200,000 new research articles each year through some 1,100 journals, many
of which are the foremost publications in their field and a pnmary point of reference for new research The vast
majority of customers receive these journals through the flagship electromc research solution ScienceDirect Ttis
the world’s largest database of scienufic and medical research, with 10 muilhon scientfic journal arucles, accessed
by over 11 million researchers each year Science & Technology also publishes over 900 new book utles annually,
as well as secondary material in the form of supporting bibliographic data, indexes and abstracts, and tertiary
informatton through review and reference works 10,000 e-book titles are 1n ScienceDirect, with over 400 e-books
added each year

Science & lechnology’s other flagship electrontc solutions include Scopus and the recently launched Reaxys and
ScrVal Spothight services Scopus is the largest abstract and citation database of research hiterature 1n the world,
with the abstracts and bibliographic informaton of more than 40 million scientific research articles from 17,000
peer reviewed journals and over 5,000 publishers Scopus also has data on more than 23 million patents Reaxys 1s
a new solution for synthetic chemists based on Elsevier’s prestigious CrossFire Database suite, which integrates
chemical reaction and compound data searching with synthesis planming The Scr¥af suite of research tools
enables individual researchers and institutional leadership to determine and evaluate their research strategies more
effecuively

Health Sciences 15 the world’s leading medical publisher It serves health professionals, including medical
researchers, doctors, nurses, allied health professionals and students, as well as hospitals research institutions,
managed healthcare organisations, pharmaceutical compantes and insurers Through its medical journals, books,
major reference works, databases and online information solutions, Health Sciences provides critical information
and analysis on which its customers rely te base their decisions, to improve medical outcomes and enhance the
efficiency of healthcare

Health Sciences publishes over 700 journals, including on behalf of learned societies, and, in 2009, over 1,700
new book titles and clinical reference works both 1n print and through SceenceDirect and other electronic
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platforms such as MDConsult, which 1s a leading enline chnical information service with more than 2 200
wnstitutional customers and over 12 mullion page views per month Flagship utles include market leading medical
Journals such as The Lancet, and major medical reference works such as Gray’s Anatomy, Nelson's Pediatrics and
Netter's Atlas of Human Anatomy In addition to its local language publishing 1n countries across the world,
Health Sciences leverages its strong brands and international content and solutions into new markets through local
language versioning The business also provides marketing services to the pharmaceutical industry through
advertising and sponsored communications to the specialist communities 1t serves

Heath Sciences 15 a leader in medical education and training resources, particularly 1n the nursing and alhed health
professions From core textbooks to virtual climeal patent care Heath Sciences supports students, teaching
faculties and healthcare orgamsations in education and practice A strong focus 1s on the further development of
inmovative etectronic resources the Evofve portal provides a rich resource to support faculty and students and now
has | 8 million registered users, Health Education Systems Inc provides online review and testing tools for nursing
and allied health staff, the recently launched Pageburst digital content delivery platiorm delivers book content
online with powerful search, mulumedia, and collaboration functions

A fast growing area of the business 1s chimcal decision support, providing online information and analyucs to
deliver patient-specific solutions at the point of care to improve patient outcomes Gold Standard provides critical
information on drug :nteractions to assist effecuve treatment, CPM Resource Center provides a data driven
framework to support nurses 1n undertaking procedures, Nursing Consult provides nursing care guidelines 1n
trauma and disease management, MEDa: uses patient data and analytics to help identify areas for improvement in
chmical practice within hosprtals and lower costs for the payers of healthcare through preventative interventions

Market Opportumties
Growth in the scientific information market 1s driven by increases in R&D spend reflected in the growing nurnber
of researchers worldwide and research output, and the demand for improved research efficiency

In healthcare, market growth 1s supported by favourable demographic trends, with ageing populations requiring
more healthcare and rnisig prosperity in developing economies increasing expectations of better healthcare
provision The healthcare professions are growing and information intensity 1s increasing as payers and providers
of healthcare look to improve medical outcomes and cost efficiency

Strategic Priorities

Elsevier s strategic goal 1s to make valued contributions to the communities 1t serves by providing actionable data
through information and tools that advance scientific discovery and improve medical outcomes To achieve this,
Elsevier 1s focused on building world class content, developing workflow tools that link analyse and illuminate
content and data to help customers to make and execute critical decisions and improve their productivity,
enhancing customer service and engagement to better fulfil the needs of the scientific and health communities,
expanding penetration of high growth markets, and improving orgamisationat efficiency

In Science & Technology, the pnorities are 1o continue to enhance the quality of journal and book content and
expand data sets whilst adding greater functionality and utility to SerenceDirect and other database services New
workflow tools are being introduced to assist researcher productivity together with new performance and planning
tools to improve research efficiency and economic outcomes

In Health Sciences, priorities are sumnilar, part:cularly with regard to medical research Additionally, Elsevier 1s
building out clinical decision support services to meet the demand for tools to help deliver better medical
outcomes and lower costs for payers, physicians and hospitals Elsevier is also focused on increasing its
penetration 1n emerging markets threugh expansion of local pubhshing and versioning of content and digital
services

Distribution Channels and Competition

Elsevier’s science journals are generally sold 1o libranies on a paid subscription basis Medical and healthcare
Journals are generally sold to hbraries on a paid subscription basis or sold to individual practitioners and medical
society members Electronic products, such as Science Direct, are generally sold directly to institutional iibranes,
hospitals, corporations and end users through a dedicated sales force that has offices around the world
Subscription agents facilitate the admimistrative process for print journals Books are sold through traditional and
online book stores, wholesalers and, particularly in medical and healthcare markets, directly to end users
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Competition within the science and medical publishing fields 1s generally on a title by titte and product by product
basis Competing journals bocks and databases are typically published by learned societies and other professional
publishers

LexisNexis

LexisNexis 1s a world leading provider of authoruative content and information solutions for the legal and risk
markets Serving customers in more than 100 countries, LexisNexis provides resources and services that inform
decisions and increase productivity of professionals in the legal, nsk management, corporate, government, law
enforcement accounting and academic markets

Total revenues for the year ended 31 December 2009 were £2,557m LexisNexis 1s a global busmess
headquartered 1n New York with 1ts principal operations in Georgta, Ohto, New Jersey and New York in the US,
and in the UK, France Canada. South Africa and Asia Pacific LexisNexis has 15,200 employees worldwide

LexisNews has three market facing businesses US Legal, serving the US legal, government, corporate and
academic markets, LexisNexis Europe, Middle East and Africa and LexisNexis Asia (together reported as
LexisNexis International) serving the legal and business communities ¢lsewhere in the world, and Risk Solutions,
serving the US risk management market, helping businesses and professionals to verify sdenuity, assess risk and
prevent fraud, and supporting law enforcement and homeland secunty These are supported by shared services
orgamsations providing platform development and distnibution services and back office functions

The US Legal business of LexisNexis 1s a leading provider of legal and business information and analysis 1o law
firms, corporations and government throughout the US Pnncipally delivered through electronic services and
innovative workflow tools developed through close collaberation with customers, solutions from LexisNexis help
US legal and business professionals make better informed decisions 1n the practice of law and in managing their
businesses

The LexisNexus flagship product for legal research 1s Lexis com, which provides federal and state statutes and case
law, together with analysis and expent commentaries from sources such as Matthew Bender and Michie and the
leading citation service Shepard s, which advises on the continuing relevance of case law precedents Through 1ts
suite of htigation services, LexasNexs additionally provides lawyers with tools for electronic discovery, evidence
management, case analysis, court docket tracking, e-filing, expert witness 1dentification and legal document
preparation LexisNexis US Legal also partners with law schools to provide free services to law school students as
part of their trasning In the business of law, LexisNexis provides law firms with practice management solutions,
including time and billing systems, case management, cost recovery and decument management services
LexisNexis assists law firms 1n their chent development through Martindale-Hubbell at Martindale com,
showcasing the qualifications and credentials of more than one million lawyers and law firms 1n the US and
internationally, and the Martindale-Hubbell Connected professional network, the largest online commumity
specifically for legal professionals Additionally LexisNexts provides law firms with website development, search
engime optimisation and other web marketing services, including lead generation through Lawyers com, business
intethgence and customer relationship management tools

LexisNexis also provides its legal and information services to US government, corporate and academic customers,
mncluding news and business information and public records [n addition to research and litigation services,
capabitities for these customers nclude specialist products for corporate counsel focused on regulatory
compliance, intellectual property management, and management of external counsel

Lexis com provides customers with access to 20 billion searchable documents from more than 45,000 legal, news
and business sources

Outside the United States, LexisNexis International serves legal, corporate, government and academic markets in
Europe, Canada, Africa and Asia Pacific with local and international legal, tax, regulatory and business
information The most significant businesses are 1n the UK and France LexisNexis UK’s extensive portfolio of
publications includes Halsbury's Laws of England, Stmon's Taxes and Butterworths Company Law Service
delivered through fexisnexis co uk and 1n print Its other flagship electromc preducts include Lexrs Legal
Intelfigence, an authoritative resource on legal pracuice for lawyers, and media monitonng and reputation
management tools for the corporate market such as the NexisDirect research tool and LexisNexis Bridger Insight
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for effective nsk momtoring and compliance LexisNexis in France 15 a provider of information to lawyers,
notaries and courts with JurisClasseur and La Semaine Juridique bemng the principal publications delivered
through lexisnexis frr and 1n print Penetration of online informauon services 1s growing rapidly, now accounting
for aver 50% of LexisNexis International revenues, and workflow tools are being developed and wntroduced
behind this

LexisNexis Risk Solutions assists customers in managing risk through 1dentity venfication, nsk evaluation, fraud
detection and prevention, debt collection and employment-related screening

The Insurance Solutions group provides data, analytics, software and business information services to property
and casualty (P&C) personal and commercial insurance carriers in the US to improve cnitical aspects of the
msurance carrier’s business, from customer acquisition and underwriting to policy servicing, claims handling and
performance management Information solutions, including the US’s most comprehensive personal loss history
database C L U £, help insurers assess nisks in the underwniting process Lo ensure that their customers receive
appropriate policy pricing In Octlober 2009, LexisNexis launched an msurance exchange directed at improving
the efficiency and transparency of the independent agent-based distribution system with enhanced access to key
market information and analytics

e Screening Solutions group focuses on employment-related, resident and volunteer screening, and Recetvables
Management Solutions help more than 100,000 debt recovery professionals 1n the management and collection of
consumer and business debt

The Financial Services group helps financial institutions with risk management, 1dentity verification, business
credentialling, and regulatory comphance LexisNexis Advanced Government Solutions {(AGS) provides 1dentity,
authenticauion and location solutions to help solve cases and locate people, assets and businesses In addition,
AGS solutions help mitigate nsks through identify fraud, waste and abuse 1n government programmes LexisNexis
Accurmts the flagship public records product, powered by the High Performance Cluster Computing (HPCC)
technology

Market Opportunities

Longer term growth 1n legal and regulatory markets worldwide 1s driven by an increasing level of legislation.
regulation, regulatory complexity and hitigation, and an increasing number of lawyers Additional market
opportunities are presented by the increasing demand for online information solutions and tools that improve the
productivity of research and business performance In risk management markets, growth 1s driven by systemic
growth in insurance transactions, healthcare and insurance fraud, regulatory compliance requirements surrounding
custorner enrolment, and security considerations

Strategic Prionities

LexisNexis sirategic goal 1s to be the leading provider of productivity enhancing information and information-
based workflow sclutions in 1ts markets To achueve this, LexisNexis 1s focused on building world class content,
developing next generation product platforms, toels and infrastructure to deliver best-in-class research outcomes
for legal and business professionals with greater speed and efficiency, building chent development and practice
management tools enabling customers to be more successful 1n their markets, expanding the range of nisk
management products, leveraging the powerful HPCC technology in delivering better outcomes, international
expansion of online products and solutions and increasing LexisNexIs® presence in emerging markets, and
improving organisational efficiency

In US Legal focus 1s on the continuing development of the next generation of legal research and practice solutions
and a major upgrade n back office infrastructure and customer service and support platforms to provide an
integrated and superior customer experience across US legal research, htigation services, practice management
and chent development products Progressive product introductions over the next few vears will combine
advanced technology with enriched content and sophisticated analytics and applications to enable LexisNexis
customers to make beter legal decisions and drive better outcomes for their organisations and clients A further
preortty 1s to complete the transformation of the chent development business from a legal directory business into a
web marketing services company

In LexisNexis International the focus 1s on increasing the penetration of online services and developing further
high quahity actionable content and workflow tools
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In Risk Solutions the prionty 1s the further integration of the ChoicePoint businesses acquired tn September 2008
conunued development of the insurance product pipeline and 1n techrology and content. and growth in market
expansion including internationally

Distnibution Channels and Competition

LexisNexis US Legal and International products are generally sold directly to law firms and to corperate
government and academic customers on a paid subscription basis Risk Solutions products are predominantly sold
on a transactional basts directly to insurance cammers, and other corporations and to government

Principal competitors for LexisNexis in US legal markets are West (Thomson Reuters) and Bloomberg, and
Factiva (News Corporation) 1n news and business information Major international competitors include Thomson
Reuters, Wolters Kluwer and Factiva Risk Solutions competitors include Verisk 1n the insurance market and
Themson Reuters and First Data Corporation in public records

Reed Exhibitions

Reed Exhibitions 1s the world’s leading events business, with over 450 events 1n 36 countries 1n the Americas,
Europe, the Middle East and Asia Pacific The portfoiio of exhibitions and conferences serves 44 industry sectors
[n 2009 Reed Exhibitions brought together over six million event participants from around the world, generating
billions of dellars in business for its customers

Total revenues for the year ended 31 December 2009 were £638m Reed Exhtbitions 1s a global business
headquartered in London, with principal offices in London, Paris, Norwalk Connecticut. Abu Dhabt, Beijing,
Tokyo, Sydney and Séo Paolo Reed Exhibitions has 2,500 employees worldwide

Reed Exhibitions organises market-leading events that are relevant to industry needs. where participants from
around the world come together to do busimess, network and learn Its exhibitions and conferences encompass a
wide range of sectors, including broadcasting, TV, music & entertainment, bullding & construction, electronics &
electrical engineering, energy, o1l & gas, engineertng, manufacturing & processing, gifts, intenor design, IT &
telecoms, jewellery, life sciences & pharmaceuticals, marketing, property & real estate, sports & recreation,

travel

Well represented in the developed world, increasingly Reed Exhibittons 1s investing in the developing economies
of China, Brazil, the United Arab Ermurates and Russia

Market Opportunities

Growth 1n the exhibitions market 1s correlated to business to business marketing spend, historically driven by
levels of corporate profitabihity, which itself has followed overall growth in GDP, and business investment
Emerging markets and growth industnes provide additional opportunities  As some events are held other than
annually, growth 1n any one year 1s affected by the cycle of non-annual exhibitions

Strategic Priorities

Reed Exhibinons strategic goal 1s to provide market leading events in growth sectors that enable businesses to
target and reach new customers quickly and cost effectively and to provide a platform for industry participants to
do business, network and leamn

In the shorter term the prionty 1s maintaiming high quality events whilst aggressively managing the cost base
during the economic downturn For the longer term, Reed Exhibntions” priorities are focused on developing the
portfolio through a combination of new launches, strategic partnerships and acquisitions in emerging markets and
high growth sectors, and developing websites and online tools to enhance the exhibition experience and add to
customer return on investment in event participation

hstribution Channels and Competition

The substantial majonity of Reed Exhibitions revenues are from sales of exhibition space These, together with
ancillary services, sponsorship fees and paid delegate participation are sold directly or through local agents where
applicable
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Reed Exhibitions 1s the market leader in a fragmented industry holding less than a 10% global market share
Other international exhibition organisers include UBM, DMG World Media (DMGT), Nielsen Business Media,
Informa 1IR and Messe Frankfurt Competition also comes from industry trade associations and convention centre
and exhibition hail owners

Reed Business Information

Reed Business Information (RBI) provides data services, information and marketing solutions to business
professionals in the US, the UK, Continental Europe and Austraila It produces industry critical data services and
lead generation tools and over 200 online commumty and job sites It publishes over 200 premier business
magazines with market leading positions 1n many sectors

Total revenues for the year ended 31 December 2009 were £891m RB! 15 a global bustness headquartered in
London, with principal eperations in London and Sutton in the UK, Amsterdam and Doetinchem 1n the
Netherlands New York, Los Angeles and Norcross, Georgia in the US as well as Paris, Milan, Bilbao and
Sydney RBI has 6,900 employees worldwide

Onine, RBI s market-leading products include /C/S, a global information and pricing service for the
petrochemucals seclor, Bankers Almanac, a leading provider of reference data on the banking industry, Reed
Construction Data, a provider of online construction data to the North American construcuon mndustry,
totaljobs com, a major UK online recrurtment site, and Hotfrog. a global onhne business directory Prermer
publishing brands include Yariery in the US New Scrennist in the UK and Lfsevier 1n the Netherlands

Business-to-business magazines, online lead generation services and community websites provide an effective
marketing channel for advertisers to reach target audiences and industry professionals to access valued
information RBI's leading online data services enable users to enhance productivity through quicker and easier
access to insightful and comprehensive 1ndustry information

Market Opportunities

Business-to-business marketing spend has historically been driven by levels of corporate profitability, which itself
has followed GDP growth, and business investment Addiionally growing need for authontative industry data
and information 1s driving demand for online subscription data services and providing new opportunities

Strategic Priorities

RBI s strategic goal 15 to be the first choice of business professionals for information and decision support 1n its
individual markets, and for business marketing services Its areas of strategic focus are developing the data
services businesses, restructuring the business magazines and advertising dnven portfoho, to develop enline
services in key markets and support print franchises through brand extensions and redesign, and to realign the cost
base to reduced revenue expectations and drive further orgamisational effectiveness Animmediate priority 1s to
complete the divestiture of the US controlled circulation titles

Distribrution Channels and Competition

In 2009. 47% of RBI's revenue came from print and onhne advertising and lead generation, 1 7% from data
services and 36% from other subscription and user services Data services are typically sold directly on a
subscription or transactional basis Business magazines are distributed on a paid or controlled circulation basis
Adverusing and lead generation revenues are sold directly or through agents

RBI's titles compete with a number of publishers on a utle by utle basis, including UBM, McGraw Hill and
Penton 1n the US, Eden and UBM n the UK, and Wolters Kluwer in the Netherlands RBI competes for online
advertising with other business-to-business websites as well as Monster, Google and other search engines
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KEY PERFORMANCE MEASURES

Reed Elsevier Group ple uses a range of performance indicators to help measure 1ts development aganst strategy
and financial objectives These indicators include the following

Key Performance measure

Review of 2009 performance

Underlying revenue growth
Growth in revenue excluding acquisitions and disposals
at constant currency™

Underlying revenue declined reflecting the impact of
the global recession on our markets, particularly n
advertising and promotion activities

Onhne revenue
Online revenue™ expressed as a percentage of total
revenue

Good growth 1n online services and a full year
contribution of the ChoicePoint business

Underlying adjusted operating profit growth
Growth 1n adjusted operating profit* excluding
acquisitions and disposals at constant currency

Underlymg adjusted operating profit declined
reflecting the operational gearing of lower underlying
revenue, mitigated by cost actions

Adjusted eperating margin
Adjusted operating profit expressed as a percentage of
revenue

Adjusted operating margin was unchanged An
underlying margin decline was offset by the strong
growth 1in adjusted operating margin 1n the acquired
ChoicePormnt business

In addition to the Reed Elsevier Group plc key performance measures reported above, the measures below

illustrate performance within individual businesses

ScienceDirect usage

Full text article downloads increased close to 20%

Health Sciences online revenue
Health Sciences online revenue expressed as a
percentage of total Health Science revenue

Strong growth in online services

LexisNexis International online revenue
LexisNexs International online revenue expressed as a
percentage of total LexisNexis International revenue

Good growth 1n enhine services and their imcreasing
adoption in international markets

Notes

(a) constant currency growth 1s calculated using the prior year average and hedge exchange rates

(b) online revenue represents revenue attributable to electronic products and services

(c) adjusted operating profit 1s defined as reporied operating profit before amortisation and mmpairment of acquired intangible assets and
goodwill, exceptional restructuring and acquisttion related costs and share of taxation of joint ventures
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PRINCIPAL RISKS

The principal nsks tacing Reed Elsevier Group plc anise from the highly competitive and rapidly changimg nature
of our markets the increasingly technological nature of our products and services, the intemational nature of our
operations, legislative, fiscal and regulatory developments, and economic conditions 1n our markets Certain
businesses could also be affected by the impact on publicly funded and other customers of changes in funding and
by cychcal pressures on advertising and promotional spending or through the availability of alternative free
sources of information

Reed Elsevier Group plc has estabhished risk management practices that are embedded into the operations of the
businesses based on the framework 1n nternal control 1ssued by the Commuttee of Sponsoring Orgamsations of

the Treadway Commuission (COSO}, and are reviewed by the Audit Commttees and Boards Emportant specific

risks that have been 1denufied and are being addressed include

>> Demand for our preducts and services may be impacted by factors beyond our control such as the economic
environment 1n the Unuted States and other major economtes Macroeconomig, poiitical and market conditions
may adversely affect the availability of short and long term funding, volatility of interest rates currency exchange
rates and inflation

>> Reed Elsevier Group plc s businesses are dependent on the contimued acceptance by our customers of our
products and services and the value placed on them We cannot predict whether there will be changes in the future
which will affect the acceptability of our products, services and prices to our customers

>> Qur businesses operate in highly competitive markets These markets continue to change in response to
technological innovations, changing legislation, regulatory changes, the entrance of new competitors and other
factors We cannot predict with certainty the changes that may occur and the effect of those changes on the
competitiveness of our businesses We continue to invest significant resources to further adapt to the changing
market and competitive environment There 15 no assurance that this investment will produce satisfactory long
term returns

>> Reed Elsevier Group plc s businesses are increasingly dependent on electronic platforms and networks
pnimarily the internet, for delivery of products and services Although plans and procedures are in place to reduce
such risks, our businesses could be adversely affected (f their electrenic delwvery platforms and networks
experience a significant failure, interruption, or secunity breach

>> Our products and services are largely comprised of intellectual property content delivered through a varniety of
media We rely on trademark, copynght, patent and other intellectual property iaws to establish and protect our
proprietary rights in these products and services However there 1s a risk that our propnetary rights could be
challenged, hmited, invalidated or circumvented

>> A number of our businesses rely extensively upon content and data from external sources to maintain our
databases Data 15 obtaned {from public records, governmental authonities, customers and other information
companies, including competitors The disruption or loss of data sources in the future, because of changes 1n the
law or because data suppliers decide not to supply them could adversely affect cur business if we were unable to
arrange for substitute sources 1in a imely manner or at all

>> The scientific, techmeal and medical (STM) primary publications of Elsevier, hike those of most of our
competitors, are pubhished on a paid subscription basis There has been debate in the government academic and
library communities, which are the principal customers for our STM publications, regarding whether such
publications should be funded instead through fees charged to authors and from governmental and other subsidies
or made freely available after a period following publicauon 1f these methods of STM pubhishing are widely
adopted or mandated, it could adversely affect our revenue from paid subscription pubhcations

>> New organisational and operational structures are being developed with increased focus on outsourcing and
offshoring funcucns The failure of third parties to whom we have outsourced activities could adversely affect our
business performance, reputation and financial condition
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>> We operate a number of pension schemes around the world, the largest schemes being of the defined benefit
type in the UK, the US and the Netherlands The assets and obligations associated with defined benefit pension

schemes are particularly sensitive 10 changes in the market values of assets and the market related assumptions

used to value scheme haihities

>> Qur businesses operate 1 over 200 locations worldwtde and our earnings are subject to laxation in many
cdhffering jurisdictions and at diffening rates We seek to orgamize our affairs in a tax efficient manner, taking
account of the junisdictions 1 which we operate However, tax laws that apply to Reed Elsevier Group plc
businesses may be amended by the relevant authorities Such amendments, or their applicauon to Reed Elsevier
Group plc businesses, could adversely affect our reported results

>> We often acquire and dispose of businesses to reshape and strengthen our portfolio and engage in restructuring
activities If we are unable to generate the antictpated benefits such as revenue growth, synergies and/or cost
savings associated with these acquisitions and restructuring activities this could adversely atfect our reputation
and financal condition

>> If the ratings of our long term debt are downgraded in the future, our borrowing costs and access to capital
may be adversely affected A rating 1s based upon information furmished by us or obtained by the relevant rating
agency from its own sources and 15 subject to revision, suspension or withdrawal by the rating agency at any time
Rating agencies may review the assigned ratings due to developments that are beyond our control

The Reed Elsevier Group plc consohdated financral statements are expressed in pounds sterling and are, therefore,
subject to movements in exchange rates on the translation of the financial information of businesses whose
operational currenctes are other than sterling The United States 1s our most important market and, accordingly,
significant fluctuations in the US dollar exchange rate could sigmficantly affect our reported results

We recognise that Reed Elsevier Group ple and 1ts businesses have a direct impact on the environment, principally
through the use of energy and water and waste generation and in our supply chain through paper use and print and
production technologies We are comnutted to reducing these impacts, whenever possible by limiting resource
use and by efficiently employing sustainable materials and technologies We require our suppliers and contractors
to meet the same objectives We seek to ensure that Reed Elsevier Group plc’s businesses are compliant with all
relevant environmental tegislation and, accordingly, whilst environmental 1ssues are important, we do not consider
that they constitute a significant nisk tor Reed Elsevier Group ple

DIRECTORS

At 31 December 2009 the Reed Elsevier Group plc board consisted of three executive directors Enk Engstrom —
Chief Execuuve Officer Mark Armour — Chief Financial Officer and Andrew Prozes and seven independent non-
executive directors Anthony Habgood (Chairman), Mark Elliott, Lisa Hook, Robert Polet, David Reid (senior
independent non-executive director), Lord Sharman, and Ben van der Veer

Jan Hommen stepped down as Chairman and a member of the Board in April 2009 Anthony Habgood joined the
Board as Chairman n June 2009 Sir Crispin Davis retired as Chief Executive Officer in March 2009 and lan
Smith, who had joined the Board 1in January 2009, was appointed Chief Executive Officer in his place Enk
Engstrom who has been a director since 2004, was appointed Chief Executive Officer in November 2009,

following the resignation of lan Smith Ben van der Veer was appointed a non-executive direclor 1 September
2009
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Board attendance

Members Date of appointment {cessation)  Number  Number
duning year of of

meetings  meetings
held attended
whilst a
director

Mark Armour 10 10

Sir Crispin Davis {March 2009) 1 1

Mark Elliot 10 10

Ertk Engstrom 10 9

Anthony Habgood June 2009 5 5

Jan Hommen (April 2009) 5 3

Lisa Hook i0 10

Robert Polet 10 10

Andrew Prozes 10 10

Dawvid Reid 10 9

Lord Sharman 10 10

fan Smith January 2009 (November 2009) 9 8

Ben van der Veer September 2009 3 3

At the 2010 Annual General Meeting, Mark Armour, Erk Engstrom, Anthony Habgood, Robert Polet and Ben
van der Veer will retire and, being ehgible, will offer themselves for re-election

On appointment and as required, directors receive training appropriate to their level of previous experience This
includes the provision of a tailored induction programme so as to provide newly appointed directors with
nformation about the Reed Elsevier Group plc businesses and other retevant information (o assist them i
performing their duties Non-executive directors are encouraged to visit the Reed Elsevier Group plc businesses to
meel management and senior staff

All directors have full and timely access to the information required to discharge their responsibifities fully and
efficiently They have aceess to the services of the company secretary, other members of Reed Elsevier Group
ple’s management and staff and its external advisors Directors may take independent professional advice (n the
furtherance of their duties, at the company's expense

In addition to scheduled board and board commuttee meetings held during the vear, directors attend many other
meetings and site visits Where a director 15 unable to attend a board or board committee meeting, he or she s
provided with all relevant papers and information relating to that meeting and 1s able to discuss 1ssues arising with
the chairman and other board members

Directors’ indemnity

In accordance with the company’s Arucles of Association, the Company has granted directors an indemnty, to the
extent permutied by law, in respect of liabihities incurred as a result of their office The Company also purchased
and maintained throughout the year Directors and Officers’ liability insurance in respect of itself and its directors

Board Committees

In accordance with the principles of goad corporate governance, the following commutiees, all of which have
written terms of reference have been established by the Board

18



DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Audit Commuttee

Reed Elsevier Group plc has established an Audit Commuttee The Commuttee comprises only non-executive
directors, all of whom are independent The Commuittee 15 chaired by Lord Sharman, the other members being
Lisa Hook, David Reid and Ben van der Veer (from 3 September 2009)

The main role and responsibilities of the Commuttee are set out in written terms of reference and 1nclude

(1) to monitor the integnty of the financial statements of the company, and any formal announcements relating to
the company’s financial performance reviewing significant financial reporting judgements contained mn them,

(1) to review the company’s iternal financial controls and the company’'s internal control and rsk management
systems,

(1) to monttor and review the effectiveness ot the company s internal audit function,

(1v) to make recommendatons to the board, for it to put to the shareholders for thetr approval 1n general meetings,
1 relation to the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external auditor and to approve the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor,

(v) to review and monitor the external auditors™ independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit
process, taking into consideration relevant professtonal and regulatory requirements, and

{v1) to develop and recommend pohey on the engagement of the external auditor 1o supply non audit services,
taking 1nto account relevant ethical gumidance regarding the provision of non audit services by the external audn
firm, and to monitor comphance

The Committee reports to the board on 1ts activities identifying any matters in respect of which 1t considers that
action or improvement 1s needed and making recommendations as to the steps to be taken

The Commuutee has exphicit authority to 1nvestigate any matters within its terms of reference and has access to all
resources and information that it may require for this purpose The Commuittee 1s entitled to obtain legal and other
independent professional advice and has the authonty to approve all fees payable to such advisers

The Chief Financial Officer, Group Financial Controller, Chief Risk Officer and Director of Internal Audit, and
sensor representatives of the external auditors attend meetings of the Audit Committee

Lord Sharman, Lisa Hook and David Reid attended all five meetings of the Commuttee in 2009 and Ben van der
Veer attended the one meeting of the Commuttec since his appointment

Remuneration Committee

Reed Elsevier Group plc has established a Remuneration Commuttee, which 1s responsible for recommending to
the Board the remuneration for the executive directors of the company The Commuttee, which during the year
compnsed only independent non-executive directors, 1s chatred by Mark Elliot The other members of the
Committee are Robert Polet, David Reid (from February 2009) and Anthony Habgood (from January 2010) Jan
Hommen was a member of the Committee until his resignation from the Board in April 2009

Mark Eliot and Robert Polet attended all four meetings of the Committee 1n 2009 and David Reid attended all
three meetings held since his appoiniment to the Commuttee Jan Hommen did not attend the one meeting held
prior to his resignation from the Board

The Company Secretary, Stephen Cowden, aiso attends the meetings 1n his capacity as secretary to the
Commuittee At the invitation of the Commuttee Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer attends the meetings of the
Commuitee except when his own remuneration 1s under consideration

A Durectors” Remuneration Report, which has been approved by the board of Reed Elsevier Group ple, appears on
pages 23 to 47
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Internal Control

Reed Elsevier Group plc has an established framework of procedures and internal controls, with which the
management of each business ts required to comply Group businesses are required to maintain systems of internal
control which are appropriate to the nature and scale of their activities and address all significant operational and
financial nsks that they face The Board has adopted a schedule of matters that are required to be brought to 1t for
decision

Reed Elsevier Group ple has a Code of Ethics and Business Conduct that provides a gwide for achieving its
business goals and requires ofticers and employees 1o behave 1n an open, honest ethical and principled manner
The Code also outhines confidential procedures enabling employees to report any concerns about compliance, or
about the group’s financial reporting practice The Code 1s published on the Reed Elsevier website,

www reedelsevier com

Each division has identified and evaluated 1ts major risks, the controls in place to manage those risks and the
levels of residual nisk accepted Risk management and control procedures are embedded into the operations of the
business and include the monitoring of progress in areas for improvement that come to management and board
attention The major nisks identified include business continuity, protection of IT systems and data, challenges to
tellectual property rights, management of strategic and operational change, evaluation and integration of
acquisitions, and recruitment and retentton of personnel Further detail on the principal nisks facing the group 1s
set out on pages 16 to 17

The major strategic nisks facing the Reed Elsevier Group plc businesses are considered by the Board Reed
Elsevier Group ple’s Chief Risk Officer has the responsibality to provide regular reports to the Board and Audit
Committee Working closely with divisional and business management and with the central functions, the role of
the Chief Risk Officer 1s to ensure that Reed Elsevier Group plc 1s managing 1ts business nsks effectively and in a
coordinated manner across the business with clarity on the respective responsibihities and interdependencies
Liugation and other legal regulatory matters are managed by legal directors in Europe and the United States

The Audit Commttee receives regular reports on the :denufication and management of material nisks and reviews
these reports The Audit Committee also receives regular reports from both internal and external auditors on
internal control and rnisk management matters In addition, each division 1s required, at the end of the financial
year, to review the effectiveness of intermal controls and rnisk management and report 1ts findings on a detailed
basis to the management of Reed Elsevier Group plc These reports are summarised and, as part of the annual
review of effectiveness, submaitted to the Audit Commuttee The Chairman of the Audit Commuttee reports to the
Board on any sigmficant internal control matiers arising

Annual review

As part of the year end procedures, the Audit Commuttee and the Board review the effecuveness of the systems of
internal contro! and nisk management during the last financial year The objective of these systems 1s to manage,
rather than ehminate the nsk of failure to achieve business objectives Accordingly, they can only provide
reasonable, but not absclute, assurance against material misstatement ot loss

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The directors are required by Enghish company law to prepare a directors’ report and financial statements for each
financial period, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and the group, and of the
profit or loss for that period In preparing those financial statements, the directors ensure that suitable accounting
policies, conststently applied and supported by reasonable judgements and esumates, have been used, and
apphcable accounting standards have been followed

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable accuracy at
any ume the financial position of the company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply
with the faw

The directors have general responsibility for taking reasonable steps to safeguard the assets of the group and to
prevent and detect fraud and other irregulanties
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DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

As part of the process of approving the 2009 financial statements, the directors have taken steps pursuant to
section 418(2) of the Companies Act 2006 to ensure that they are aware of any relevant audit informauon and to
establish that the company s auditors are aware of that information In that context. so far as the directors are
aware, there 15 no relevant audit information of which the company’s auditors are unaware

GOING CONCERN

The directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that adequate resources exist for the group to continue
in operational existence for the foreseeable future and that, therefore, 1t 15 appropriate to adopt the going concern
basis in preparing the 2009 financial statements I[n reaching thus conclusion, the directors have had due regard to
the financial position as at 31 December 2009, the strong cash flow generation of the group the ability to access
debt capital markets and the principal risks facing the group

A commentary on the group’s cash flows and financial position for the year ended 31 December 2009 1s set out in
the Directors Report Reed Elsevier’s policies on iquidity, capital management and management of risks relating
to Interest rate, foreign exchange and credit exposures are also set out 1in the Directors” Report Further
information on liquidity can be found n note 19 of the consolidated financial statements The principal nisks
facing the gtoup are set out in the Directors’ Report section

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

The Annual Report and Financial Statements 2009 contains forward looking statements These statements are
subject to a number of risks and uncertainties and actual results and events could differ materally from those
currently being anticipated as reflected in such forward looking statements The terms expect , “should be , “wll
be , and similar expressions 1dentify forward looking statements Factors which may cause future outcomes to
difter from those foreseen 1n forward looking statements include, but are not limited to general economic and
business conditions, demand for our products and services, competitive factors in the industries 1n which we
operate, exchange rate fluctuations, legislative, fiscal and regulatory developments, polttical risks, terrorism, acts
of war and pandemics, changes in law and legal interpretations affecung Reed Elsevier Group plc s intellectual
property rights and internet communications, and the impact of technological change

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Constant engagement with stakeholders, including shareholders, employees, communites, governments and
members of civil society, help us determine material corporate responsibility 1ssues Our Corporate Responstbility
Forum, chaired by the CEO, sets corresponding objectives — encompassing governance, people, health and safety,
customers, supply chain, environment and community — and measures performance aganst them

Focus on society

We focus on areas where we can make an important contribution to society through our knowledge, resources and
skiils universal, sustainable access to information, advance of science and health, promotion of the rule of law
and justice, and anti-crime

Elsevier has an important role to play in advancing human welfare and economic progress in the developing
world, where information resources are often scarce Through ‘informauon philanthropy’ Elsevier, as the world’s
largest scientific publisher, ensures leading research 1s available to the countries that need 1t most Among key
programmes 1s Research4Life, in partnership with United Nations agencies and other pubhishers, which
encompasses the Health InterNetwork Access to Research Initative (HINARI) HINARI provides health workers
and researchers in over 100 developing countries access to both core and cutting-edge health sciences information
In 2009, there were 2 million articles from nearly 1,600 Elsevier journals downloaded through HINARI, a 30%
increase over 2008 Also 1n 2009, the Elsevier Foundation made grants including to the Third World Orgamzation
for Women 1n Science (TWOWS) to support twelve $5,000 awards to young women scientists working in the
fields of biological, physical, chenical and mathematical science across the developing world The awards will
help further the organisation’s rmussion to advance the participation, recognition and contributions of women
scientists 1n less developed countries

LexisNexus has a strong focus on the rule of law Its Rule of Law Resource Center 1s one of the largest free online
sources of rule of law and human rights information I[n 2009, the Center’s resources were expanded to include a
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comprehensive report on health and human rights compited by the World Justice Project supported by
LexisNexis As a founder of the UK’s International Law Book Facility, 1n 2009 LexasNexis provided 2,000 legal
texts to assist legal professtonal bodies, advice centres pro bono groups. law scheols and other institutions
involved 1n access to justice across common law junsdictions in Africa, Asia and the Canbbean [n addition,
through its Risk Seolutions business, LexisNexis supports organisations serving children like Boys & Girls Clubs
of America and Court Appointed Special Advocates for youth Sinee 2002, LexisNexis Volunteer Screening has
completed more that 4 rmlizon volunteer background checks for these organisations, :dentifying over 200,000
individuals with criminal convictions, including more than 3,000 registered sex offenders

Reed Exhibitions provides platforms at its trade shows 10 organisations supporting our corporate responsibility
focus areas Over the last five years, Reed Exhubitions has given free space at the London Book Fair to BookAid
International, which annually provides 500,000 books — including those donated from across Reed Elsevier Group
plc — to readers 1n the developing world, enabling the charity to engage with a wide range of potential book and
financial donors At 2009 World Travel Market, the global event for the travel industry organized by Reed
Exhibittons, World Responsible Tourism Day was marked by the Responsible Tourism Awards, which recognised
sector mnitiatives 1n areas like poverty reduction, low carbon transport and technology and conservation

Reed Business Information (RBI) uses the power of 1ts brands to aid communities Variety the leading
entertainment industry news source, published by RBI, has established Power of Youth to spur young entertainers
to support philanthropic and humanitarian causes, and to encourage their fans to do so as well Since its inception
in 2007, Power of Youth has raised more than $1 25 milhon to aid children In 2009, RBI held a2 major event and
auction which yielded $250,000 to benefit Startight Children s Foundation, which helps seriously 11l children and
their families through entertainment and education, and LA"s BEST, which provides after-school activities and
education for more than 28,000 economically disadvantaged young people

Governance

The Reed Elsevier Code of Ethics and Business Conduct (Code), updated in 2009 to improve the clarity of its
provisions and to ensure it reflects best practice, 18 disseminated to every employee as 2 guide to our corporate and
individual conduct Encompassing topics such as fair competition, anti-bribery and human rights, 1t encourages
open and principled behaviour 80% of current employees completed online Code traiming by year end 2009, with
63% of all US employees completing second round Code training n the year In addition, we offered advanced
ethics courses to relevant staff, including on anti-harassment completed by 2,400 employees, fair competition
completed by 4,500 employees, and data privacy and security completed by nearly 12,000 US employees

In 2009, we actively promoted the Umted Nations Global Compact, to which we are a signatory — an imuiative for
businesses willing to align their operations and strategies with ten principles in the areas of human rights, labour,
environment and anti-corruption — providing webinars to help fellow signatories communicate about the Compact,
and serving on the steering group for the United Kingdom

People

Our 32,000 people are our strength In 2009, we disseminated a global Employee Opinion Survey (EOS) to
employees, with 72% of staff taking part Overall, employees rate Reed Elsevier Group plc as a good place to
work with improved scores since the last survey in 2006 in valuing our people, being receptive to their 1deas, and
encouraging teamwork and collaboration We are prioriuising areas identified in the EOS for attention, including
additional ways to support work/life balance The Reed Elsevier Group plc Diversity and [nclusion statement
articulates our commitment to a diverse workforce and a work environment that respects individuals and their
contributions, regardless of their gender, race or other characteristic To better communicale on the 1ssues we
created a diversity and inclusion intranet site Our cross-divisional Diversity and Inclusion Working Group, which
draws on internal and external expertise, promoted best practice in areas ranging from traiming to recruitment
Growing numbers of affinity groups, like women’s forums, focused on support, mentoring and community
mvolvement, allow diversity to be expressed 1n meaningful ways across Reed Elsevier Group plc

Health and safety

Our employees have the night to a healthy and safe workplace as outlined i the Reed Elsevier Group plc Health
and Safety Policy To reduce our severity rate (lost days per 200,000 hours worked) we are conducting risk
assessments, and working with a third party resource 1n the US to assign a nurse case manager to each complex or
severe claim We focused on wellness in the workplace during our 2009 annuat Health & Safety Month with
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activities ranging from stress awareness tramning and flu vaccinations to fitness classes and blometric screemng In
2010, we will introduce weight loss and smoking cessation support to further promote employee wellness and help
reduce absenteeism and workplace-related illnesses iIn the year, we launched RE F1t2Win a global competition
which recogmsed employees for walking, cycling and running, with winners receiving $1 000 for the chanty of
their choice Over 117 locations participated logging 878,890 mules/l 4 milhion kilometres

Customers

Through the Net Promoter Score (NPS) programme we surveyed 100,000 customers to determine their
willingness to recommend us NPS tracks overall customer loyalty, deepening customer understanding and driving
forward a customer centric culture Results, reviewed by the CEO and senior managers and communicated to

staff, illuminate where we are doing well and where we must do better We are committed 1o improving access to
our products and services for all users, regardless of physical abthty In the year Elsevier helped launch
AccessText org which streamlines electronic book file requests from umiversity disability services, processing
over 2,500 requests Upgrades to core LexasNexis products launching in 2010 will incorporate WCAG 2 0, the
most recent web accessibility guidelines Our Accessibiity Working Group held four educational webinars for
colleagues in the year, including one hosted by the blind website editor of one of our leading journals

Supply cham

We require our suppliers to meet the same high standards we set for ourselves Our Supplier Code of Conduct
stipulates adherence to all laws and best practice 1n areas such as human rights labour and the environment In
2009, we expanded our Socially Responsible Supplier (SRS) database to 589 suppliers, encompassing critical,
preferred, and strategic suppliers, and those we deem high nisk according to critena from the Corporate Executive
Board’s Global Country Analysis Support Tool and human trafficking data from the US State Department We
overestimated cur target for signatories to the Supplier Code due to the fragmented nature of the supplier base and
the introduction of new data gathering tools late 1n 2009 However, 50% of all suppliers were signatories by year
end Ofthe 40 external audits of high nsk suppliers by spectalists ITS planned for 2009 3% were completed and
one was postponed until 2010 Any ncidence of Suppher Code non-comphiance dentified in the audit process
trggers a corrective action plan with tracked supplier remediation of all 1ssues In the tuture, we expect to sec an
increase 1n our SRS database and will be engaging more people within the business to reach a higher Suppher
Code return rate, over the last two years, all new suppliers are required to sign our Suppher Code as a condition of
doing business with us We provide tools for employees to undertake internal audits when visiting high risk
suppliers, 12 were completed 1n 2009 We also provided supplier training to increase reporting on the Reed
Elsevier Group plc portion of their CO2 emissions

Environment

To achieve our 2015 targets, we are working with our Environmental Champions network employee-led Green
Teams, and engineering, design and construction specialists We have also introduced an environmental standards
programme Standard levels are those needed to achieve our targets based on our environmental performance as
well as internal and external good practice Locations that achieve five of eight environmental standards 1n any
year gain green status The standards set usage levels per person (e g energy consumption of 5,400 kWh per
person and carbon emissions of 2 /CO2 per person) to engage employees and inspire green competition among
offices In 2009, ten locations across our four divisions turned green

Full details of our environmental performance will be available 1n the 2009 Corporate Responsibihity Report from
April 2010 at www reedelsevier com/cr09 We promote good environmental performance through our leading
environmental science print and online publications and trade shows. such as Current Opimion 1n Environmentat
Sustainability, the Journal of Cleaner Production, the Environmental Law and Chmate Change Center, and
Pollutee, the world’s largest environmental engineering show

Community

Through our Reed Elsevier Group plc Cares programme we promote education for disadvantaged young people
We saw an 11% nise i volunteering and donated £2 5 million 1n cash donations (including matching gift
programmes) and the equivalent of £4 4 milhon 1n gifts of products, services and staff tme m 2009 Our Two
Days programme allows all staff up to two days off per year for their own community work Reed Elsevier Group
plc Cares Champions engage colleagues 1n activities throughout the year such as the RE Cares Challenge, which
rewards business sponsored community engagement, and Reed Elsevier Group ple Cares Month, with hundreds of
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events around the globe During the Month we held a £37,000 fundraising drive for Save the Children s REwrite
the Future programme in A fghanistan, supporting access to education for children affected by conflict Our annual
global book drive yielded some 14,000 employee books for local and developing world readers

POLITICAL DONATIONS

In the United States the Reed Elsevier Group plc group contributed £46,000 (2008 £39,000) to political parties
There were no donations made in the European Umion for political purposes

CREDITOR PAYMENT POLICY

The company agrees terms and conditions for business transactions with suppliers and payment 1s made on these
terms The average time taken to pay suppliers was between 30 and 435 days (2008 between 30 and 45 days)

AUDITORS

Resclutions for the reappointment of Deloitte LLP as auditors ot the company and authonising the directors to fix
therr remuneratton will be submatted to the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

By Order of the Board

e\ O don

Stephen J Cowd Registered office
Secrethry 1-3 Strand
17 February London, WC2N 5JR
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This report describes how Reed Elsevier Group plc applies the principles of good governance relating to directors
remuneration  In respect of the disclosures contained in this report, we have sough to comply with the substance

and spint of prevailing legislation and corporate governance guidelines in the UK This report has been prepared
by the Remuneration Committee (the Commttee) of Reed Elsevier Group ple and approved by the board of Reed
Elsevier Group plc

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Constitution

Throughout 2009, the Committee consisted of independent non-executive directors, as defined by the Combined
Code of the FSA Listing Rules Jan Hommen was also a member of the Committee until 21 April 2009 when he
stepped down from the Reed Elsevier Group plc board Although not a format member of the Commuttee

Anthony Habgood attended meetings of the Commuttee since his appointment as Chairman of Reed Elsevier
Group plc in June 2009 He was appointed a member of the Commuttee with effect from 1 January 2010 Details
of Commttee members and meeting attendance are contained in the Directors Report The Company Secretary of
Reed Elsevier Group plc, Stephen Cowden, also attends the meetings 1n his capacity as secretary to the

Commuitee At the invitation of the Commuttee Chairman, the CEO of Reed Elsevier Group plec attends
appropriate parts of the meetings

Details of Committee members are set out on pages 17 to 19 in the Directors Report [an Fraser (Group HR
Director) and Philip Wills (Director, Compensation and Benefits) provided material advice to the Commuttee
during the year

Advisors

Towers Perrin acted as external advisers to the Commuttee throughout 2009 and also provided market data and
data analysis Towers Pernin also provide actuanal and other human resources consultancy services directly to
some Reed Elsevier Group plc companies

The individual consultants involved 1n advising the Commuttee do not provide advice to the executive directors or
act on their behalf

Terms of reference

The Commuttee 1s responsible for

> Setting the remuneration 1n all 1ts forms, and the terms of the service contracts and all other terms and
conditions of employment of directors of Reed Elsevier Group ple appointed to any executive office of
employment

> Advising the Chief Executive Officer on the remuneration of members of the Management Commuttee (other
than executive directors) of Reed Elsevier Group plc and of the Company Secretary

> Providing adwvice to the Chief Executive Officer, as required, on major policy 1ssues affecting the remuneration
of executives at a senior level below the Board

> Establishing and amend:ng the rules of all share-based incentive plans for approval by shareholders

A copy of the terms of reference of the Commuttee can be found on the Reed Elsevier website,
www reedelsevier com

The audited parts of the Directors” Remuneration Report

In compliance with the Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008, the following elements of
this report have been audited the table entitled ‘Transfer value of accrued pension benefits’ on page 36, the tables showing ‘Aggregate
emoluments’ and ‘Individual fees of non-executive directors’ on pages 39 to 40 , the tables on Individual emoluments of executive directors’
and 'Directors shareholdings 1n Reed Elsevier plc and Reed Elsevier NV’ on pages 40 to 41, and the section ‘Share-based awards in Reed
Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV on pages 41 to 47
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Remuneration philosophy and pohiey

The context for Reed Elsevier Group plc s remuneration pelicy and practices 1s set by the needs of a group of
global businesses, each of which operates internationally by line of business Furthermore the market listings of
Reed Elsevier Group plc’s parent companies in London and Amsterdam combined with the magority of employees
being based n the US provides a particular set of challenges in the design and operation of remuneration policy

Our remuneration philosophy

Reed Elsevier Group plc s gutding remuneration philosophy for senior executives 1s based on the following
precepls

> Performance-related compensation with demanding performance standards

> Creatton of shareholder value

> Competitive remuneration oppertunity to attract and retain the best executive talent from anywhere 1n the world
> Balanced mix of remuneration between fixed and vanable elements, and annual and long term performance

> Aligning the interests of exccutive directors with shareholders and other stakeholders

Our remuneration pohcy

In hine with this guiding philosophy our remuneration policy 18 described below

> Reed Elsevier Group plc aims to provide a total remuneration package that 1s able to attract and retain the best
executive talent from anywhere in the world, at an appropnate level of cost

> In reaching decisions on executive remuneration, the Commuttee takes into account the remuneration
arrangements and levels of increase applicable to senior management and Reed Elsevier Group plc employees
generally

> The Commuttee considers the social, governance, and environmental 1mplications of s decisions, particularly
when setting and measuring performance objectives and targets, and seeks to ensure that incentives are consistent
with the appropriate management of risk

> Total remuneration of senior executives will be competitive with that of executives in sumlar positions in
comparable compantes, which includes global sector peers and companies of similar scale and international
complexity

> Competitiveness 1s assessed in terms of total remuneration {1e salary, short and long term incentives and
benefits)

> The mtention 18 to provide total remuneration that reflects sustained individual and business performance, 1e
median performance will be rewarded by total remuneration that 1s positioned around the median of relevant
market data and upper quartile performance by upper quartile total remuneration

> The Commuttee wiil consider all available discretion to claw back any payouts made on the basis of materially
musstated data With effect from 2010, the rules of all incentive plans have been amended 1o provide for specific
provisions in this regard

> The Comnuttee considers 1t important to encourage personal investment and ongoing holding of Reed Elsevier
PLC and Reed Elsevier NV securities amongst the senior executive population Executive directors and other
senior executives are subject to minimum shareholding requirements

How the performance measures in incentives link to our business strategy

Our annual incentive plan 1s focused on operational excellence as measured by the financial measures of revenue,
profit and cash generation In addition, a sigmficant portion of the annual bonus 15 dependent upeon the
achievement of annuat key performance objectives (KPOs) that create a platform for sustainable future
performance These KPOs align with Reed Elsevier Group ple’s strategic imperatives described elsewhere in this
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report and range from the delivery of specific projects and the achievement of efficiency targets to corporate and
social responsibility objectives

The Commuttee behieves that one of the main drivers of long-term shareholder value 1s sustained growth in
profitability, underpinned by appropriate capital discipline The new LTI arrangements and bonus invesiment plan
proposed for 2010 are armed at driving sustainable performance in the longer term by focusing on earnings and
returns over three and five year periods The metrics are cascaded down to the businesses and adjusted to reflect
expectations for each business As the Commuttee assesses performance against these metrics, it will ensure that
the scores fairly represent the underlymg business performance

The balance between fixed and performance related pay

The majonty of each execuuve director s total remuneration package 1s linked to performance We aim to provide
each executive director with an annual total remuneratuon package comprising fixed and vanable pay On an
ongoing basis, the annual total remuneration package includes an incentive opportunity of around 70% for target
performance (as a percentage of the total package compnising both annual and long term incentives) The core
components of the total remuneration package are described on page 29 The following diagram shows the
balance between the fixed and vanable elements of the remuneration package assuming target performance

Fixed pay elements ~ 30%
H 20% salary
10% pens:ons and other benefits

Variable pay elements —70%
20% annual ncentive
50% long torm incantve

To 1llustrate how our levels of compensation are driven by bustness performance we have produced the chart
below (scale 1n percent of base salary) Thas tllustrates the way tn which remuneration payable to an executive
director under the prior plans would vary from base salary at miimum up to a theoretical maximum under
different performance scenarios The new LTI arrangements and bonus investment oppertunity for 2010 will
deliver equal or less reward for ssmular levels of performance as the prior plans For the purposes of this
illustration assumptions have been made 1n relation to vesting/payout levels at the different levels of performance

A P 700%
# B 600%
s EISPOS 500%
400%
Salary [

f - — 300%
200%
( 100%

%

Menmum Threshodd Target Mapurmum

Our approach to market positioning and benchmarking
The market competitiveness of total remuneration (1 e salary, annual and long-term 1ncentives and benefits) 1s
assessed aganst a range of relevant comparator groups as follows

> Global peers operating 1n businesses similar to those of Reed Elsevier Group plc (including Thomsen Reuters,
WPP, Pearson, John Wiley, Wolters Kluwer Dun & Bradstreet, Experian, McGraw-Hill, UBM, DMGT, Informa,
Lagardére and FICO)

> Companzes hsted on the London Stock Exchange (cross-industry but excluding those in the financial services
sector) of a similar size (measured by aggregate market capitalisation} and international scope
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> Companies listed on the New York Stock exchange (cross-industry but excluding those in the financial services
secter) of a similar size (measured by aggregate market capitalisation) and international scope

> Companies listed on the Amsterdam Stock Exchange, cross-industry and of a similar size (measured by
aggregate market capitalisation) and ternational scope

The composition of the respective comparator groups 15 subject to minor changes year on year reflecting changes
in the size, international scope and histing status of specific companies during the year

The competitiveness of our remuneration packages 15 assessed by the Committee as part of the annual review
cycle for pay and performance, n line with the process set out below

> First, the overall competitiveness of the total remuneration packages 1s assessed The appropriate positioning of
an individual’s total remuneration against the market 1s determined based on the Comnuttee s judgement of
individual performance and potential

> The Commuttee then considers market data and benchmarks for the different elements of the package including
salary, total annual cash and total remuneration

> [f1t1s determined that a total remuneration competitive gap ewsts, the Commuttee believes that this should be
addressed via a review of performance-linked compensauon elements 1n the first instance

> Benefits, including medical and retirement benefits, are positioned to reflect local country practice

The total remuneration package

Each element of the remuneration package for executive directors 1s designed to achieve specific objectives, as
described in the table below In aggregate, they create a umfied and balanced reward mix and competitive
employment proposition The value of the reward package 1s only maximised through the integrated dehivery of
annual and longer term performance Reward for the delivery of business results 1s connected with reward for
value flowing to shareholders The incentive arrangements are structured in such a way that reward cannot be
maximised through inappropnate short term nisk-taking

The table below provides an overview of the component parts of the total remuneration package for executive
directors
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Summary of remuneration elements for executive directors

Element Purpose Performance | Performance measure
period
Salary Positions the role and individual within the | Not Reflects the sustained value of an
relevant market for executive talent applicable execuiive’s skills, experience and

coniribution compared with the
relevant talent market

Annual Incentive Provides focus on the delivery of One year Annual targets for revenue, profit,
stretching annual financial targets and the cash flow conversion rate and key
achievement of annual objectives and performance objectives

milestones that create a platform for
sustainable future performance

Long Term > Provides focus on the delivery of the

Incentive medium to longer term
strategy and holds the executive directors
accountable for the delivery of that Proposed LTI arrangements and bonus investment
strategy plan applicable to 2010 to be submutted to
> Drives value creation via the dehvery of shareholders for approval at the 2010 Annual
sustarned financial performance and General Meetings of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed
returns for shareholders Elsevier NV

Bonus Investment | > Encourages personal investment n, and
ongoing holding of, Reed Elsevier shares
promoting greater alignment with

shareholders

> Supports the retention of key talent
Retirement Positioned to ensure broad competitiveness | Not Terms and vesting are specific to
benefits with local country practice applicable individual with reference to

relevant country practice

Each of these remuneration elements 1s described 1n greater detail in the remainder of this section

Salary

Salary reflects the role and the sustained value of the executive in terms of skills, expenence and contribution in
the context of the relevant market

Salaries for executive directors are reviewed annually 1n the context of the competitveness of total remuneration
Any increases typically take effect on 1 January Base salaries have been frozen for executive directors since |
January 2008, including with effect from 1 January 2010 Erik Engstrom s base salary was increased to
£1,000,000 per annum from 11 November 2009 following his appowintment as CEO of Reed Elsevier Group ple

Annual salary from  Annual salary from

1 January 2010 1 January 2009
Current directors
Mark Armour £613,440 £613,440
Erk Engstrom £1,000,000 $1.192,464*
Andrew Prozes $1,215,180 $1,2i5,180
Former directors
Sir Crispin Davis (retred 31 March 20093 - £1,181,100
lan Smith (resigned 10 November 2009) - £900,000

*£1,000,000 p a from 11 November 2009 following his promotion to CEO of Reed Elsevier Group plc

Reed Elsevier Group ple uses the same factors to determune the levels of increase across all employee populations
globally 1 ¢ relevant pay market, skills, experience and contribution Reed Elsevier Group plc operates across
many diverse countries in terms of their remuneration structures and practices Any ncreases awarded to different
employee groups in different geographies reflect this diversity and range of practices An increase of
approximately 2% on average will be awarded across the senior management population globally for 2010 No
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increases were provided to semor management in 2009, except for promotions or where significant market
adjustments were required This level of increase 1s 1n line with increases provided to the wider employee
population

Annual Incentive Plan (AIP)

The AIP provides focus on the delivery of stretching annual financial targets It further motivates the achievement
of annual objectives and milestones that create a platform for sustamnable future performance

The AIP for 2010

For 2010, executive directors have a target bonus opportunity of 100% of salary {unchanged from 2009) that 1s
weighted as follows across four elements

Measure Weighting
Revenue 30%
Profit* 30% I
Cash Flow Conversion Rate 10% |
Key Performance Objectives (KPQs) 30%

* The Profit measure for the CEO and CFO of Reed Elsevier Group plc 15 Adjusted Profit After Tax for the Reed Elsevier combined
busmesses The profit measure for the CEO of LexisNexis 1s Adjusted Operating Profit of LexisNeus

The target bonus opportunity for the financial measures 1s payable for the achievement of kighly stretching
financial targets The four elements are measured separately, such that there could be & payout on one element and
not on others

The continuing volatile economic environment has made the setting of targets and management of performance
within a narrow range significantly more difficult In view of this, the Commuttee has decided to widen the payout
range under the AIP for 2010 and to make the incentive slope flatter This means that a smaller bonus would start
to accrue for achieving 94% of target (versus the 97 5% entry point for 2009) against each individual financial
performance measure However, the level of out-performance required to achieve the maximum bonus (150% of
target and unchanged from 2009) has been substantially increased for 2010 In addition, the Commuttee has
determtined that for 2010, executive directors will only be able to earn a bonus of 100% of salary 1f 2010 profit
performance exceeds 2009

The KPOs are individual to each executive director Each executive director 1s set up to six KPOs 1o reflect

cntical business prionities for which they are accountable Agansi each objective, measurable milestone targets

are set for the year All financial targets and KPOs are approved by the Committee and are subject to formal

assessment at the end of each year The Chairman of Reed Elsevier Group plc presents his assessment of '
performance against KPOs for the CEOQ of Reed Elsevier Group plc to the Commuttee whilst the CEO of Reed |
Elsevier Group plc presents his assessment of KPO performance for the other executive directors The Commuttee '
then discusses and agrees the final KPO score for each executive director

AIP payout history

Since 2003, only 41% of the bonuses pad to executive directors have been equal to or greater than the target
bonus The highest bonus paid to any director since 2003 was 112 9% of salary, falling well short of the maximum
bonus opportunity
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AlIP Payments for 2009
In assessing the level of bonus payments for 2009. the Committee noted the following performances

% change over 2008 at constant exchange rates

Adjusted

Revenue operating profit

Reed Elsevier 0% +1%
Elsevier +4% +9%
LexisNexis +14% +13%

The 2009 financial results for the Reed Elsevier combined businesses were relatively robust gtven the depth of the
global recession At constant exchange rates, revenue growth was flat (or 6% lower underlying 1 e before
acquisitions and disposals), costs were substantially reduced, limiting the decline 1n underlying margins to 8¢
basis points, and adjusted operating profits were up 1% (or 9% lower underlying)

Reed Elsevier delivered a relatively robust performance given the depth of the unprecedented global recession
Elsevier saw continued growth in a challenging market environment LexisNexis delivered an excellent first year
contribution from the ChoicePoint acquisition, with a 44% increase in ChoicePoint’s pro forma adjusted operating
profits, and otherwise saw a modest underlying revenue decline against the backdrop of a significant downturn 1n
the legal industry Reed Exhibittons and Reed Business [nformation, accounting for 15% of adjusted operating
profits, were particularly hard hit by the downturn 1n advertising and promotion markets The impact of
underlying revenue dechines was mitigated by significant restructuring and cost actions across the business

Post-tax return on capital employed for the Reed Elsevier combined businesses was 10 4% The reduction from

12 1% reported n 2008 reflects the imtizally ditutive effect on returns of the ChoicePoint acquisition and the lower
adjusted operating profits in the underlying business Acquisiions typically dilute the overall return imtially, but
build to deliver longer term returns over Reed Elsevier’s average for the business

Conversion of 99% of adjusted operating profit into cash was very high and confirmed the quality of the earnings
reported Individual directors achieved solid performance against their key performance objectives In the context
of the highly challenging financial targets set for 2009 however, annual bonuses for directors were substantially
below the target level

The following bonuses wili be paid to executive directors and former directors in March 2010

2009 % of
annual bonus 2009 salary
(to be paid 1n March 2010) ecarned
Current directors
Mark Armour £420,206 68 5
Enk Engstrom $1,325,305 106 6
Andrew Prozes $738,526 608
Former directors
Sir Cnispin Davis £131,397 445
lan Smuth £427,500 475

Enk Engstrom s 2009 bonus was determined on the basis of Elsevier financials and tis onginal KPOs set at the
beginning of 2009

In accordance with standard practice for retirement, Sir Crispin Davis was eligible for a pro rata bonus for 2009
subject to performance against KPOs n the period up to retirement and Reed Elsevier Group ple financial
performance for 2009 lan Smith was also eligible for a bonus 1n accordance with the terms agreed in respect of
hus loss of office dunng 2009 subject to Reed Elsevier Group plc financial performance determined in the same
way as bonuses payable to other executive directors and performance agaimnst KPOs
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Long Term Incentive (LTI)

Provides focus on the delivery of the medium 1o longer term strategy and holds the executive directors
accountable for the delivery of that strategy Drives value creation via the delivery of sustained financial
performance and returns to shareholders

Long Term Incentive arrangements for 2010

Currently, LTI awards are provided through a mux of performance shares (via the Long Term Incentive Plan) and
share options (via the Executive Share Option Scheme) Grants of performance shares and share options were
made over shares 1n Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV Having reviewed the LTI arrangements over the
last few months within the context of the challenging business environment, the changes tn sentor management
during 2009 and Reed Elsevier Group plc’s strategy, the Commuttee has concluded that the current LTIs are no
longer best posittoned to meet shareholder interests Therefore, no grants will be made to executive directors
under the Executive Share Option Scheme and the Long Term Incentive Plan in 2010

Instead, the Commuttee has developed new LTI proposals for 2010 on which it has been consulting with major
shareholders of Reed Elsevier Group plc's parent companies and key shareholder representative bodies in the UK,
the Netherlands and the United States The Committee believes that the proposed LTI arrangements provides a
more appropriate basis for supportng the strategy of Reed Elsevier Group plc over the medium to longer term by
focusing on a balanced set of performance metrics

Extensive medelling and scenario analysis was undertaken in order to assess the impact of the proposals using
different assumptions We specifically tested whether the proposed structure encouraged any inappropriate
behaviours and excessive risk taking and whether the level of reward that could be earned at different levels of
performance was fair and appropriate 1n the context of value delivered at a given level of performance to
shareholders The Commuittee concluded from this review that the structure of the proposals combined with

the Reed Elsevier Group plc governance and risk management processes and clawback provisions provide the
necessary checks and balances to prevent excesstve risk taking 1n addition, a cap wiil apply to payouts under the
new LTI arrangements to ensure that payout levels under the proposals remam within existing parameters

It 15 the Committee’s 1ntent to submit a proposal for the 2010 LTI framework for shareholder approval at the 2010
AGMs of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV

Terms appheable to outstanding awards granted under the prior LTI plans

Executive Share Option Scheme (ESOS)

ESOS awards to executive directors were subject to an annual individual maximum (in terms of the market value
of the shares under option) of three times salary The grants of options were over shares in Reed Elsevier PLC and
Reed Elsevier NV at the market price on the date of grant

A pre-grant performance condition of compound annual growth in adjusted earnings per share of Reed Elsevier
PLC and Reed Elsevier NV at constant currencies (Adjusted EPS) over the three years prior to grant determined
the size of the total grant pool available for all participants The ESOS awards to executive directors are then
subject to a further performance test on vesting measured over a three-year period starting on 1 January of the year
of grant The awards granted in 2007 were subject to a performance hurdle of Adjusted EPS of 6% For awards
granted in 2008 and 2009, the Commuttee increased the hurdle to 8% Adjusted EPS

Options are exercisable between three and ten years from the date of grant (except for defined categories of
approved leavers) In the event of a change of control, the Commuttee would make an assessment of progress
against targets at the time the change of control occurs

The ESOS awards that vested on 13 March 2009 (1 e the 2006 ESOS grant) following an Adjusted EPS
performance of 12 5% p a2 and the ESOS awards granted 1n 2009 to the executive directors are disclosed in the
share tables on pages 42-47

In respect of ESOS awards granted 1n 2007, the options awarded to executive directors and former directors
lapsed on the date of the report The performance test was not met
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Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP)
Since 2003, the LTIP has vested only twice

Under the LTIP, executive directors were ehgible to recerve an annual award of performance shares with a target
value of up to 135% of satary The awards were over shares in Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV The
vesting of the awards 15 subject to performance against two measures Adjusted EPS and relative TSR
performance over the same three-year performance penod

In addstion, the vesting of awards 15 subject to meeting shareholding requirements and, once met, maintaining an
engoing holding at the required feve! Participation in the LTIP 1s subject to the executive agreeing to be bound by
strict non-compete provisions Both of these features will be retained in the proposed new LTI arrangements

No payout 15 made under the LTIP unless Reed Elsevier achieves a mimmum threshold of Adjusted EPS over a
three-year performance pertod This 1s irrespective of the assoctated TSR performance The award earned under
the EPS condition may be increased or decreased by TSR performance measured against a group of industry peers
over three years The combined effect of the two performance measures 1s shown tn the table below, which sets
out the potential vesting as a percentage of the imitial target award There 15 no retesting of the performance
condition

LTIP potential vesting schedule

Adjusted EPS TSR ranking
Upper
Below 62 5th  quartife and
2008 & 2009 awards 2007 awards median Median percentile above
Below 10% Below 8% 0% 0% 0% 0%
10% 8% 28% 35% 42% 49%
12% 10% 80% 100% 120% 140%
14% and above 12% and above 108% 135% 162% 189%

The Committee has full discretion to alter awards granted 1o participants based on 1ts assessmient as to whether the
Adjusted EPS and T'SR performance fairly reflects the progress of the business having regard to underlying
revenue growth. cash generation, return on capital employed and any sigmficant changes in currency and
inflation, as well as individual performance

To the extent that the underlying shares vest, notional dividends {1 e dividend equivalents) are paid on the vested
shares in cash at the end of the three-year performance pertod

The TSR comparator group for awards made from 2007 to 2009 1s made up of global industry peers

Numerous mergers and acquisitions have impacted the comparator group companies during the performance
cycles The Commuttee applies a fair and consistent basis to determine the relative TSR performance of each
company for these purposes Companies which are taken over within six months after the start of a performance
period are excluded from the comparator group For those that are subject 1o a transaction more than six months
into a performance period, any transaction-related share price premium 15 eliminated and the TSR prior to the
transaction 1s indexed forward using the daily average share price movement for the remaining companies 1n the

peer group
The averaging period applied for TSR measurement purposes 1s six months prior to the start of the financial year
i which the award 1s made and the final six months of the third financial year of the performance period Reed
Elsevier Group pl<’s TSR 1s taken as a simple average of the TSR of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV
The TSR of each comparator company 15 calculated n the currency of its primary listing

In the event of a change of control, the performance test applied under the LTIP would be based on an assessment

by the Commuttee of progress against the Adjusted EPS and TSR targets at the ime the change of control occurs
(subject to any rollover that may apply)
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As previously set out in the 2008 Remuneration Report (page 33), the 2006 LTIP award vested at maximum (at
189% of target) on 27 February 2009 This level of vesting was based on Adjusted EPS performance of 12 5% pa
and Reed Elsevier s TSR ranking at the 76 4th percentile against the peer group of global competitors over the
three year performance period ended 31 December 2008 In addition, participants received notional dividends on
their vested shares The aggregate notional dividends per vested Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV
ordwmary share were £0 500 and €1 212 respectively These reflect the dividends paid 1 2006, 2007 and 2008 and
exclude the special distnibution made 1n January 2008 following the sale of the Education division

The vested awards are disclosed 1n the share tables on pages 42-47 and the notional dividends paid are disclosed
1n the table showing the individual emoluments of executive directors on page 40

In respect of the LT IP awards granted in 2007 to executive directors and former directors, Adjusted EPS
performance over the three years ended 31 December 2009 did not reach the mmimum level required for vesting
As aresult, the 2007-09 LTIP cycle did not vest for these executives

Bonus Investment
Encourages personal investment in and ongoing helding of, Reed Elsevier shares to promote greater alignment
with shareholders

Bonus Investment for 2010

The Committee considers it important to encourage personal investment and ongoing shareholding 1n Reed
Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV securities amongst the senor executive population to develop greater
ahgnment with shareholders Reed Elsevier Group plc operates a Bonus Investment Plan (BEP) which 1s open to
approximately 150 senior executives worldwide As part of the LTI review, the Commuttee also reviewed the BIP
and 1s proposing to amend the ptan for 2010 and gomng forward Therefore, no grants will be made in 2010 to
executive directors under the prior BIP Proposed BIP arrangements applicable to 2010 are to be submuitted to
shareholders for approval at the 2010 Annual General Meetings of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV

Terms applicable to outstanding awards granted under the prior Bonus Investment Plan
Smnce the implementation of the BIP in 2003, four of the completed three-year performance cycles have vested

The vesting of the matching shares 1s subject to the achievement of an Adjusted EPS hurdle over the three-year
performance period A hurdle rate of 6% per annum applied to the 2007 matching awards which was increased to
8% per annum Adjusted EPS for the 2008 and 2009 matching awards Awards of matching shares made under the
2009-11 BIP cycle to execuuve directors during the year and matching awards vested under the 2006-2008 BIP
cycle are disclosed in the share tables on pages 42-47 Adjusted EPS performance over the three years ended 31
December 2008 was 12 5% p a and exceeded the performance condition to vest the 2006-08 matching awards

At the date of this repon, the Commuttee determined that the performance condition 1n respect of the 2007-09 BIP
cycle for executive directors and former directors was not met Consequently, no matching shares vested in
respect of thus cycle for these executives

In the event of a change of control, the vesting of the matching shares 1s subject to the discretion of the
Committee

Shareholding requirement

The shareholding requirement for the CEO of Reed Elsevier Group ple is three times salary and for other
executive directors two times salary Executive directors have five years to build up their shareholding to the
required level Shareholding requirements are also in place for a selected group of senior executives below the
board Meeting the shareholding requirement 1s a condition of vesting the designated LTIP awards and once met,
15 a condition of ongong participation 1n the LTIP Those directors who were granted an LTIP award n 2006, and
who are subject to ongoing shareholding requirements, well exceeded thetr requirernent it order to vest this award
m February 2009

Details of directors’ shareholdings, as at 31 December 2009, are set out on page 41 As at 31 December 2009, Enk
Engstrom already exceeded his new shareholding requirement of three times salary (increased from previously
two umes following his appointment as CEQ of Reed Elsevier Group plc in November 2009) based on his new
annual salary
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Other employee share plans

UK-based executive directors are ehigible to participate in the HMRC approved all-emplovee UK Savings-Related
Share Option Scheme (SAYE) US-based directors are ehigible to participate 1n the all-employee US-based
Employee Stock Investment Plan (EMSIP) Under the EMSIP, employees are able to purchase Reed Elsevier PLC
and Reed Elsevier NV securities at the prevailing market price, with commussions and charges being met by Reed
Elsevier Group plc

Retirement benefits

Retirement benefit provisions are set in the context of the total remuneration for each executive director, taking
account of age and servtce and against the background of evolving legislation and practice in Reed Elsevier Group
plc s major countries of operation Base salary 1s the only pensionable element of remuneration

Erik Engstrom and Mark Armour are provided with UK defined benefit pension arrangements under which they
accrue a pension of 1/30th of salary for every year of service (up to a maximum of two thirds of salary) lhe
pension 15 provided through a combination of

> the main UK Reed Eisevier Pension Scheme for salary restricted to a cap determined annually on the same
basis as the pre-Apnl 2006 Inland Revenue earnings cap, and

> Reed Elsevier s unfunded unapproved pension arrangement for salary above the cap

Prior to | November 2007, Erik Engstrom was not a member of any company pension scheme and Reed Elsevier
made annual contributions of 19 5% of his salary to his personal pension plan From 1 November 2007
contributions to his designated retirement account ceased and he became a member of the UK defined benefit
pension arrangement

Andrew Prozes, a US-based director, 15 provided with a mixed arrangement of defined benefit and defined
contribution In accordance with US legisiation, he has no defined retirement age On 17 July 2007, he became
vested 1n an annual pension of US$300 000 His basic pension continues to accrue at a rate of $42,857 per annum
for each completed year of service between 17 July 2007 and 1 February 2011 [n additon, Andrew Prozes will be
entitled to recerve an enhancement to his annual penston unless he resigns or 1f his employment 1s terminated by
Reed Elsevier Group ple for cause prior to t February 2011 Any such enhancement will be equal to $3.721 tumes
the number of completed calendar months between 1 July 2007 and the date of terminauon or, 1f earlier, 1
February 2011 For these purposes, his termination date shall be deemed to be 12 months after he ceases
employment

Sir Cnispin Davis ceased to be a director on 19 March 2009 and reured on 31 March 2009 at which point he
became entitled to a pension of £533,319 p a Ian Smith received a monthly cash allowance 1n ieu of pension
equal to 30% of tus monthly gross salary until his resignation by mutual agreement on 1¢ November 2009

The penston arrangements for all directors (UK and non-UK) include life assurance cover whilst in employment,

an entitlement to a pension n the event of 1ll health or disability and a spouse’s and/or dependants’ pension on
death

The increase in the transfer value of the directors’ pensions, after deduction of contributions, 15 shown in the table
overleaf Transfer values for the UK directors have been calculated in accordance with the gutdance note GN11
published by the UK Institute of Actuaries and Faculty of Actuaries The transfer values at 31 December 2009
have been calculated using the transfer value basis adopted by the trustees of the pension scheme from 1 October
2008
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Transfer values of accrued pension benefits

Transfer
value at 31
December
2009 of
INCIEAse 1
Increase tn accrued
Transfer Increase 1n Increase accrued pension
value of Transfer value  transfer value w accrued annual dunng the
accrued of accrued dunng the Accrued annual pension year {net of
pension 31 pension 31 year (netof  snnual pension pension durnng the inflavon and
Age Dhrector s December Decerrber director s 31 December dunng  year {net of director s
31 December 2009 contributions 2008 2009 contnit ) 2009 the year inflanon) _ contnbutions)
Mark Armour 55 £6,105 £4,358,939 £5,170,768 £805,724 £304,976 £20,441 £17,884 £297,109
Enk Engstrom 46 £6,105 £271,227 £624,769 £347 437 £49,127  £24 712 £24.492 £305,371
Andrew Prozes 63 - $5,659,371 $6,719,734 51,060 363 $515,199 $87,508 $87,508 $1,141,.369
Sir Crispin Davis* 60 £1470  £9,609,144  £10,165955 £555 341 £533319  £13,718 £13,718 £260,010
*Became entitled to a total annual pension of £533,319 upon retirement on 31 March 2009
**Ian Smith was not a pension scheme member The cash allowance pad to him 1n lieu of pension 1s disclosed on page 39
Service contracts
Executive directors are employed under service contracts that provide for a maximum of one year’s notice The
contracts netther specify a predetermined level of severance payment nor contain specific provistons in respect of
change in control The Commttee believes that, as a general rule. notice periods should be 12 months and that the
directors should, subject to any legal constraints within their base country, be required to mitigate their damages 1n
the event of termination The Committee will, however, note local market condiions so as to ensure that the terms
offered are appropriate to attract and retain top executives operating in global busiesses The service contracts for
executive directors (and for approximately 100 other senior executives) contain the following three provisions
> non-compete provisions which prevent them from working with specified competitors, from recruiting Reed
Elsevier Group plc employees and from soliciting Reed Elsevier Group ple customers for a period of 12 months
afler leaving employment,
>n the event of their resigning, they will immediately lose all nights to any outstanding awards under the LTIP,
ESOS and BIP granted from 2004 onwards including any vested but unexercised options, and
> 1n the event that they were to join a specified competitor within 12 months of leaving employment, any gamns
made 1n the s1x months prior to leaving employment on the vesting or exercise of an LTIP, ESOS and BIP award
made from 2004 ocnwards shall be repayable
Each of the executive directors has/had a service contract, as summanised in the table below
Expiry date
Contract Date __(subject to notice period) Notice peried Subject to
Mark Armour(i 7 October 1996 29 July 2014 12 months English law
Erik Engstrom) 25 June 2004 14 June 2025 12 months English law
Andrew Prozes(n) 5 July 2000 Indefinite 12 months salary  New York law
payable for
termination without
Sir Crispin Davis(i) 19 July 1999 Ceased to be a director - Enghish law
on 19 March 2009 and
retired 31 March 2009
Fan Smith (1) 3 November 2008 Resigned 12 months English Law

10 November 2009

(1) Employed by Reed Elsevier Group plc (11} Employed by Reed Elsevier Inc
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Sir Crispin Davis’ retirement arrangements
As previously disclosed in the 2008 Remuneration Report (page 37), Sir Crispin Davis retirement tn March 2009
was subject to the following terms

> he would continue to be eligible for a pro rata 2009 annual bonus under the AIP Any bonus due will be paid in
the first quarter of 2010 and will be subject to performance against KPOs 1n the period 1o his retirement and Reed
Elsevier Group plc financial performance for 2009 in the same way as the bonuses payable to the other executive
directors,

> as 15 standard practice for retirements early 1n the year, he did not recerve 2009 grants under ESOS and LTIP
and did not participate 1n the 2009 BIP,

> no termmatton payments were due since he retired,

> all unvested share-based awards were treated 1n accordance with the rules of the plans, and outstanding options
remain exerciszble for three-and-a-half years from retirement, and

> his LTIP shareholding requirement ceased on retirement

Ian Smith’s termination arrangements
Tan Smith’s service contract terminated on 10 November 2009 following his resignation by mutual agreement
The following terms apphed in respect of his loss of office

> payment of a cash sum on termination, equivalent to an unmitigated payment of seven months base salary and
benefits In additon, up to a further five monthly instalments equivalent to 3/12th of hus annual salary and benefits
will be payable commencing on 10 June 2010, with each instalment reduced by the gross amount of any
alternative employment consulting or advisory income recetved,

> payment of fees for legal and other advice,

> he would continue to be ehigible for a 2009 annual bonus under the AIP The bonus was determined tn
accordance with the terms of the AIP based on performance against KPOs and Reed Elsevier Group ple financial
performance for 2009 and the bonus due will be paid 1n March 2010,

> all unvested awards granted under the LTI plans, comprising options granted under ESOS and performance
shares granted under the 2008-10 and 2009-1 1 LTIP cycles lapsed i full on termination

Policy on external appomtments

The Commuttee believes that the expenience gained by allowing executive directors to serve as non-executive
directors on the boards of other organmisations 1s of benefit to Reed Elsevier Group ple Accordingly, executive
directors may, subject to the approval of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer, serve as non-executive
directors on the boards of up to two non-associated compames (of which only one may be to the board of a major
company) and they may retain remuneration arising from such appomntments

> Sir Crispin Davis 15 a non-executive director of GlaxoSmithKline plc and received a fee of £26,250 up to the
date of his retirement on 31 March 2009 (£86,250 during 2008 which related to the full calendar year)

> Andrew Prozes is a non-executive director of the Cott Corporation and recerved a fee of $127,285 (£81.073)
during 2009 ($153,790 (£83,130) during 2008)

> lan Smith 1s a non-executive director of Galiform plc and received a fee of £25,961 upto the date of his
resignation on 10 November 2009
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NON-EXECUTIVE DHRECTORS
Policy on non-executive directors’ fees

Reed Elsevier Group ple seeks to recruit non-executive directors with the experience 1o contribute to the boards of
a dual-listed global business and with a balance of personal skifls that will make a major contritbution to the boards
and their commitiee structures Non-executive directors, including the Chairman, are appomted to the boards of
Reed Elsevier Group plc, Reed Elsevier PLC and the Supervisory Board of Reed Elsevier NV Non-executive
directors” fees represent the directors’ membership of the three boards

The primary source for comparative market data is the practice of FTSE 50 companies although reference 1s also
made t0 AEX and US listed companies

Non-executive directors, including the Chairman, serve under letters of appointment and are not entitled to notice
of, or payments following, retirement from the board

Fee levels

Non-executive directors receive an annual fee in respect of their memberships of the boards of Reed Elsevier
PLC, Reed Elsevier NV and Reed Elsevier Group ple Non-executive directors are reimbursed for expenses
incurred 1n attending meetings They do not receive any performance related bonuses, pension provision, share
options or other forms of benefit Fees may be reviewed annually, although in practice they have changed on a
less frequent basis

Non-execuuve directors’ tees were last reviewed during 2007 and the annual fee rates applicable to non-executive
directors below have been 1n effect since 1 Janvary 2008 During 2009, the Board reviewed the Chairman’s fee in
the context ol prevailing fee levels provided by UK companies of a sim:lar size and complexity to Reed Elsevier
Group plc and the 1increased time commitment required by the Chairman going forward The Board approved a
Chairman’s fee of £500,000 per annum effective from 1 June 2009 following the appointment of Anthony
Habgood as Chairman of Reed Elsevier Group plc

Annnal fee 2010 Annual fee 2009
Chairman £500,000 from 1 June 2009 €350,000
€350,000 unta 21 April 2009*
Non-executive directors £55,000/€75,000 £55,000/€75,000
Chawrman of
— Audit Comnmuttee £15,000/€20,000 £i5,000/€20,000
— Remuneration Commuittee £15,000/€20,000 £15,000/€20 000

* Annual fee pard pro rata during 2009 to Jan Hornmen who stepped down from the Reed Elsevier Group plc board on 21 Apnl 2009

The Chairman of Reed Elsevier Group plc chairs the Nomnations Commuttee and does not recerve a separate fee
for his role as chairman of that committee
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Total Shareholder Return graphs

As required by the Large and Medivm-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008
the graphs in this section show the Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV total shareholder return
performance assuming dividends were reinvested They compare the Reed Elsevier PLC performance with that
achieved by the FTSE 100, and the Reed Elsevier NV performance with the performance achieved by the
Eurcnext Amsterdam (AEX) Index, over the five-year period from 31 December 2004 to 31 December 2009

For the five-year period from 31 December 2004, the TSR for Reed Elsevier PLC was 16%, against a FTSE 100
return of 35% For Reed Elsevier NV during the same period, TSR was minus 4% against an AEX Index return of
13% As Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV are members of the FTSE 100 and AEX Index respectively,
these indices are relevant

Reed Elsevier PLC v FTSE 100 -5 years Reed Elsevier NV v AEX - 5 years
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For the purposes of the charts, the total shareholder return 1s calculated on the basis of the average share price in
the 30 trading days prior to the respective year ends and on the assumption that dividends were reinvested

Remuneration and share tables

The information set out 1n this section forms part of the audited disclosures n this report For the purposes of the
disclosures 1n this section, the average exchange rates for the relevant year have been used

Dhirectors’ emoluments and fees
Aggregate emoluments

The emoluments of the directors of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV {including any entitiement to fees
or emoluments from either Reed Elsevier Group plc or Elsevier Reed Finance BV) were as follows

2009 2008

£°000 £ 000

Salaries and fees 3,973 4,322
Benefits 360 115
Payments for loss of office 1,124 -
Annual performance-related bonuses 2,294 5,547
Pension contributions 32 51
Payments to former directors* 284 -
Pension in respect of former direclor 1,034 429
Tota? 9,101 10,464

* Ths reflects notional dividend payments made 1o Patnck Tierney and Gerard van de Aast on the vesting of the 2006-08 cycle of LTIP of
£123,030 and £161,253 respectively

lan Smith’s employment ended on !0 November 2009 under the arrangements described on page 37 The
payments made to him on termination are included above under ‘Payments for loss of office’
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As described in the 2008 Remuneration Report {(page 37), Gerard van de Aast s employment terminated on 31

December 2008 He received a mitigated payment in lreu of notice of £391 000 equivalent to eight months’

service on termination which was patd i January 2009 and which 1s also included above under © Payments for loss

of office’

The 2009 increase in *Penston n respect of former directors’ compared to 2008 reflects pension payments made
during the year by Reed Elsevier Group plc under the unfunded secuon of the Reed Elsevier Group plc pension
scheme to Sir Crispin Davis (from 1 Apnil 2009) and Gerard van de Aast (from 1 January 2009)

Individual fees of non-executive directors

2009 2008

£ £

Mark Elliott 70,000 70,000
Anthony Habgood (from 1 June 2009) 291,667 -
Lisa Hook 55,000 55,000
Robert Polet 55,000 55,000
David Rexd 55,000 55,000
Lord Sharman 70,000 70,000
Ben van der Veer (from 3 September 2009) 22,321 -
Jan Hommen (until 21 April 2009) 104,167 277,778
Rolf Stomberg (until 23 Apr 2008) - 19,841
Total 723,155 602,619

Other required disclosures

No loans, advances or guarantees have been provided on behalf of any director

Details of long-term share-based incentives which vested and were exercised by the directors over shares 1n Reed
Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV during the year are shown on pages 42-47 The aggregate notional pre-tax
gam (excluding notional dividends) made by the dwrectors from such incentives during the year was £8,303,637
(2008 £1,857,517) The year on year change reflects in most part the vesting of the 2006-08 LTIP cycle during

the year following no LTIP vesting in 2008

Individual emoluments of executive directors

Notional
dwidends
on vested
2006-08  Payment for
Salary Benelits Bonus LTIPcycle loss of office Total 2009 Toal 2008
£ £ £ £ £ £ £
Mark Armour 613,440 21,855 420,206 172,049 - 1,227,550 1,193,051
Enk Engstrom 793,131« 25970 844,143 188,130 - 1,851,374 1,319,618
Andrew Prozes 774,000 16,583 470,399 191,716 - 1,452,698 1,189,120
Sir Crispin Davis (unul 31
March 2009) 295,275 7,301 131,397 331,268 - 765,241 2,285,147
lan Srmuth (1 January until
10 November 2010) 775,000 288,261 427,500 - 73325077 2,224,011 -
Total 3,250,846 359,970 2,293,645 883,163 733,250 7,520,874 5,986,936

* Thus refleets the pro rating of bus US dollar satary of $1,192,463 p a. until 19 November 2009 and has new sterling denominated salary of £1 000 000 p a for the

rematnder of 2009

** Includes a cash allowance of £232,500 paid in Lieu of pension (equivalent to 30% of salary eamed) and 2 payment of £41 538 in respect of accrued but untaken

holiday at the date of terrmnation.

*** As disclosed on poge 57 upto a further five instalments equivalent to 1/£2th of has annual salary and benefits may be payable Thas 15, however subject to
mutigation As tenmnanon of the serwvice ¢ontract occurred dunng the first termon office the terms agreed for loss of office e 1n accordance with best practice

provision 1} 2 8 of the Dutch Code

Benefits principally comprise the provision of a company car or car allowance. health and disabiiity insurance
The IFRS2 fair value of grants made under ESOS, BIP and LTIP during 2009, based on the number of awards as
disclosed 1n the tables on pages 42-47, to executive directors in office on 31 December 2009 1s £5,320,633 The
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number of awards that ulumately vest will depend upon performance against the conditions deseribed 1n the front

section of the remuneration report

With the inclusion of the payment for loss of office, lan Smuth was the highest patd director in 2009 All of the
share-based awards granted to lum during 2009 lapsed n full on termination and he made no notional pre-tax

gains on the vesting of any share-based incentives

Directors’ shareholdings in Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV
The interests of those individuals who were directors of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV as at 31

December 2009 1n the 1ssued share capital of the respective companies at the beginning and end of the year are

shown below

Reed Elsevter PLC Reed Elsevier NV

ordinary shares ardinary shares

1 January 31 December I January 31 December

2009* 2000 2009* 2009

Mark Armour 131,572 248,742 62,384 136,889
Mark Elhott - - - -
Enk Engstrom 77.856 107,040 211,760 365,580
Anthony Habgood - 30,000 - -
Lisa Hook - - - -
Robert Polet - - - -
Andrew Prozes 231.709 148,142 168,676 112 004
David Reid - - - -
Lord Sharman - - - -
Ben van der Veer — - 1,268 1,298

*On date of appomntment if subsequent to 1 January 2009

There have been no changes 1n the interests of the directors in the Reed Elsevier PLC or Reed Elsevier NV
ordinary shares at the date of this report

Share-based awards in Reed Elsevier PL.C and Reed Elsevier NV

Details of vested (in italics) and unvested options and unvested restricted shares and restricted shares vested
during the year (1n itahics) held by directers in Reed Elsevier PLC (PLC) and Reed Elsevier NV (NV) during 2009
are shown 1n the tables overleaf The vesting of outstanding unvested awards 15 subject to performance conditions
n accordance with the provisions of the respecuive plan rules For disclosure purposes, any PLC and NV ADRs
awarded to directors under the BIP have been converted into ordinary share equivalents At the date of this report
there have been no changes tn the options or restricted shares held by directors in office at 31 December 2009
other than those relating to the 2007-09 cycles of ESOS, BIP and LTIP as disclosed on pages 32-34 The market
price on award for BIP and LTIP, gains on the exercise of options and any notional gams on vesting are based on

the middle market price of the respective security
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Mark Armour

Options
No of No of No of Gross
options ophens options Market gamns No of
heldon  granted exercised  priceper  made on oplions Unvested Options
Option 1 Jan during  Option during shareat  exercise held on 31 options  exercisable
Year of grant over 2009 2009 price 2009 exercise £/€  Dec 2009 vesting on unt:l
ESOS 1999 PLCord  *33600 £5375 .
NV ord 20,244 €13 35 -
2001 PLC ord 62974 £6 590 62 974 23 Feb 2011
NV ord 44,882 €14 75 44 882 23 Feb 201!
2002 PLCord 74 000 £6 000 74 000 22 Feb 2012
NV ord 51926 €13 94 51,926 22 Feb 2012
2005  PLCord 150422 £5 335 150,422 17 Feb 2015
NV ard 102618 €11 31 102,618 17 Feb 2015
2006 PLCord 158836 £5 305 158,836 13 Mar 2016
NVord 106720 €147 106,720 13 Mar 2016
2007 PLC ord 130,740 £6 445 130,740 17 Feb 2010 17 Feh 2017
NV ord 86,347 €14 5§ 86,347 17 Feb 2010 17 Feb 2017
2008 PLC ord 144 000 £6275 144,000 21 Feb 2011 21 Feb 2018
NV ord 94,000 €12 21 94,000 21 Feb 2011 21 Feb 2018
2009  PLC ord 147,692 £5420 147,692 19 Feb 2012 19 Feb 2019
NV ord 95899  €9413 95,899 19 Feb 2012 19 Feb 2019
LTIP 2004 PLCord 290,481 £4872 290 481 19 Feb 2014
NV ord 199,467 €1057 199 467 19 Feb 2014
SAYE 2004  PLC ord 4329 £3776 4,329 £473 £4,216 - -
Total PLC ords 1,049,382 147,692 4,329 £4216 1,159,145
Total NV ords 706,204 95,899 781,859
*Options lapsed unexercised dunng the year
Shares
No of
No of No of  Market Ne of  Market Notional unvested
unvested shares price shares price gross shares
shares  awarded per vested per gauns at held on
Typeof heldon | during  share at durtng  shareat vesting 31 Dec Date of
Year of grant secunity  Jan 2009 2009 award 2009 vesung £i€ 2009 vesting
BIP 2006  PLCord 21,653 £5 470 21,653  £4940  £106,965 - 3 Apr 2009
NV ord 14,306 €l 74 14,306 £8 140 €116,451 - F Apr 2009
2007 PLC ord 19,859 £6 155 19,859 4 Apr 2010
NV ord 13,371 €13 49 13,371 4 Apr 2010
2008 PLCord 25,291 £6 600 25,291 8 Apr 2011
NV ord 16,993 €1244 16,993 8 Apr 2011
2009 PLC ord 27,886 £4 985 27,886 8 Apr 2012
NV ord 18,568 €8 201 18,568 8 Apr 2012
LTIP 2006 PLCord 75075 £5350 141891  £5245 £744,218 - 27 Feb 2009
NV ord 49 434 €1176 93,430  €8864  €828,163 - 27 Feb 2009
2007 PLCord 61,775 £6 445 61,775 17 Feb 2010
NV ord 40,799 €14 51 40,799 17 Feb 2010
2008 PLCord 67,000 £6275 67,000 2] Feb 2011
NV ard 44,000 €12 21 44,000 21 Feb 2011
2009  PLC ord 76,397  £5420 76,397 19 Feb 2012
NV ord 49605  €9415 49,605 19 Feb 2012
Total PLC ords 270,653 104,283 163,544 £851,184 278208
Total NV ords 178,903 68,173 107,736 €944.614 183,336
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Options
No of No of Mo of Gross No of
opltons options opttons Marhet gams options
held on granted exercised  price per made on held on Unvested Opticns
Optton 1 Jan during  Option donng  shareat exercise 31 Dec options  exercisable
Year of grant over 2009 2009 price 2009  exercise £ 2009  vesting on until
ESOS 2004 PLCord 63,460 £4780 63 460 23 Aug 2014
NVord 43 866 €10 30 43 866 23 Aug 2014
2005  PLCord 154517 £51335 154517 17 Feb 2015
NV ord 105412 €1131 105 442 17 Feb 2015
2006 PLCord 178895 £5305 178 895 13 Mar 2016
NVord 120,198 €11 47 120,798 13 Mar 2016
2007 PLC ord 130,060 £6 445 130,060 17 Feb 2010 17 Feb 2017
NV ord 85,897 €14 51 85,897 17Teb2010 17 Feb 2017
2008 PLCord 143,000 £6275 143,000 21 Feb 2011 21 Feb 2018
NV ord 94,000 €122 94,000 21 Feb 2011 21 Feb 2018
2009  PLCord 146,923  £5420 146,923 19 Feb 2012 19 Feb 2019
NV ord 95399  €9415 95,399 19 Feb20l2 19 Feb2019
LTIP 2004 PLCord 325,163 £478 325 163 23 Aug 2014
NV ord 224 766 €10 30 224 766 23 Aug 2014
Total PLC ords 995,095 146,923 1142018
Total NV ords 674,139 95399 769,538
Shares
No of
No of No of  Market No of  Market unvested
unvested shares price shares price Notonal shares
shares  awarded per vested per  gross gans held on
Typeof heldont during shareat during  shareat at vesting 31 Dec Date of
Year of grant SECUrIty Jan 2009 2009 award 2009 vesting £/€ 2009 vesting
BIP 2006 NV ord 29,442 €l 74 29,442 E8 14 €239,638 - 3 Apr 2009
2007 NV ord 27,572 €i349 27,572 4 Apr 2010
2008 NV ord 30,318 €1244 30,318 8 Apr 2011
2000 NV ord 57,216  €8201 57,216 8 Apr2012
LTIP 2006 PLCord 82092 £5 350 155,153 £5 245 £813,777 - 27 Feb 2009
NVord 54,055 €176 102,763 €8 864 €9035,573 - 27 Feb 2009
2007 PLC ord 61,453 £6 445 61,453 17 Feb 2010
NV ord 40 586 €14 51 40,586 17 Feb 2010
2008  PLCord 68,500 £6 275 68,500 21 Feb 2011
NV ord 45000 €12 21 45 000 21 Feb 211
2009 PLCord 103,902  £5420 103,902 19 Feb 2012
NV ord 67,465 €9 415 67,465 19 Feb 2012
Total PLC ords 212,045 103,902 155,153 £813,777 233,855
Total NV ords 226,973 124,681 131,608 €1,145231 268,157
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Options
Gross
No of No of  Market gams  No of
Ne of  options options price made options Unvested
options  granted exeraised per on held on options Options
Opuion held on 1 during  Option during  shareat  exeraise 31 Dec vesting exercisable
Year of grant over Jan 2009 2009 price 2009  exercise £/€ 2005 on unul
ESOS 2000 PLC ord 188,821 £5 660 188 821 9 Aug 2010
NVord 131,062 €13 60 131 062 9 Aug 2010
2004 PLC ord 83,785 £6 590 83 785 23 Feb 2011
NV ord 39714 €14 75 59 714 23 Feb 2011
2002 PLC ord 103,722 £6 000 103 722 22 Feb 2012
NV ord 72,783 €13 94 72,783 22 Feb 2012
2003 PLC ord 132,142 L1515 132 142 21 Feb 2013
NV ord 94,086 9 34 94,086 21 Feb 2013
2004 PLC ord 162 666 L4872 162 666 19 Feb 2014
NV ord 111,699 €10 57 111,699 19 Feb 2014
2005 PLC ord 154517 £5 335 154517 17 Feb 2015
NV ord 105,412 £113] 105412 17 Feb 2015
2006 PLC ord 182 303 £5 305 182 303 13 Mar 2016
NV ord 122 487 €147 122 487 13 Mar 2016
2007 PLC ord 132,537 £6 445 132,537 17 Feb 2010 17 Feb 2017
NV ord 87,533 €14 51 87,533 17TFeb2010 17 Feb 2017
2008 PLC ord 145,000 £6 275 145,000 21 Feb 2011 2i Feb 2018
NV ord 96,000 €1221 96,000 21 Feb 201} 21 Feb2018
2009 PLC ord 149,722 £5420 149,722 19 Feb 2012 19 Feb 2019
NV ord 91,216 €9415 97,216 19 Feb 2012 19 Feb 2019
LTIP 2004 PLC ord 304 558 £4872 304 558 19 Feb 2014
NV ord 209,133 €10 57 209 133 19 Feb 2014
Totat PLC ords 1,589,511 149,722 1,739,233
Total NV ords 1,089909 97,216 1,182,125
Shares
No of
No of No of Market No of Market unveste
unsested shares price shares price Notional  d shares
shares held  awarded per vested per grossgains  helden
Type of on 1 Jan during  share at during  share at at vesting 31 Dec Date of
Year of grant SECurity 2009 2009 award 2009 vesting £/€ 2009 vesting
BEIP 2006 PLC ord 26 400 £5470 26,400 494 £130,416 - 3 Apr 2009
NV ord 17636 €174 17,636 €8 14 €143,557 - 3 Apr 2009
2007 PLC ord 21,548 £6 155 21,548 4 Apr2010
NV ord 14,574 €13 49 14,574 4 Apr 2010
2008 PLC ord 20,030 £6 600 20,030 8 Apr2011
NV erd 13,505 €1244 13,505 8 Apr 2011
2006 PLC ord 32,335 £4 985 32,335 8 Apr2012
NV ord 21,626 €8 201 21,626 8 Apr2012
LTIP 2006 PLCord 83,656 £5 350 158,109 {3245 £829,282 - 27 Feb 2009
NVard 55085 €176 104,110 £3864 €922,8371 - 27 Feb 2009
2007 PLC ord 62,623 £6445 62,623 17 Feb 2010
NV ord 41 359 €14 51 41359 17 Feb 2010
2008 PLC ord 68,000 £6 275 68,000 21 Feb 2011
NV ord 44 500 €1221 44 500 21 Feb 2011
2009 PLC ord 105,881 £5420 105,881 19 Feb 2012
NV ord 68,750 €9415 68,750 19 Feb 2012
Total PLC ords 282,257 138,216 184,509 £939,698 310,417
Total NV ords 186,659 90,376 121,746 €1,066,388 204,314
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Sir Crispin Davis ceased to be a director on 19 March 2009 and formally retired on 31 March 2009 The tables
below reflect the position as at 31 March 2009

Options
Gross
No of No of Neo of gams No of
options ophions options Market made options Unvested
held on granted exercise  price per on  held on options Options
Oplion 1 Jan during  Option during sharcat  exercise 31 Mar vesting  exercisable
Year of grant over 2009 2009 price 2009 exercise £ 2009 on until
ESOS 1999 PLCord 321199 £467 150 £501 £51 321,049* f Sept 2009
NVord 191 550 €12 00 191,350* I Sept 2009
2000 PLC ord 171821 £4 365 171 821 2 May 2010
NV ord 120245 €1073 120,245 2 May 2010
2001 PLC ord 122,914 £6 390 122.9i4 23 Feb 2011
NVord 87,601 €14 75 87 601 23 Feb 2011
26002 PLC ord 148,500 £6 600 148,500 22 Feb 2012
Nvord 104 204 €13 94 104,204 22 Feb 2012
2003 PLCord 209,192 L4515 209,192 30 Sep 2012
NV ord 148 946 €9 34 148 946 30 Sep 2012
2004 PLC ord 303,303 £4 872 305,303 30 Sep 2012
NVord 209645 €1057 209,645 30 Sep 2012
2005 PLCord 292,409 £5 335 292,409 30 Sep 2012
NV ord 199,48i €1t 31 199,481 30 Sep 2012
2006 PLCord 305824 £3305 305824 30 Sep 2012
NV ord 205 480 €11 47 205,480 30 Sep 2012
2007  **PLCord 251,730 £6445 188,797 30 Sep 2012
NV ord 166,254 €14 5] 124,690 30 Sep 2012
2008  **PLCord 276,000 £6 275 115,000 30 Sep 2012
NV ord 182,000 €224 75,833 30 Sep 2012
LTIP 2004 PLC ord 571616 £4 872 371,616 30 Sep 2012
NVeord 392516 €1057 392,516 30 Sep 2012
SAYE 2006 PLC ord 3,793 £4 244 3,793 30 Sep 2009
Total PLC ords 2980,301 - 150 £51 2756218
Total NV ords 2,007 922 - 1,860,191
*The options lapsed unexercised on 1 September 2009
Shares
No of
No of No of  Market No of  Market unvested
unvested shares price shares price Notional shares
shares  awarded per vested per  gross gans at held on
Typeof heldon | duning  share at during  share at vesting 31 Mar Date of
Year of grant securtty  Jan 2009 2009 award 2009 vesung £/€ 2009 vesung
BIP 2006 PLC ord 42092 £5470 42,092 4 Apr 2009
NV ord 27,810 €11 74 27,810 4 Apr 2009
2007 PLC ord 74,708 £6 155 74,708 4 Apr 2010
2008 PLC ord 96,227 £6 600 96,227 8 Apr2011
LTIP 2006 PiCord 144,550 £5350 273,199  £5245 £1,432,929 - 27 Feb 2009
NV ord 95 181 €176 179892  £8864 €1,594 563 - 27 Feb 2009
2007 **pLCord 118942 £6 445 89,206 [7 Feb 2010
**NV ord 78,555 €14 51 58,916 17 Feb 2010
2008 #+pL.C ord 129,000 £6 275 53,750 21 Feb 2011
**NV ord 85,000 €1221 35,416 21 Feb 2011
Total PLC ords 605 519 - 273,199 £1432929 355983
Totat NV ords 286,546 - 179,892 €1,594,563 122,142

**All awards granted 1n 2007 and 2008 under ESOS and LTIP have been prorated for service
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lan Smith

Tan Smith ceased to be a director on 10 November 2009 The tables below reflect the positicn as at 10 November
2009

Options
No of No of No of Gross No of
options options options Market gams oplions Unvested
heldon  granted exeraised  priceper  made on held at options Options
Option 1 Jan during  Optien during shareat  exercise 10 Nov vesting  exercisable
Year of grant over 2009 2009 price 2009 exercise i€ 2009 on until
ESOS 2009 PLC ord §3.025 £5420 - Lapsed
NV ord 33,910 €9415 - Lapsed
SAYE 2009  PLCord 389  £4016 - Lapsed
Total PLC ords - 86,921 -
Total NV ords - 53,910 -
Shares
No of
No of No of  Market No of Notional  unvested
unvested shares price  shares Market gross shares
shares  awarded per  vested  price per gains at held on
Typeof heldonl dunng shareat  during shargat  vesting at 10 Nov Date of
Year of grant secunity  Jan 2009 2009 award 2009 vesting £ 2009 vesting
LTIP 2009 PLC ord 64541  £6275 - Lapsed
NV ord 43,956 €122 - Lapsed
2009 PLC ord 112,084  £5420 - Lapsed
NV ard 72,778  E941S - Lapsed
Total PLC ords - 176,625 -
Total NV ords - 116,734 -

*Pro-rated target grant under the 2008-10 LTIP cycle equivalent to 90% of salary

Employee Benefit Trust

Any ordinary shares required to satisfy entitlements under n:l cost restricted share or performance share awards
are provided by the Employee Benefit Trust (EBT) from market purchases As a potential beneficiary under the
EBT in the same way as other employees of Reed Elsevier Group ple, each executive director 15 deemed to be
interested 1n all the shares held by the EBT whach, at 31 December 2009, amounted to 15,350,605 Reed Elsevier
PLC ordinary shares (1 23% of issued share capital) and 8,219,196 Reed Elsevier NV ordinary shares (1 13% of
1ssued share capital)

Other required disclosures in respect of share-based awards

Options granted under ESOS vest on the third anniversary and expire on the tenth anmversary of the date of grant
The proportion of the target award that may vest in relation to the 2007, 2008 and 2009 LTIP grants 15 subject to
growth in Adjusted EPS and relative TSR measured against a group of comparator companies during the
performance period The number of shares subject to the target award are reflected in the above tables which are
determined by reference to an assumed achievement of growth in Adjusted EPS of 12% for the 2008 award (10%
for the 2007 LTIP grants) and median TSR, which would result in 100% of the award vesting Depending on
actual Adjusted EPS growth and TSR, the proportion of the award that may vest could be lower or higher The
maximum that can potentially vest in respect of LTIP 1s 189% of the number of shares comprised in the target
awards shown in the tables above In respect of ESOS and BIP, the maximum that can vest corresponds to the
number of shares disclosed in the table

Opuons under the SAYE scheme, in which all ehgible UK employees are invited to participate, are granted at a
maximum discount of 20% to the market price a1 time of grant They are normally exercisable after the expiry of
three or five years from the date of grant No performance targets are attached to these option grants as 1t 1s an all-
employee scheme

The middle market prices of a Reed Elsevier PLC ordinary share on the date of the 2009 award under BIP and

LTIP were £4 985 and £5 42 respectively The middle market prices of a Reed Elsevier NV ordinary share on the
date of the 2009 award under BIP and LTIP were €8 201 and €9 415 respectively
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The meddle market price of a Reed Elsevier PLC ordinary share during the year was in the range of £4 20 to
£5 595 and at 31 December 2009 was £5 115 The mtddle market price of a Reed Elsevier NV ordinary share
duning the year was tn the range of €7 19 w0 €9 415 and at 31 December 2009 was €8 601

Approved by the board of Reed Elsevier Group plc on 17 February 2010

Signed on behalf of the Remuneration Commuttee by Stephen J Cowden, Company Secretary [.d Owé\ﬂ-‘v

47




INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the members of Reed Elsevier Group ple

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Reed Elsevier Group plc for the year ended 31
December 2009 (“the consolidated financial statements’ ), which comprise the consolidated income statement, the
consohdated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of cash flows. the consolidated
statement of financ:al position, the consohdated statement of changes in equity, the group accounting policies, and
the related notes 1 to 34 The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation 1s applicable
law and International Financial Reporting Standards (* IFRSs™) as adopted by the European Union

We have reported separately on the company financial statements of Reed Elsevier Group plc for the year ended
31 December 2009

This report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006  Our audit work has been undertaken so that we muight state to the company’s members
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Responsibihities of directors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement, the directors are responsible for preparation
of the Annual Report and the consolidated finangial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view and for such internal control as 1t 15 determined necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

Auditors’ responsibitities

Our responsibility 15 10 audit the group financial statements 1n accordance with applicable law and internatonal
Standards on Auditing (UK and [reland) and to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements based
on the audit  Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s (APB"s) Ethical Standards
for Auditors and plan to perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatements

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit invelves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consclidated financial statements
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the consohdated financial statements are free from matenal
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies
are appropriate to the group’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall preseniation of the
financial statements

The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the nisks of matenal
muisstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error  In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant 1o the entity’s preparation of the financial statements 1n order to design
audit procedures that are appropniate n the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effecuiveness of the enuty’s internal control  In circumstances when the auditor also has a responsibility to
express an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control 1n conjunction with the audit of the financial
statements, the auditor shall omit the phrase that the auditors’ constderation of internal control 1s not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control

Opimmon on financial statements
In our opinion the group financial statements

. give a true and fair view of the state of the group s affaurs as at 31 December 2009 and of its profit for the
year then ended, and
have been properly prepared 1n accordance with [FRSs as adopted by the European Union, and
have been prepared 1n accordance with the requirements of the Compames Act 2006 and Article 4 of the
IAS Regulation

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Compames Act 2006

Tn our opinion the informatton given 1n the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial
statemnents are prepared 1s consistent with the group financial statements
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To the members of Reed Elsevier Group plc

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the Companies Act 2006, which requires us to report to you if, 1n our
opinien, we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

( »

ou enior stat r

For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London, United Kingdom

17 February 2010
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 December 2009

Revenue - continuing operations
Cost of sales

Gross profit
Selling and distribution costs

Admimstration and other expenses

Operating profit before joint ventures
Share of results of joint ventures

Operating profit - contimuing operations

Finance income
Finance costs

Net finance costs
Disposais and other non operating items

Profit before tax - continuing operations
Taxation

Net profit from continuing operations
Net profit from discontinued operations
Net profit for the year

Attributable to

Parent companies” shareholders

Nen-controlling interests

Net profit for the year

Note

2009 2008

£m £fm

6,011 5,281
(2,232) (1,902)

3,779 3,379
(1,111) {1,052)
(1,939) (1,482)

729 845

15 18

T44 863

11 53
(660) (553)
(649) (500)
(87 (93)

38 270
(8) (99)

30 171

- 18

30 189

26 185

4 4

30 189

The historical cost profits and losses are not matenally different from the results disclosed above
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2009

2009 2008
Note £m £fm
Net profit for the year 30 189
Exchange difference on translation of foreign operations 621 (1,535)
Cumulative exchange differences on disposal of foreign operations - 27
Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit pension schemes 6 6 (347)
Fair value movements on available for sale investments (52) 99)
Cumulative fair value movements on disposal of available for sale
investments 1 -
Fair value movements on cash flow hedges 62 (194}
Transfer to net profit from hedge reserve (net of tax) 19 43 (18)
Tax recogmised drrectly in equity 10 27 152
Other comprehensive income/(expense) for the year 654 (2,014)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) for the year 684 (1,825)
Attributable to
Parent companies shareholders 680 (1,829)
Non-controlling interests 4 4
Total comprehensive income/(expense) for the year 684 (1,825)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2009

Note
Cash flow from operating activities - continuing operations
Cash generated from operations 12
Interest paid
Interest received
Net interest paid to Reed Elsevier NV
Net tnterest paid to from Reed Elsevier PLC
Net interest paid o the Elsevier Reed Finance BV group
Tax pad

Net cash from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activittes - continuing operations

Acquisitions 12
Purchases of property plant and equipment

Expenditure on internally developed intangible assets

Purchase of investments

Net purchase of shares in Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from other disposals

Dividends received from joint ventures

Net cash used 1n 1nvesting activities

Cash flows from financing activities - continuing operations

Dividends paid

Distributions to non-controiling interests

{Decrease)ncrease in net borrowings from shareholders and fellow affiliates
Increase/(decrease) mn short term bank loans, overdrafts and commercial paper
Issuance of other loans

Repayment of other loans

Repayment of finance leases

Redemption of debt related denvauve financial instrument

Proceeds on 1ssue of ordinary shares

Net cash used in financing activities
Net cash used in discontinued operations 2

Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 12

Movement in cash and cash equivalents

At start of year

Increase/{decrease) 1n cash and cash equivalents
Exchange transtation ditfferences

Atend of year
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2009 2008
£m £m
1,550 1,401
219) (146)
6 31
21) (62)
N (1)
(437) (302)
(90) (160}
788 761
(94) (2,161)
(78) (57)
(163) (113)
2) (%)
- (54)

4 5

2 7

23 23
(308) (2,356)
- (1,453)

4 -
(504) 139
31 (429)
1,255 1,555
(1,843) 41
(2) (56)

- 51
913 -
(154) (604)
- (48)
326 (2,247)
244 2.345
326 (2,247)
(26} 146
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December 2009

2009 2008
Note £m £m
Non-current assets
Goodwill 15 4,342 4 905
Intangibie assets 16 3,486 4,233
[nvestments in joint ventures 17 135 145
Other investments 17 183 242
Property, plant and equipment 18 291 328
Net pension assets 6 110 152
Deferred tax assets 20 205 349
8,752 10,354
Current assets
Inventones and pre-publication costs 21 267 343
Trade and other recervables 22 1,477 1,675
Denvative financial mstruments 13 12
Amounts owed by Reed Elsevier PLC 796 540
Amounts owed by the Elsevier Reed Finance BV group 8 173
Cash and cash equivalenis 12 544 244
3,105 2,987
Assets held for sale 23 5 49
Total assets 11,862 13,390
Current habihities
Trade and other payables 24 2,413 2,719
Derivative financial instruments 70 207
Borrowings 25 250 63
Amounts owed to Reed Elsevier NV 1,121 1,518
Armounts owed to Reed Elsevier PLC 1,317 1,317
Amounts owed to Reed Holding BV 1 21
Amounts owed to the Elsevier Reed Finance BV group 25 2,140 1,750
Taxation 385 453
Provisions 27 134 79
7,831 8,127
Non-current habilities
Borrowings 25 2,656 3,718
Amounts owed to the Elsevier Reed Finance BV group 25 4,914 6,290
Deferred tax habihties 20 1,265 1,517
Net pension oblhigations 6 345 521
Provisions 27 61 35
9,241 12,081
Liabilities associated with assets held for sale 23 5 2
Total habilities 17,077 20,210
Net habihties (5,215) (6,820)
Capital and reserves
Share capital 2% - -
Share premium 30 1,237 324
Translation reserve 3t (668) (1.290)
Other reserves R (5,811) (5,882)
Consolidated shareholders’ deficit (5,242) (6,348)
Non-controlling mterests 27 28
Total deficit (5,215) (6,820)

The financial statements of Reed Elsevier Group ple, registered number 2746616 were approved by the board of
directors and authorised for 1ssue on 17 February 2010

M H Armour
Chief Financial Officer VUQNJ
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 31 December 2009

Consohdated

Non-

Share Share Translation Other , Total
capital premum reserve reserves sha reho;:]iz:'tsy COI:;:::E;IE equity
Note £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 2009 - 32 (1,290) {5,882) (6,848) 28 {6,820)
Total comprehensive
income for the year - - 621 59 630 4 684
Dividends declared 14 - - - - - ) 4)
Issue of ordinary shares,
net of expenses - 913 - - 9i3 - 913
Increase 1n share based
remuneration reserve - - - 16 16 - 16
Settlemnent of share
awards - - - 3) (3) - 3)
Exchange differences on
translation of capital and
TEServes - - 1 (1)) - [43] (1)
Batance at 31 December
2009 - 1,237 (668) (5,811) (5,242) 27 (5215)
Share Share Translation Other Schg?zﬁgﬁfgs contr olfho:é Total
capital premium reserve reserves equity interests equity
Note £m £m im fm fm £m £m
Balance at 1 January 2008 - 324 216 {4,152) (3,612) 11 (3,601)
Total comprehensive
mcome for the year - - (1,508) (321) (1,829) 4 {1,825)
Dividends declared 14 - - - {1,453) (1,453) - (1,453)
Increase in share based
remuneration reserve - - - 46 46 - 46
Settlernent of share
awards - - - - - - -
Acquisitions - - - - ~- 11 1
Exchange differences on
translation of capital and
TESETVEs - - 2 (2) - 2 2
Balance at 31 December
2008 - 324 (1,290) (5,882) (6,848) 28 (6,820)
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

The Reed Elsevier Group ple financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as endorsed by the European Union and as 1ssued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(1ASB), and are prepared on a going concern basis

The Reed Elsevier Group ple accounting policies under IFRS are set out below

In addition to the figures required to be reported by applicable accounting standards, adjusted operating profit figures
have been presented as an additional performance measure Adjusted operating profit 15 shown before the amortisation and
impatrment of acquired intangible assets and goodwill, excepiional restructuring and acquisition related costs, and 1s also
grossed up to exclude the equity share of taxes 1n joint ventures

[n preparing the consolidated financial statements, subsidianes of Reed Elsevier Group ple are accounted for under
the purchase method and investments in associates and joint ventures are accounted for under the equity method All
transactions and balances between the consohdated businesses are ehmnated

On acquisition of a subsidiary, or interest in an associate or joint venture, fair values, reflecting conditions at the date
of acquisiion are attributed to the net assets, including 1dentifiable intangible assets, acquired This includes those
adjustments made to bring accounting policies into line with those of the consolidated businesses The results of
subsicharies sold or acquired are included 1n the consolidated financial statements up to or from the date that control
passes from or to the consolhidated businesses

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of the consolidated businesses are 1dentified separately from Reed Elsevier
Group plc sharcholders’ equity Nen-controlling interests consist of the amount of those interests at the date of the
original acquisition and the minority share of changes in equity since the date of acquisition

Foreign exchange translation
The consolidated financial statements are presented in pounds sterling

Transactions n foreign currencies are recorded at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction At each
statement of financial posttion date monetary assets and habilities that are denominated 1n foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rate prevailing on the statement of financial position date Exchange differences ansing are recorded
in the income statement other than where hedge accounting apphes as set out below

Assets and habilities of foreign operations are translated at exchange rates prevailing on the statement of financial
position date Income and expense items and cash flows of foreign operations are translated at the average exchange
rate for the period Significant individual items of income and expense and cash flows in foreign operations are
translated at the rate prevailing on the date of transaction Exchange differences arising are classified as equity and
transferred to the translation reserve When foreign operations are disposed of, the related cumulative translation
differences are recognised within the income statement in the period

Reed Eisevier Group plc uses derivative financial instruments, primanly forward contracts, to hedge its exposure to
certain foreign exchange nsks Details of Reed Elsevier Group plc’s accounting poiicies in respect of derivative
financial instruments are set out below

Revenue

Revenue represents the invoiced value of sales less anticipated returns on transactions completed by performance,
excluding customer sales taxes and sales between the group

Revenues are recognised for the various categories of turnover as follows subscriptions — on penodic despatch of
subscribed product or rateably over the penod of the subscription where performance s not measurable by despatch,
circulation and transactional — on despatch or occurrence of the transaction, advertising — on publication or over the
period of online display, and exhibitions — on occurrence of the exhibition

Where sales consist of two or more independent components whose value can be reilably measured, revenue 1s
recogmsed on each component as 1t 15 completed by performance, based on attnbution of relative value
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Employee benefits

The expense of defined benefit pension schemes and other post-retirement employee benefits 1s determined using the
projected unit credit method and charged in the income statement as an operating expense, based on actuarial
assumptions reflecting market conditions at the beginning of the financial year Actuanal gamns and losses are
recognised in full 1n the statement of comprehensive income 1n the period in which they occur

Past service costs are recognised immediately to the extent that benefits have vested, or, if not vested, on a straight
line basis over the period until the benefits vest

Net penston obligations in respect of defined benefit schemes are included 1n the statement of financial position at the
present value of scheme habilities, less the fair value of scheme assets Where schemes are in surplus, 1 ¢ assets
exceed liabilities, the net pension assets are separately included 1n the statement of financial position Any net pension
asset 1s limited to the extent that the asset 1s recoverable through reductions in future contributions

The expense of defined contribution pension schemes and other employee benefits 15 charged in the income
statement as incurred |

Share based remuneration

The fair value of share based remuneration 1s determined at the date of grant and recognised as an expense 1n the
income statement on a straight line basis over the vesting period, taking account of the estimated number of shares
that are expected to vest Market based performance criteria are taken into account when determining the fair value at
the date of grant Non-market based performance criteria are taken into account when estimating the number of
shares expected to vest The fair value of share based remuneration 1s determined by use of a binomtral or Monte
Carlo simulation model as appropriate All Reed Elsevier Group plc group's share based remuneration 1s equity
settled by the ultimate holding companies, Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV, and 1s accounted for as equity
settled 1in Reed Elsevier Group plc

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that takes a
substantial period of time to bring to use are capitahised All other interest on borrowings 1s expensed as incurred
The cost of 1ssuing borrowings 15 generally expensed over the penod of borrowing so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of charge

Taxation

The tax expense represents the sum of the tax payable on the current year taxable profits adjustments 1n respect of
prior year taxable profits, and the movements on deferred tax that are recogmsed 1n the income statement

The tax payable on current year taxable profits is calculated using the applicable tax rates that have been enacted, or
substantively enacted, by the statement of financial position date

Deferred tax 15 the tax ansing on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and hiabthities in the financial
statements and their corresponding tax bases used 1n the computation of taxable profit, and 1s accounted for using the
balance sheet hability method Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that, based on current forecasts, 1t 15 probable that taxable profits
will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised Deferred tax 1s not recognised on
temporary differences ansing in respect of goodwill that 1s not deductible for tax purposes

Deferred tax 1s calculated using tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the hability 1s expected to be
settled ot the asset reahised Full provision 1s made for deferred tax which would become payable on the distribution
of retained profits from foreign subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures

Movements in deferred tax are charged or credited 1n the income statement, except when they relate to items
charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax 1s also recognised in equity Deferred tax credits
i respect of share based remuneration are recognised i equity to the extent that expected tax deductions exceed the
related expense
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

GoodwiHl

On the acquisition of a subsidiary or business, the purchase consideration 1s allocated between the net tangible and
intangible assets on a fair value basis, with any excess purchase consideration representing goodwill Goodwill
ansing on acquisitions also includes amounts corresponding to deferred tax habilities recogmsed in respect of
acquired intangible assets

Goodwili 1s recogmsed as an asset and reviewed for impairment at least annually Any impairment 1s recogmsed
immediately in the income statement and not subsequently reversed

On disposal of a subsidary or business, the attnibutable amount of goodwill 1s included in the determination of the
profit or loss on disposal

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired as part of a business combination are stated in the statement of financial position at their
fair value as at the date of acquisttion, less accumulated amortisation Internally gencrated intang;ble assets are stated 1n
the statement of financial posttion at the directly attributable cost of creation of the asset, less accumulated amortisation

Intangible assets acquired as part of business combnations comprise market related assets (e g trade marks,
imprints, brands), customer related assets (¢ g subscription bases, customer lists, customer relationshps), editorial
content, software and systems (e g application infrastructure, product delivery platforms in-process research and
development), contract based assets (e g publishing rights, exhibition nghts, supply contracts), and other intangsble
assets Internally generated intangible assets typically comprise software and systems development where an
identifiable asset 1s created that 1s probable to generate future economic benefits

Intangible assets, other than brands and imprnts determined to have indefinite hves, are amortised systematically
over their esimated useful lives The estimated useful hives of intangible assets with fimite Iives are as follows market
and customer related assets — 3 to 40 years, content, software and other acquired intangible assets — 3 to 20 years, and
mternally developed intangible assets — 3 to 10 years Brands and imprints determined to have indefinite lives are not
amortsed and are subject to impairment review at teast annually

Property, plant and eqmipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated 1n the statement of financial position at cost less accumulated
depreciation Ne depreciation is provided on freehold land Freehold buildings and long leases are depreciated
over their estirnated useful lives up to a maximum of 50 years Short leases are written off over the duration of the
lease Depreciation 1s provided on other assets on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows
teasehold improvements — shorter of Ife of lease and 10 years, plant — 3 to 20 years, office furniture. fixtures and
fittings — 5 to 10 years, computer systems, communication networks and equipment — 3 to 7 years

Investments

Investments, other than investments 1n joint ventures and associates, are stated in the statement of financial position at
fair value Investments held as part of the venture capital portfolio are classified as held for trading, with changes 1n
fair value reported through the income statement All other investments are classified as available for sale with
changes in fair value recogmised directly 1n equity untal the investment 1s disposed of or is determined to be impaired,
at which ume the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity 1s brought into the net profit or loss for the
pertod All items recognised in the income statement relating to investments other than investments in joint ventures
and associates, are reported as non operating 1tems

Available for sale investments and venture capital investments held for trading represent investments in listed and
unlisted securities The fair value of listed securities 1s determined based on quoted market prices, and of unhisted
securities on management s estimate of fair value based on standard valuation techniques, including market
compartsons and discounting of future cash flows, having regard to maximising the use of observable inputs and
acdjusting for risk Independent valuation experts are used as appropnate

Shares of the parent compames, Reed Eisevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV, that are purchased by the Reed Elsevier Group
pic Employee Benefit Trust are classified as investments available for sale and are held at market value with changes m fair
value recognised directly in equity
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Investments 1n joint ventures and associates are accounted for under the equity method and stated in the statement of
financtal position at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in Reed Elsevier Group ple’s share of net assets,
less any impairment 1n value

Impairment

At each statement of financial position date, reviews are carnied out of the carying amounts of tangible and intangible
assets and goodwill to determine whether there 1s any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell,
of the asset 15 estimated 1in order to determine the extent, if any, of the impairment loss Where the asset does not
generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, value 1n use estimates are made based on the cash flows of
the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life are tested for
imparrment at least annually and whenever there is any indication that the asset may be impaired

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit is estimated to be less than its net carrying amount, the
net carrying amount of the asset or cash generating umit 1s reduced to 1ts recoverable amount Impairment losses are
recognised immediately in the income statement 1n administration and other expenses

Inventories and pre-publication costs

Inventories and pre-publication costs are stated at the lower of cost, including appropriate attributable overheads, and
estimated net realisable value Pre-publication costs, representing costs incurred in the origination of content prior to
publication, are expensed systematically reflecting the expected sales profile over the esimated economic hives of
the related products, generally up to five years

Leases

Assets held under leases which confer nghts and obligations similar to those attaching to owned assets are classified as
assets held under finance leases and capitahised within property, plant and equipment or software and the corresponding
liability to pay rentals 1s shown net of interest in the statement of financial position as obligations under finance

leases The capitahised value of the assets 1s depreciated on a straight line basis over the shorter of the periods of the
leases or the useful lives of the assets concerned The interest element of the lease payments 1s allocated so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of charge

Operating lease rentals are charged to the income statement on a straight line basis over the penod of the leases Rental
income from operating leases is recognised on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances, call deposits and other short term highty hiquid investments and are
held in the statement of financial position at fair value

Assets held for sale

Assets of businesses that are available for immediate sate in their current condition and for which a sales process has
been mmitiated are classified as assets held for sale, and are carried at the lower of amortised cost and fair value less
costs to sell Non-current assets are not amortised or depreciated following their classification as held for sale
Liabiliues of businesses held for sale are also separately classified on the statement of financial position

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation 1s a component of the group that represents a separate magor line of business or geographical
area of operations that has been disposed of or 1s held for sale When an operation 1s classified as discontinued, the
comparative income statement and statement of cash flows are re-presented as if the operation had been discontinued
from the start of the comparative period
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Fmancial instruments

Financial instruments comprise investments (other than investments in joint ventures or associates), trade receivables,
cash and cash equivalents, payables and accruals provisions borrowings and denvative financial instruments

Investments {other than investments in joint ventures and associates) are classified as either held for trading or
available for sale, as described above

Trade recervables are carried tn the statement of financial position at invorced value less allowance for estimated
urecoverable amounts Irrecoverable amounts are estimated based on the ageing of trade receivables, expenence and
circumstance

Borrowings (other than fixed rate borrowings in designated hedging relationships and for which the carrying value 1s
adjusted to reflect changes in the farr value of the hedged nisk), payables, accruals and provisions are recorded imuially at
fair value and subsequently at amortised cost

Dertvative financial instruments are used to hedge interest rate and foreign exchange risks Changes in the fair value of
denvative financial instruments that are designated and effective as hedges of future cash flows are recogmsed (net of
tax) directly in equity in the hedge reserve If a hedged firm commitment or forecasted transaction results in the
recognition of a non financial asset or hability, then, at the time that the asset or hability 1s recognised, the associated
gains or losses on the dervative that had previously been recogmsed in equity are included in the mitial measurement
of the asset or hiability For hedges that do not result in the recogmuon of an asset or a hability, amounts deferred in
equity are recognised in the mcome statement in the same period in which the hedged item affects net profit or

loss Any effective portion of hedges 1s recognised immediately 1n the income statement

Derivative financial instruments that are not designated as hedging instruments are classified as held for trading and
recorded in the statemnent of financial position at fair value with changes in fair value recogmsed 1n the income
statement

Where an effective hedge 15 in place against changes wn the fair value of fixed rate borrowmngs the hedged borrowings
are adjusted for changes tn fair value attnbutable to the nsk being hedged with a corresponding income or expense
ncluded in the iIncome statement within finance costs The offsetting gains or losses from remeasuring the fair value
of the related derivatives are also recognised 1n the income statement within finance costs When the related
derivative expires, 1s sold or terminated, or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting, the cumulative change n
fair value of the hedged borrowing 1s amortised tn the income statement over the pertod to maturity of the borrowing
using the effective interest method

The fair values of 1nterest rate swaps, interest rate options, forward rate agreements and forward foreign exchange
contracts represent the replacement costs calculated using observable market rates of interest and exchange The fair
value of long term borrowings 1s calculated by discounting expected future cash flows at observable market rates
(These instruments are accordingly classified as level 2 1n the IFRS7 faur value hierarchy )

Cash flow hedge accounting is discontinued when a hedging instrument expires or 1s sold, terminated or
exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting At that iime, any cumulative gatn or loss on the hedging
instrument recognised 0 equity 1s either retained 1n equity until the firm commitment or forecasted transaction
occurs, or, where a hedged transaction 15 no longer expected to occur, 15 immediately credited or expensed in the
income statement

Provisions

Provisions are recogmsed when a present obligation exists as a result of a past event, and 1t 1s probable that
settlernent of the obhigation will be required Provisions are measured at the best esumate of the expenditure required
to settle the obligation at the statement of financial position date
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Crnitical judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The most significant accounting policies in determining the financial condition and results of the Reed Elsevier Group
plc, and those requiring the most subjective or complex judgment relate to the valuation of goodwill and intangible
assets, share based remuneration, penstons, taxation and property provisioning The carrying amounts of goodwill
and 1ntangible assets are reviewed at least annually, the key areas of judgment being n relation to the forecast long
term growth rates and the appropnate discount rates to be applied to forecast cash flows The charge for share based
remuneration 1s determined based on the number of awards that are expected to vest and the fair value of awards at the
date of grant by use of binomial or Monte Carlo simulation models as appropnate, which require judgments to be
made regarding expecled levels of vesting, share price volatihity, dividend yield, risk free rates of return and expected
option lives Key estimates 1n accounting for defined benefit pension schemes are determined tn conjunction with
independent actuaries and wnclude the life expectancy of members expected salary and pension increases inflation, the
return on scheme assets and the rate at which future pension payments are discounted Reed Elsevier Group plc’s policy
15 to make provision for tax uncertainties where it 1s considered probable that tax payments may arise  Property
provisions are determined based on management’s estimates of future sublease income

Standards and amendments effective for the year

IFRS8 — Operating Segments sets out requirements for disclosure of information about an entity s operating segments,
uts products and services, the geographical areas in which 1t operates, and its major customers [FRSS replaces
[AS14 — Segment Reporting Adoption of this standard has not changed significantly the disclosure of information 1n
respect of Reed Elsevier Group ple group s operating segments

Amendment to [AS23 — Borrowing Costs removes the option to immediately recognise as an expense borrowing costs
relating to assets requiring a substantial period of ime to get ready for use or sale and requires such costs to be
capitahised Adoption of this standard has required a change of accounting policy on borrowing costs and has not
resulted in any significant borrowing costs being capitalised in the year ended 31 December 2009

Amendment to [AS] — Presentation of Financial Statements introduces changes to the way in which movements in
equity must be disclosed and requires an entity to disclose separately each component of other comprehensive income
not recogmsed 1n profit or loss The amendment also requires disclosure of the amount of income tax relating to each
component of other comprehensive income as well as several other minor disclosure amendments

Amendment to [FRS2Z — Share Based Payment clanfies that cancellations of share options, whether by the entity
or holder, should be accounted for as an acceleration of the vesting period The amendment also restricts the
defimtion of a vesting condition to a condition that includes an explicit or implicit requirement to provide services Any
other conditions are non-vesung condiions, which have to be taken into account to determine the fair value of the equity
instruments granted The amendment has not significantly impacted the measurement, presentation or disclosure of
share based remuneration in the financial statements

Amendment to [FRS7 — Financial Instruments Disclosures requires financial instruments held at fair value to be
disclosed according to a three tier hierarchy depending on the mputs used n their valuation Adoption of this
amendment has resulted in minor changes to Reed Elsevter Group plc group’s disclosures for financial instruments

Standards, amendments and interpretations not yet effective

New accounting standards and amendments and their expected impact on the future accounting policies and reporting of
Reed Elsevier Group ple are set out below

Amendments to IFRS3 - Business Combinations (effective for the 2010 financial year) The amendiments introduce
changes that will require future transaction related costs (including professional fees) to be expensed and
adjustments to contingent consideration to be recognised tn income and will allow non -controlling interests to
be measured enther at fair value or the proportionate share of net 1dentifiable assets

Amendments to LAS27 — Consolhidated and Separate Financ:al Statements (effecuve for the 2010 financial year) The
amendments 1ntroduce changes to the accounting for partial disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
Adoption of these amendments 1s not expected to significantly impact the measurement, presentation or disclosure of
future disposals

Amendment to [AS39 ~ Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement (effecuve for the 2010 financial year)
The amendment clanfies the ehigiility of hedge accounting for inflation and hedging with options Adoptien of this




ACCOUNTING POLICIES

amendment 1s not expected to have a significant impact on the measwrement, presentation or disclosure of financial
nstruments 1 the financial statements

Amendment to 1AS32 — Financial Instruments Presentation {effective from the 2010 financial year) The
amendment provides relief to companies making rights tssues in a currency other than their functional currency
This amendment does not affect Reed Elsevier as shares are not 1ssued n currencies other than its functional
currencies

IFRS9 — Financial Instruments (effective from the 2013 financial year, with earlier adoption permitted) The
standard replaces the existing classification and measurement requirements 1n [AS39 for financial assets by
requiring entities to classify them as being measured either at amortised cost or fair value depending on the
business model and contractual cash flow characteristics of the asset  Adoption of this standard 1s not expected
to have a significant impact on the measurement, presentation or disclosure of financial assets in the financial
statements

Additionally, a number of interpretations have been 1ssued which are not expected to have any significant impact on
Reed Elsevier Group ple s accounting policies and reporting
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2009

Segment analysis

Reed Elsevier Group plc has adopted [FRS8 Operating Segments with effect from | January 2009 and this has not
resulted 1n a change to reported segments Reed Elsevier Group plc’s reported segments are based on the internal
reporting structure and financial mformatron provided to the Chief Executive Officer and Board

Reed Elsevier Group plc 1s a publisher and information provider organised as four business segments Elsevier,
comprising scientific, technical and medical publishing, LexisNexis providing legal, tax, regulatory, nisk information and
analytics, and business information solutions to professional business and government customers, Reed Exhibitions,
organising trade exhibitions and conferences, and Reed Business Information providing information and marketing
sofutions to business professionals

Adjusted operating profit figures are presented as additional performance measures used by management They are
stated before amortisation and impairment of acquired intangible assets and goedwill. exceptional restructuring and
acquisition related costs. and are grossed up to exclude the equity share of taxes in joint ventures Esceptional
restructuring costs relate to the major restructuring programmes announced in February 2008 and 2009 Exceptional
restructuring costs principally comprise severance, outsourcing migration and associated property costs  Adjusted
operating profit 1s reconciled to operating profit in note 11

Revenue Operating profit Adjusted operating profit
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

£m £im £m £im £m £m
Business segment
Elsevier 1,925 1,647 518 407 637 521
LexisNexis 2,557 1,940 337 291 665 513
Reed Extibitions 638 707 74 118 147 178
Reed Business [nformation 891 987 (163) 54 88 125
Sub-total 6,011 5,281 766 870 1,537 1,337
Corporate costs - - (28) (46) (28) (46)
Unallocated net pension credit - - 6 39 6 39
lotal 6,011 5,281 744 863 1,515 1,330
Geographical origin
North Amernica 3,228 2,544 248 333 774 617
United Kingdom 897 905 184 179 259 235
T'he Netherlands 662 594 204 175 228 202
Rest of Europe 818 865 62 128 167 204
Rest of world 406 373 46 48 87 72
Total 6,011 5,281 744 863 1,515 1,330

Revenue 1s analysed before the £118m (2008 £104m) share of jomt ventures’ revenue, of which £25m (2008 £23m)
relates to LexisNexis, principally to Giuffré, £90m (2008 £80m) relates to Reed Extubitions, principally to exhibition
joint ventures, and £3m (2008 £1m) relates to Reed Business [nformation

Share of post-tax results of joint ventures of £15m (2008 £18m) wcluded in operating profit comprises £4m (2008
£4m) relating to LexisNexis, £10m (2008 £14m) relaung to Reed Exhibitions and £1m (2008 mnil) relating to Reed
Business Information The unallocated net pension credit of £6m (2008 £39m) comprises the expected return on
pension scheme assets of £189m (2008 £219m) less interest on pension scheme Liabilities of £183m (2008 £180m)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2009

Segment analysis (continued)

2009 2008
£m £m
Analysis of revenue by geographical market
North America 3302 2,616
United Kingdom 510 577
The Netherlands 242 234
Rest of Europe 1,121 1,126
Rest of world 836 728
Total 6,011 5,281
2009 2008
£m £m
Analysis of revenue by type
Subscriptions 2,682 2,356
Circulation/transactions 1,679 L.116
Adverusing 584 737
Exhibitions 626 702
Other 440 370
Total 6,011 5,281
Amortisation and
Expenditure on impairment of
acquired goodwill and Capital expenditure acquired intangible Depreciation and
intangtble assets addstions assets and goodwill other amortisation
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Business segment
Elsevier 4 31 72 54 66 65 72 50
LexisNexis 7 2,705 139 74 231 137 29 68
Reed Exhibitions 12 58 11 11 63 46 7 6
Reed Business Information - 64 18 26 173 31 29 25
Sub-total 23 2,858 240 165 533 279 207 149
Corporate - - 17 7 - - 15 17
Total 23 2,858 257 172 533 279 222 166

Capital expenditure compnses additions to property. plant and equipment and internally developed intangible assets
Amorusatton and impairment of acquired intangible assets and goodwill includes amounts in respect of joint ventures of
£12m (2008 £3m)in Reed Exhibitions Other than the depreciation, amortisation and impatrment above, non cash
rtems include £16m (2008 £46m) relating to the recogmtion of share based remuneration and comprise £3m (2008
£7m} 0 Elsevier, £7m (2008 £8m) in LexisNexis, £2m (2008 £6m) in Reed Business Informatien, £2m (2008 £3m) in
Reed Exhibitions and £2m (2008 £22m) 1n Corporate
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1 Segment analysis (continued)

Total assets

2009 2008

£m £m

Business segment
Elsevier 2,752 3,081
LexisNexis 5,872 6,758
Reed Exhibitions 728 862
Reed Business Information 551 868
Sub-total 9,903 11,569
Taxation 205 349
Cash 544 244
Balances with fellow associated undertakings 804 713
Net pension assets 110 152
Assets held for sale 5 49
Other assets 291 314
Total 11,862 13,390
Geographtcal location
North Amernica 7,568 9,103
United Kingdom 1,962 1,628
The Netherlands 685 747
Rest of Europe 1,127 1,301
Rest of world 520 611
Total 11,862 13,390

Investments in joint ventures of £135m (2008 £145m) included 1n segment assets above comprise £38m (2008 £42m)
relating to LexisNexis, £92m (2008 £99m) relating 1o Reed Extubitions and £5m (2008 £4m) relating to Reed
Business Information
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Discontinued operations

Discontinued operations comprise the results of the Education division the disposal of which completed 1n January 2008
with the sale of the educational assessment business The disposal of the US K-12 Schools Education and International
businesses had completed in 2007

2009 2008
£m fm
Net profit from discontmued operations
Revenue - 12
Operating costs - (12)
Operating profit and profit before tax - -
Taxation - -
Profit after taxation - -
Gain on disposals - 67
T'ax on disposals - (49)
Net profit from discontinued operations - 18
2009 2008
£m £m
Cash flows from discontinued operations
Net cash flow from operauing activities - 2
Net cash flow used n investing activities - (50)
Net cash flow from financing activities - -
Net movement 1n cash and cash equivalents - (48)

Net cash flow from investing activities 1n 2008 includes cash proceeds, net of expenses, on the completed disposals of
£270m and taxes paid on completed disposals of £320m
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Operating profit

Operating profit from continuing operations 1s stated after charging/(crediting) the following

2009 2008

Note £m £m
Staff costs
Wages and salaries 1,599 1,375
Social security costs 181 162
Pensions 6 42 59
Share based remuneration 7 16 46
Total staff costs 1,838 1,642
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 16 352 267
Share of joint ventures® amortisation of acquired intangible assets 4 3
[mpairment of acquired intangible assets and goodwill 15,16 169 9
Impairment of goodwill 1n joint ventures 8 -
Amortisation of internatly developed intangible assets 16 138 87
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 18 84 79
Fotal depreciation, amortisation and impaiwrment 755 445
Other expenses and income
Pre-publication costs, inventory expenses and other cost of sales 2,232 1,902
Royalties payable to the Elsevier Reed Finance BV group 33 27
Operating lease rentals expense 131 1t6
Operating lease rentals income (12) (13}

Depreciation, amortisation and imparrment charges are included within administration and other expenses

Staff costs for discontinued operations for the year ended 31 December 2008 were £5m for wages and salaries, nul for
social security costs, mi for penstons and ml for share based remuneration

Auditors’ remuneration

2009 2008
£m £m

Auditors' remuneration
For audit services 43 46
For non audit services 1.2 21
Total auditors' remuneration 55 67

Audrtors’ remuneration, for audit services comprises £0 4m {2008 £0 4m) payable to the auditors of the parent

company and £3 9m (2008 £4 2m) payable to the aud:tors of the parent company and their associates for the audit of the
financial statements of the operating and financing businesses, including the review and testing of internal controls over
financial reporuing in accordance with the US Sarbanes-Oxley Act Auditors’ remuneration for non audit services
comprises £0 7m (2008 £0 ém) for taxation services, £0 1m (2008 £1 3m) for due dihigence and other transaction
related services and £0 4m (2008 £0 2m) for other non audit services
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Personnel

Number of people employed - continuing operations

At 31 December Average during the year

2009 2008 009 2008
Business segment
Elsevier 6,600 7.000 6,700 7,000
LexisNexis 15,200 15,900 15,400 13,800
Reed Exhibitions 2,500 2,700 2,600 2,700
Reed Business Information 6,900 8,200 7,500 8,300
Sub-total 31,200 33 800 32,200 31,800
Corporate/shared functions 9200 800 900 800
Total 32,100 34,600 33,100 32,600
Geographical location
North America 17,600 18,800 18,000 16,600
United Kingdom 4,900 5,300 5,000 5,400
The Netherlands 2,000 2,300 2,100 2,400
Rest of Europe 4,100 4,600 4,500 4,700
Rest of world 3,500 3,600 3,500 3,500
Total 32,100 34,600 33,100 32,600

Pension schemes

A number of pension schemes are operated around the world The major schemes are of the defined benefit type with
assets held in separate trustee admumistered funds The largest schemes, which cover the majonty of employees, are 1n
the UK, the US and the Netherlands Under these plans, employees are entitled to retirement benefits dependent on the
number of years service provided

The principal assumptions for the purpose of valuation under IAS19 - Employee Benefits are determined for each scheme
in conjunction with the respective schemes’ independent actuaries and are presented below as the weighted average
of the various defined benefit pension schemes The defined benefit pension expense for each year 1s based on the
assumptions and scheme valuations set at 31 December of the prior year

As at 31 December

2009 2008 2007
Discount rate S8% 62% 59%
Expected rate of return on scheme assets 70% 71% 71%
Expected rate of salary increases 4 0% 37% 4 4%
Inflation 3 1% 27% 31%
Future pension increases 3 1% 28% 32%

The expected rates of return on individual categories of scheme assets are determined by reference to relevant market
indices and market expectations of real rates of return  The overall expected rate of return on scheme assets 15 based on
the weighted average of each asset category

Mortality assumptions used 1n assessing defined benefit obligations make allowance for future improvements in
longevity and have been determined by reference to applicable mortality statistics and the actuaries’ expectations for
each scheme The average life expectancies assumed in the valuation of the defined benefit obligations are set out
below
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Pension schemes (contrnued)

2009 2008

Male Female Male Female

Average Iife expectancy (at 31 December) (years) (years) (years) (years)
Member currently aged 60 88 87 86 87
Member currently aged 45 88 87 86 87

The pension expense recognised within the income statement comprises

2009 2008

£m £m

Service cost (including curtailment credits of £43m (2008 nil)) 24 75
Interest on penston scheme liabilities 183 180
Expected return on scheme assets (189) (219)
Net defined benefit pension expense 18 36
Defined contribution pension expense 24 23
Total pension expense 42 59
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Pension schemes (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2009

The amount recognised in the statement of financial posiuon 1n respect of defined benefit pension schemes at
the start and end of the year and the movements during the year were as follows

At start of year

Service cost

Interest on pension scheme
habihities

Expected return on scheme assets

Actuanal {loss)/gain

Contnbutions by employer

Contnibutions by employees

Benefits pad

Acquisitions

Curtailment on disposal of
operations

Exchange translation differences

At end of year

2009 2008
Defined  Fair value of Net Defined  Fair vatue of Net
benefit scheme pension benefit scheme pension
obligations assets obligations obligations assets obhgations
£m £m £m £m £m £m
(3,051) 2,682 {(369) (2,968} 3,018 50
(24) - 24) (R)] - (75)
(183) - (183) (180) - (180)
- 189 189 - 219 219
(295} 301 6 418 (765) (347)
- 101 101 - 79 79
(12) 12 - (13) 13 -
134 (134) - 119 (119) -
- - - &) - )
- - - 3 - 3
129 (84) 45 (346) 237 (109)
(3,302) 3,067 (235) (3.051) 2.682 (369)

The net penston obligations of £235m (2008 £369m) at 31 December 2009 comprise schemes n deficit with net pension
obhigations of £345m (2008 £521m) and schemes in surplus with net pension assets of £110m (2008 £152m)

As at 31 December 2009 the defined benefit obligations compnse £3,172m (2008 £2,923m)1n relation to funded
schemes and £130m (2008 £128m) 1n relation to unfunded schemes The weighted average duration of defined
benefit scheme habilities 15 19 years (2008 19 years) Deferred tax ltabilities of £31m (2008 £44m) and deferred tax
assets of £122m (2008 £190m) are recogrised in respect of the pension scheme surpluses and deficits respectively
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Pension schemes (continued)

The fair value of scheme assets held as equities, bonds and other assets, and thesr expected rates of return as at 31
December, 1s shown below

2009 2008
Expected

rate of  Fawrvalueof  Proportion Expected Faur value of Proportion
return on scheme of total rate of return scheme of totat
scheme assets scheme on scheme assets scheme
assets £m assets assets Em assets
Equities 8.6% 1,827 60% 86% 1,408 52%
Bonds 4.5% 1,069 35% 4 3% 1167 44%
Other 53% 171 5% 55% 107 4%
Total 70% 3,067 100% 7 1% 2,682 100%

The actual return on scheme assets for the year ended 31 December 2009 was a £490m gain (2008 £546m loss)

A summary of penston balances in respect of funded and unfunded schemes for the five years ended 31 December 2009
1s set out below

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

£m fm fm £m fm

Fair value of scheme assets 3.067 2,682 3,018 2772 2,575
Defined benefit obligations (3,302) (3,051) (2,968) (3,008) (2,980)
Net penston {obhgations)/surplus (235) {(369) 50 (236) (405)

Gains and losses arising on the revaluation of pension scheme assets and hiabilities that have been recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income are set out below

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
£m fm £m £m £m
Gains and losses arising during the year
Experience gains/(losses) on scheme
liabilities 18 &) (28) 30 (25)
Experience gains/{losses) on scheme assets 301 {765) 34 99 230
Actuanal gains/(losses) arising on the present
value of scheme liabilities due to changes 1n
- discount rates (249) 202 367 198 217
- inflation {124) 198 (152) 77 -
- hife expectancy and other actuarial 60 27 3 1) 25)
assumptions
6 (347) 224 139 37
Net cumulative (losses)/gains at start of year (95) 252 28 (111) (74)
Net cumulauve (losses)/gains at end of year (89) 95) 252 28 (111)

Regular contributions to defined benefit pension schemes in 2010 are expected 1o be approxmately £89m
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Pension schemes (confinued)
Sensitivity analysis

Valuation of the Reed Eisevier Group ple group s pension scheme habiliies involves judgement about uncertamn
events, including the 1ife expectancy of the members, salary and pension increases, inflation and the rate at which the
future pension payments are discounted Estimates are used for each of these factors, determined in conjunction with
independent actuanes Differences arising from actual experience or future changes 1n assumptions may matenally
affect future pension charges In particular, changes in assumptions for discount rates, inflation and hfe expectancies
would have the following approximate effects on the annual net penston expense and the defined benefit pension
obhigations

£m

Increase/decrease of 0 25% in the discount rate

Decrease/increase in annual net pension expense 5

Decrease/increase in defined benefit pension obhigations 143
Increase/decrease of one year 1 assumed hfe expectancy

Increase/decrease in annual net pension expense 5

Increase/decrease m defined benefit pension obligations 75
Increase/decrease of 0 25% n the expected inflation rate

Increase/decrease in annual net pension expense 6

Increase/decrease in defined benefit pension obligations 122

Additonally, the annual net pension expense mncludes an expected return on scheme assets A 5% increase/decrease 1n the
market value of equity investments held by the defined benefit pension schemes would, absent any change 1n their
expected long term rate of return, increase/decrease the amount of the expected return on scheme assets by £8m
and would increase/decrease the amount of the net pension surplus by £91m

Share based remuneration

The Reed Elsevier Group plc group provides a number of share based remuneration schemes to directors and

employees The principal share based remuneration schemes are the Executive Share Option Scheme (ESOS), the Long
Term I[ncentive Plan (LTIP), the Retention Share Plan (RSP) and the Bonus Investment Plan (BIP) Share options
granted under ESOS and LTIP are exercisable after three years and up to ten years from the date of grant at a price
equivalent to the market value of the respective shares at the date of grant Conditional shares granted under ESOS, LTIP,
RSP and BIP are exercisable after three years for nil consideration 1f conditions are met Other awards principally relate
to all employee share saving schemes in the UK and the Nethertands

Share based remuneration awards are, other than in exceptional circumstances, subject to the condition that the
employee remains in employment at the time of exercise Share options and conditional shares granted under LTIP,
RSP and BIP are subject to the achievement of growth targets of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV adjusted
earnings per share measured at constant exchange rates LTIP grants made n 2006, 2007, 2008 and 2009 are also
variable subject to the achievement of an additional total shareholder return performance target The numbers of share
options and conditional shares tncluded in the tables below are calculated on the basis that 100% of the awards will
vest Further details of performance conditions are given in the Directors™ Remuneration Report
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Share based remuneration {(continued)

The estimated fair values of grants made in the two years ended 31 December 2009 are set out below The fair values of
grants are recogmsed 1n the income statement over the vesting penod, typically three years

In respect of In respect of Total fair
Reed Elsevier PLC ordinary shares Reed Elsevier NV ordinary shares value
Weighted Werghted
uverage far average Tair
Number of value per MNumber of value per
shares award Fair value shares award  Fairvalue
000 £ £m ‘000 £ £m £m
2009 grants
Share options
- ESOS 4,303 093 4 2,799 1.44 4 8
- Other 1,284 125 2 588 0.87 1 3
Total share options 5,587 100 6 3,387 134 5 1t
Conditional shares
- ESOS 770 491 4 500 7.52 4 8
-LTIP 1,845 626 12 1,198 9.73 12 24
- RSP 204 495 1 133 758 1 2
-BIP 661 448 3 352 648 2 5
Total conditional shares 3,480 555 20 2,183 8.57 19 39
Total 26 24 50
2008 grants
Share options
-ESOS 4,397 114 3 2,89 157 4 9
- Other 636 173 1 694 097 1 2
Total share options 5,053 122 6 3,585 145 5 11
Conditional shares
- ESOS 717 579 4 469 8 85 4 8
-LTIP 1524 698 11 1,006 10 85 11 22
-RSP 19 579 - 13 8 89 - -
- BIP 720 617 4 319 910 3 7
Total conditional shares 2,980 649 19 1 807 10 01 18 37
Total 25 23 48
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Share based remuneration {(continued)

The mam assumptions used to deterrmine the fair values, which have been established with advice from and data
provided by independent actuaries, are set out below

In respect of Reed In respect of Reed
Assumptions for grants made during the year Elsevier PLC ordinary Elsevier NV ordinary
shares shares
2009 2008 2009 2008

Weighted average share price at date of grant

- ESOS £5.39 £6 26 €9.35 €12 16
-LTIP £5.44 £6 27 €9.50 €12 19
-RSP £5.42 £6 28 €9.42 €12 21
- BIP £4.91 £6 68 €8.05 €12 51
- Other £5.02 £6 30 €8.31 €11 35
Expected share price volatility 26% 22% 26% 22%
Expected option life 4 years 4 years 4 years 4 years
Expected dividend yield 3.1% 27% 34% 32%
Risk free interest rate 2.0% 4 4% 24% 36%
Expected lapse rate 3-5% 3-5% 3-4% 3-4%

Expected share price volatility has been estimated based on relevant historic data in respect of the Reed Elsevier
PLC and Reed Elsevier NV ordinary share prices Expected share option life has been estimated based on historical
exercise patterns 1n respect of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV share options

The share based remuneration awards outstanding as at 31 December 2009, 1n respect of both Reed Elsevier PLC and
Reed Elsevier NV ordinary shares, are set out below

ESOS LTIP Other Total
Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted
average average average average
Number exercise Number exercise Number exercise Number exercise
Share options Reed ol shares price of shares price of shares price  of shares price
Elsevier PLC 000 {pence) 000 {pence) ‘000 (pence) '000 {pence)
Outstanding at
| January 2008 34,067 547 2,872 489 3,110 434 40,049 534
Granted 4,397 626 - - 656 504 5,053 610
Exercised {6,134} 517 {547) 487 (659) 411 (7,340) 505
Forfeited (846) 607 - - (441) 459 (1,287 556
Expired {1,312) 570 - - (335) 407 (1,347) 561
Outstanding at
1 January 2009 30,172 562 2325 489 2,631 454 35,128 549
Granted 4,303 539 - - 1,284 402 5,587 508
Exercised (781) 436 - - (436) 404 (1,217) 424
Forfeited (1,638) 602 - - (578) 469 (2,216) 549
Expired (1,490) 522 {66) 487 (41) 408 (1,597) 518
Outstanding at
31 December 2009 30,566 562 2,259 489 2,860 436 35,685 547
Exercisable at
31 December 2008 19,692 540 2325 489 69 420 22,086 534
Exercisable at
31 December 2009 20,763 547 2,259 489 349 422 23,371 540
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Share based remuneration (continued)

Share options Reed Elsevier NV

Ouistanding at I January 2008
Granted

Exercised

Forfeited

Cxpired

Outstanding at 1 January 2009
Granted

Exercised

Forfeited

Expired

Outstanding at 31 December 2009
Exercisable at 31 December 2008

Exercisable at 31 December 2009

Conditional shares Reed Elsevier

Outstanding at 1 January 2008
Granted

Exercised

Forfeited

Outstanding at 1 January 2009
Granted

Exercised

Forfeited

Outstanding at 31 December 2009

ESOS LTIP Other Total
Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted
average average average average
Number exercise  Number exercise  Number  exercise  Number exercise
of shares price  ofshares price  ofshares price  of shares price
‘000 € ‘000 € ‘000 € ‘000 €
23,893 1216 1918 1060 2.044 1254 27855 12 08
2,891 12 16 - - 694 I155 3,585 12 04
(2,579) 1078  (109) 1057 (5) 1085 (2,693) 1077
(560) 1304 - - (376) 12 94 (936} 13 00
(1,834) 1343 - - - - (1,834) 13 43
21,811 1223 1,809 1060 2,357 1219 25977 12 11
2,799 935 - - 588 831 3,387 917
. . - . (32 793 (32) 793
(1,203) 1173 - - (376) 1200 (1,579) 11.84
(1,790) 1198 (46) 10 57 - - (1,836) 11.94
21,617 11.88 1,763 1060 2,537 1132 25917 11.74
14,875 1204 1,809 1060 2,357 12 19 19,041 1192
15,217 12 01 1,763 1060 2,537 1132 19,517 11.79
Number of shares ‘000
PLC ESOS LTIP RSP BiP Total
1,656 3,432 145 1,843 7,076
717 1,524 19 720 2,980
(85) . (t01) (561) (747)
(237) (440) (28) (101) (806)
2,051 4,516 35 1,901 8,503
770 1,845 204 661 3,480
(867) 1,767) 24) (622) (3,280)
87 (442) - (26) (555)
1,867 4,152 215 1,914 8,148
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7 Share based remuneration (continued)

Number of shares “000

Conditional shares: Reed Elsevier NV ESOS LTIP RSP BIP Total
Outstanding at 1 January 2008 1,058 2,231 98 724 4,111
Granted 469 1,006 13 319 1,807
Exercised (57 - (63) (176) (296)
Farfeited (112) (259) (24) 29) (424)
Outstanding at | January 2009 1,358 2,978 24 838 5,198
Granted 500 1,198 133 352 2,183
Exercised (580) (1,162) (17) {315) (2,074)
Forfeted (65) (31 - (10) (386)
Outstanding at 31 December 2009 1,213 2,703 140 865 4,921

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of share options and conditional shares during 2009 was 506p
(2008 632p) for Reed Elsevier PLC ordinary shares and €8 45 (2008 €12 22) for Reed Elsevier NV ordinary shares

2009 2008
Weighted Weighted
average average
Number of remaining Number of remaining
shares under period until shares under period until
oplon eapiry opiton exXpiry
Range of exercise prices for outstanding share options 000 (years} ‘000 (years)
Reed Elsevier PLC ordinary shares (pence)
351-400 16 03 252 12
401-450 2,157 2.6 1,927 15
451-500 8,219 2.9 9,111 46
501-550 12,638 60 9,834 61
551-600 3,593 23 3,856 34
601-650 6,600 76 7.452 85
651-700 2,462 12 2,696 22
Total 35,685 43 35,128 33
Reed Elsevier NV ordinary shares (euro)
701-8 00 175 92 - -
801-900 511 90 - -
901-1000 4,011 68 1,617 43
1001-11 00 4,912 44 5,771 48
11 01-12 00 6,297 51 6,866 62
1201-13 00 2,854 74 3,362 87
13 01-14 00 2,990 25 3,717 30
14 01-15 00 3,971 40 4,382 49
15 01-16 00 196 13 202 24
Total 25,917 52 25,977 54

Share options are expected, upon exercise, to be met principally by the issue of new ordinary shares but may also be met
from shares held by the Reed Elsevier Group plc Employee Benefit Trust (EBT) {see note 17) Conditicnal shares will
be met from shares heid by the EBT
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Net finance costs

2009 2008
£m fm
Interest on short term bank loans, overdrafts and commercial paper (10) 2n
Interest on other loans (177) (100)
Interest payable to Reed Elsevier NV (20) (61)
Interest payable to Reed Elsevier PLC 2) (n
Interest payable to the Elsevier Reed Finance BV group 439) {334)
Interest on obligations under finance leases () -
Total borrowing costs {649) {523)
Acquisition related finance costs - an
Losses on derivatives not designated as hedges {an (12)
Fair value losses on interest rate denivatives formerly designated as
cash flow hedges transferred from equity - (H
Ftnance costs (660) (553)
[nterest on bank deposits 4 24
Gains on loans and derivatives not designated as hedges 5 -
Dividends recerved from Reed Elsevier PLC 2 18
Dvidends receved from Reed Elsevier NV - 11
Finance income 11 53
Net finance costs (649) (500)

Finance costs include £3m (2008 £1m) transferred from the hedge reserve A net loss of £1m (2008 £15m) on interest
rate dervatives designated as cash flow hedges was recognised durectly i equity in the hedge reserve to be recogmsed
in future periods

Acquisition related finance costs in 2008 compnised underwniting and arrangement fees relating to the ChoicePoint
acquisition ncurred prior to completion

Disposals and other non operating items

2009 2008

£fm £m

Revaluation of held for trading investments 8 (6)
Loss on disposal and write down of businesses and other assets (65) (87)
Net loss on disposals and other non operating items (57) 93)

The loss on disposal and write down of businesses and other assets in 2009 prineipatly compnses severance and excess
property costs in relation to assets held for sale and related closures, n particular RBI US controlled circulation utles
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For the year ended 31 December 2009

Taxation
2009 2008
£m £m
Current tax
United Kingdom 37 40
The Netherlands 39 34
Rest of world #2)) (H
Total current tax charge 47 73
Deferred tax
Ongination and reversal of temporary differences (39) 26
Total taxation charge on profit from continuing operations 8 99

The current tax charge includes a tax credit of £28m (2008 ml) in respect of prior year disposals

A reconciliation of the notional tax charge based on average applicable rates of tax (weighted in proportion to

accounung profits) to the actual total tax expense is set out below

2009 2008
fm £m
Profit before tax from conunuing operations 38 270
Tax at average applicable rates 6 91
Non taxable income - (%)
Tax on share of results of joint ventures (6) (5)
Prior year credits on disposals (28) -
Non deductible goodwiil impairment 19 -
Net tax on share based remuneration 10 20
Non deductible amounts and other 1tems 7 2
Tax expense 8 99
Tax expense as a percentage of profit before tax 1% 37%
The following tax has been recogrised directly in equity during the year
2009 2008
£m £m
Tax on actuarial movements on defined benefit pension schemes 111 116
Tax on fair value movements on cash flow hedges (17) 55
Deferred tax charge on share based remuneration - {19)
Net tax (charge)/credit recogmsed directly in equity 27) 152
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Adjusted profit

The Reed Elsevier Group plc group uses adjusted operating profit as an additional performance measure Adjusted
operattng profit 15 stated before amoruisation and impairment of acquired 1ntangible assets and goodwill, exceptional
restructuring and acquisition related costs, disposals and other non operating items Adjusted operating profit 15 also
grossed up to exclude the equity share of taxes n joint ventures Exceptional restructuring costs relate to the major
restructuring programmes announced in February 2008 and 2009  Acquisition related costs relate to acquisition

integration and fees incurred 1n connection with acquisition financing

Continuing operations

Operating profit - continuing operations

Adjustments
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets
Impairment of acquired intangible assets and goodwill
Exceptional restructuring costs
Acquisition related costs
Reclassification of tax in joint ventures

Adjusted operating profit from continuing operations

Statement of cash flows

Reconcihation of operating profit before joint ventures to cash
generated from operations - continuing operations

Operating prefit before joint ventures

Amortisation and impairment of acquired intangible assets and
goodwill

Amortisauon of internally developed intangible assets

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Share based remuneration

Total non cash items

Decrease in inventornies and pre-publication costs
Decrease/(increase) in recervables

(Decrease) increase 1n payables

Decrease in working capital

Cash generated from operations

78

Note

15,16
16
18

2009 2008
£m £m
744 863
356 270
177 9
182 152
48 27
8 9
1,515 1,330
2009 2008
£m £m
729 845
521 276
138 87
84 79
16 46
759 488
48 6
115 {107)
(i01) 169
62 68
1,550 1,401




12

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2009

Statement of cash flows (continued)

2009 2008
Cash flow on acquisitions — continuing operations Note £m £m
Purchase of businesses 13 ()] (2,112)
Payment of ChoicePoint change of control and other
(56) (19
non operating payables assumed
Deferred payments relating to prior year acquisitions 29) 30y
Total (94) (2,161)
Net
borrow mngs
Related from
dernvative  sharcholders
Reconcihation of net Cash & cash financial and fellow
borrowings equivalents Borrowings nstruments affiliates 2009 2008
£m fm £m £m £m £m
At start of year 244 (3,781) - (10,183) (13,720) (7,265)
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents 326 - - - 326 (2,247)
Net movement in short term bank
loans, overdrafts and commercial
paper - an - - (%1)] 429
[ssuance of other loans - (1,255) - - (1,255) (1,555)
Repayment of other loans - 1,843 - - 1,843 411
Repayment of finance leases - 2 - - 2 56
Redemption of debt related denvative
financial instrument - - - - - (51)
Net movement in borrowings from
shareholders and fellow affiliates - - - 504 504 (139}
Change in net borrow ings resulting
from cash flons 326 559 - 504 1,389 {3,096)
Borrowings n acquired businesses - - - - (219)

Inception of finance leases - (26) - - {26) (N
Fair value adjustments to borrowings

and related denvatives - 18 9) - 9 -
Exchange translation differences (26) 324 - 990 1,288 3,139
Atend of year 544 (2,5906) (¢)] (8,689 (11,060} (13,7200

Net borrowings comprise cash and cash equivalents, loan capital. finance leases promissory notes, bank and other loans,
and those derivative financial instruments that are used to hedge the fair value of fixed rate borrowings

Cash and cash equivalents include £5m (2008 £55m) held in trust to sattsfy habilities in respect of change of control
obligations related to the acquisition of ChaicePoint
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2009

Acquisitions

Durning the year a number of small acquisitions were made for a total consideration of £11m (2008 £2,131m, including
£1,931m 1n respect of the acqusition of ChoicePoint, [nc ) after taking account of net cash acquired of £3m

The net assets of the businesses acquired are incorporated at their fair value to the group Provisional fair values of the
consideration given and the assets and habilities acquired are summansed below

Book value on

acquisttion Fair value Fair value
Note 2009 2009 2008
£m £m fm
Goodwill 0] - 6 1,279
Intangible assets - 17 1.57%
Property, plant and equipment - - 48
Current assets - - 128
Current habilities (11) (11) (237)
Borrowings - - {(219)
Current tax - - 22
Deferred tax - (1) (469)
Net assets acquired an 11 2,131
Consideration (after taking account of £3m net cash acquired) 11 2,131
Less consideration deferred to future years 2) (19)
Net cash flow 9 2,112

m Goodwill, being the excess of the consideration over the net tangible and intangible assets acquired, represents
benefits which do not quahfy for recognition as intangible assets, including the ability of a business to generate
mgher returns than individual assets, skilled workforces, acquisition synergies that are specific to Reed Elsevier
Group plc and high barriers to market entry In addition, goodwill arises on the recognition of deferred tax
Liabilities 1n respect of intangible assets for which amortisation does not qualify for tax deductions

The fair values of the assets and liabilities acquired are provistonal pending the completion of the valuation exercises
Final fair values will be incorporated 1n the 2010 consolidated financtal statements There were no significant
adjustments to the provistonal fair values of prior year acquisitions established in 2008

The busmnesses acquired 1n 2009 contnbuted £6m to revenue, £1m to adjusted operating profit, £1m to adjusted profit
attributable, increased profit attributable by £1m and contributed £2m net cash inflow from operating activities for the part
year under Reed Elsevier Group plc ownership and before taking account of acquisition financing costs Had the
businesses been acquired at the beginming of the year, on a proforma basis the Reed Elsevier Group ple group revenues,
adjusted operating profit and net profit for the year would have been £6,012m, £1,515m and £30m respectively before
taking account of acquisition financing costs
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2009

Equity dividends

£ per share £ milhon

2009 2008 2009 2008

Dividends declared in the year

Dividends declared by subsidiary undertakings to - 95,300 - 953
Reed Elsevier NV

Dividends declared by Reed Elsevier Group ple

Intenim to "E" ordinary sharecholders - -

Intertm to "R" ordinary shareholders - 50,000 - 500

Total - 1,453

The dividends paid by subsidiary undertakings relate to Reed Elsevier NV7s holding of shares carrying special dividend
rights 1n Reed Elsevier Overseas BV These shares do not carry any capital nights beyond the right to repayment of their
norminal value

The dividends to be paid by the company are regulated by the equahsation arrangements between Reed Elsevier
PLC and Reed Elsevier NV, the company s shareholders The arrangements have the effect of requuiring dividends to be
paid by the company according 1o the respective requirements of the shareholders to enable them to pay dividends on
their ordinary shares on an equalised basis Accordingly, the propertion m which dividends are paid on etther class of
share will vary from one dividend payment to another

Goodwill
2009 2008
£m fm
At start of year 4,905 2,464
Acqusitions 6 1,279
Disposals (7 4)
Impairment (110) 9
Reclassified from held for sale 22 -
Exchange translation differences (474) 1,175
At end of year 4,342 4,905

The carrying amount of goodwill is after cumulative amortisation of £1,573m (2008 £1,715m) which was charged prnior
to the adoption of IFRS

Impairment charges comprise £93m 1n Reed Business Information, principally relating to 1s US and International
businesses which have seen a sigmificant contraction in print advertising revenues, and £17m in Reed Exhibitions
relating to deteriorating prospects for a number of minor exhibitions, principally in Reed Exhibitions Conunental
Europe

Impairment review

Impairment testing of goodwill and indefinite lived intangible assets 1s performed at least annually based on cash
generating units (CGUs) A CGU s the smallest identifiable group of assets that generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other groups of assets CGUs which are not individually signuficant have been
aggregated for presentation purposes Typically, when an acquisition 18 made the acquired business 1s fully integrated into
the relevant business unit and CGU, and the goodwill arising 1s allocated to the CGUs, or groups of CGUS, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition
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Goodwill (continued)

The carrying value of goodwill recorded 1n the major groups of CGUs 1s set out below

2009 2008
£m £m

Goodwill
Elsevier 963 1,074
LexisNexis US Legal 1,012 1,104
LexisNexis Risk Solutions 1,659 1,846
LexisNexis International 133 137
LexisNexis 2,804 3,087
Reed Exhititions Continental Europe 304 336
Reed Exhibitions other 60 71
Reed Exhibitions 64 407
Reed Business Information US 73 162
Reed Business Information UK 69 71
Reed Business Information NL 29 33
Reed Business Information International 40 71
Reed Business information 211 337
Total 4342 4,905

The carrying value of each CGU 1s compared with 1ts estimated value in use, which 1s determined to be its
recoverable amount Value in use 1s calculated based on estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value
Estimated future cash flows are determined by reference to latest budgets and forecasts for the next five years approved by
management, afier which a long-term perpetuity growth rate 1s applied The estimates of future cash flows are consistent
with past experience adjusted for management’s estimates of future performance The key assumptions used 1n the value
n use calculations are discount rates and perpetwity growth rates The discount rates used are based on the Reed
Elsevier Group plc weighted average cost of caputal, adjusted to reflect a risk premium specific to each CGU The Reed
Elsevier Group plc weighted average cost of capital reflects an assumed equity return, based on the nisk free rate for
government bonds adjusted for an equity nsk premium, and the Reed Elsevier Group plc post tax cost of debt  The pre-
tax discount rates apphed are 9 5% for Elsevier, 10 0-10 5% for LexisNexis, 10 5-11 0% for Reed Exhibitons and 10 5-
16 0% for Reed Bustness Information Cash flows subsequent to the forecast period of five years are assumed to grow at
nominal perpetuity growth rates The rates assumed are based on long-term historic growth rates of the territories where
the CGUs operate and the growth prospects for the sectors in which the CGUs operate  The nomunal perpetuity growth
rates for all CGUs do not exceed 3%

The value in use calculations and impairment reviews are sensitive to changes in key assumptions, particularly relating
to discount rates and cash flow growth A sensitivity analysis has been performed based on changes 1n key
assumptions considered to be possible by management an increase in discount rate of 0 5%, a decrease n the
compound annual growth rate (CAGR) for adjusted operating cash flow 1n the five year forecast period of between
2 0% and 5 0%, depending on the CGU, and a decrease in perpetuity growth rates of 0 3% The sensiuvity analysis
shows that no impairments would result under each of the sensitivity scenarios other than in the case of a 5 0% decline
in adjusted operating cash flow CAGR over the five year forecast period which, 1f applied across all CGUs, would
result i an impairment of £111m
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Intangible assets

Cost

At 1 January 2008

Acquisitions

Additions

Disposals

Exchange transtation differences

At 1 January 2009

Acquisitions

Additions

Dhsposals

Reclassified (to)/from held for sale and
other transfers

Exchange translation differences

At 31 December 2009

Amortisation and impairment
At | January 2008

Charge for the year

Disposals

Exchange translation differences

AL 1 January 2009

Charge for the year

Impairment

Disposals

Reclassified (to)/from held for sale and
other transfers

Exchange translation differences

At 31 December 2009

Net book amount
At 31 December 2008

At 31 December 2009

Total
acquired internally
Market and Content, developed developed
customer  software and mtangible intangible
related other assets assets Total
£m £m £m £m £m
818 2,714 3,532 635 4,167
1,349 230 1,579 - 1,579
- - - 115 115
- (15) (15) (19) (34)
652 801 1,453 207 1,660
2,819 3,730 6,549 938 7,487
5 12 17 - 17
- - - 179 179
4y (14) (15) (22) 37
- (233) (233) 21 (212)
(288) (292) (580) (78) (658)
2,535 3,203 5,738 1,038 6,776
151 1,706 1,857 360 2,217
84 183 267 87 354
- (15) (15) (8 (23)
75 506 581 125 706
310 2,380 2,690 564 3,254
155 197 352 138 490
7 52 59 - 59
m ®) ) (20) (29)
- 217 217) 2 (215)
(34) (188) (222) (47 (269)
437 2,216 2,653 637 3,290
2,509 1,350 3,859 374 4,233
2,098 987 3,085 401 3,486

83




16

17.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009

Intangible assets (continued)

Intangible assets acquired as part of business combinations comprise market related assets (e g trade marks, imprints,
brands), customer related assets (e g subscription bases, customer lists, customer relationships), and content, software
and other intangible assets (e g editonal content, sofiware and product delivery systems, other publishing rights,
exhibition nights and supply contracts) Included in content, software and other acquired intangible assets are assets
with a net book value of £658m (2008 £502m) that arose on acquisitions completed prior to the adoption of [FRS that
have not been allocated to specific categories of intangible assets Intemally developed intangible assets typicalty
comprse software and systems development where an 1dentifiable asset 1s created that 1s probable to generate future
economic benefits

Included in market and customer related intangible assets are £356m (2008 £397m) of brands and imprints relating to
Elsevier determined to have indefinite lives based on an assessment of their historical longevity and stable market
positions  Indefimite lived intangibles are tested for impairment at least annually using the same value in use
assumptions as set out tn note 15

[mpairment charges in 2009 comprise amounts of £10m in Reed Exhibitions, relating to detenorating prospects for a
number of minor exhibitions, and £49m in Reed Business Informauon’s’ US and International businesses which have
seen a significant contraction in print advertising revenues

Investments
2009 2008
£m £m
[nvestments in joint ventures 135 145
Avatlable for sale investments 9 24
Shares in Reed Elsevier NV and Reed Elsevier PL.C 142 193
Venture capital investments held for trading 32 25
Total 318 387

At 31 December 2009 the Reed Elsevier Group plc Employee Benefit Trust (* EBT™) held 15,350,605

{2008 20,078,899) Reed Elsevier PLC ordinary shares and 8,219,196 (2008 11 177,422) Reed Elsevier NV ordinary
shares The EBT purchases Reed Elsevier PL.C and Reed Elsevier NV shares which, at the Trustee's discretion, can be
used 1n respect of the exercise of share options and to meet commutments under conditional share awards

The number of shares held by the EBT and parent companies were reduced 1n 2008 by the share consolidations of the
parent companies which accompamied the payment of the special distrtbution from the net proceeds of the disposal of
the Education division The ordinary share capitals of the parent companies were consolidated on the basis of 58 new
ordinary shares for every 67 existing ordinary shares, reflecting the ratio of the aggregate special distribution to the
combined market capitalisation of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV (excluding the 5 8% indirect equity
interest in Reed Elsevier NV held by Reed Elsevier PLC) as at 12 December 2007, the date of the announcement of the
special distribution

The value of shares in Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV and of £1 1m (2008 £9m) of venture capital
investments held for trading has been determined by reference to quoted market prices  The value of other venture
capral investments and available for sale investments has been determined by reference to other observable market
Inputs
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2009

Investments (continued)

An analysts of changes 1n the carrying value of investments 1n joint ventures 1s set out below

2008
£m

116
18
(23)

4
30

2009

fm

At start of year 145
Share of results of jomnt ventures 15
Dividends received from joint ventures (23)
Additions -
Exchange translation differences 2)
At end of year 135

145

Share of results of joint ventures includes impairment charges of £8m (2008 mil) in respect of minor joint ventures 1n

Reed Exhibitions

The principal joint ventures at 31 December 2009 are exhibition jomt ventures within Reed Exhubitions and Guuffré (an

Italian legal pubhisher in which Reed Elsevier Group plc has a 40% shareholding) within LexisNexis

Summarised aggregate information in respect of joint ventures and Reed Elsevier Group ple's share 1s set out below

Total joint ventures Reed Elsevier Group plc share

2009 2008 2009 2008

£m £m £m £m

Revenue 246 209 118 104
Net profit for the year 51 37 15 18
Total assets 316 325 149 152
Total habilities (152) {163) 73 (75)
Net assets 164 162 76 77
Goodwill 59 68
Total 135 145
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Property, plant and equipment

For the year ended 31 December 2009

2009 2008
Fixtures Fixtures
Land and and Land and and
bwildings equipment Iotal buildings eguipment Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Cost
At start of year 259 641 900 157 507 664
Acquisitions - - - 30 18 48
Capital expenditure 10 68 78 i3 44 57
Disposals (8) (54) (62) (1) {(65) (66)
Reclassified from held for sale - 18 18 - - -
Exchange translation differences 23) (50) 73 60 137 197
At end of year 238 623 861 259 641 900
Accumulated depreciation
At start of year 106 466 572 71 355 426
hsposals 2) (50) (52) N {56) (57)
Reclassified from held for sale - 12 12 - - -
Charge for the year 12 72 84 10 69 79
Exchange transtation differences (10) (36) (46) 26 98 124
Atend of year 106 464 570 106 466 572
Net book amount 132 159 291 153 175 328

No depreciation 15 provided on freehold land of £50m (2008 £5Im) The net book amount of property, plant and

equipment at 31 December 2009 tncludes £4m (2008 £6m} in respect of assets held under finance leases relating to

fixtures and equipment

Financial instruments

Details of the objectives, policies and strategies pursued by the Reed Elsevier Group ple group n relation to
financial instruments are set out in the Directors’ Report The main financial risks faced by the Reed Elsevier Group ple
group are hquidity risk and market nsk - comprising interest rate risk and foreign exchange nsk — and credit risk
Financial instruments are used to finance the group s businesses and to hedge nterest rate and foreign exchange risks.
The group’s businesses do not enter into speculative derivative transactions Details of financial instruments subject to
hiquidity, market and credit risks are described below

Liquudity risk

The Reed Elsevier Group plc group mamtains a range of borrowing facihties and debt programmes to fund its
requirements, at short notice and at competitive rates The remaiming contractual maturities for borrowings and denvative
financial instruments are shown n the table below The table shows undiscounted principal and interest cash flows and
ncludes contractual gross cash flows to be exchanged as part of cross currency interest rate swaps and forward foreign
exchange contracts where there 15 a legal right of sei-off
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Financial instruments (continued)

At 31 December 2009

Borrowings
Fixed rate borrowings owing to
Third parties
Elsevier Reed Finance BV group
Floating rate borrowings owing o
Third parties
Elsevier Reed Finance BV group
Reed Elsevier NV
Reed Elsevier PLC
Derivative financial habilities
Interest rate derivatives
Forward foreign exchange contracts
Dervative financial assets
Interest rate derivatives
Forward foreign exchange contracts

Tatal

At 31 December 2008

Borrowings
Fixed rate borrowings owing to
Third parties
Elsevier Reed Finance BV group
Floating rate borrowings owing to
Thurd parties
Elsevier Reed Finance BV group
Reed Elsevier NV
Reed Elsevier PL.C
Derivative financial kabihities
Interest rate derivatives
Forward foreign exchange contracts
Dernvative financial assets
Interest rate derivatives
Forward foreign exchange contracts

Total

For the year ended 31 December 2009

Contractual cash flons

More
Carrymg Withm 1 than 5
amount year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3-4 years 45 years years Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
(2,662) (189) (530) (438) (153} 473) (2,266) (4,049)
(6,444) (2,250) (1,557) (1,288) (1,387) (672) (319)  (7,473)
244)  (244) - - - - - (244)
(610)  (263)  (430) - - - - (693)
(1,121 (1,121) - - - - - (1,121)
1,317 (1,317) - - - - - {1,317)
(21) {7 (5) 2) 3 4) az) (33)
(€3] (464) (367) {160) - - - (991)
- 7 2 - - - - 9
13 439 362 161 - - - 962
(12,455) (5,409) (2,525) (1,727) (1,343) (1,149) (2,597) (14,950)
Contractual cash flows
More
Carrymg Withm 1 than 5
amount year 1-2years 2-3 years 3-4 years 45 years years Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
(1,577) (95) 94) (474) {371) (533) (1,431) (2,518)
(7,915) (2,093) (1,725) {(1,723) (1,422) (1,405) (1,093) (9.461)
(2,204) (117 (758) (1,417) - - - (2,292)
(125 {125) - - - - - (125)
(1,518 (1,518) - - - - - (1,518)
(1,317  (1,317) - - - - - (1,L317)
(40 an (14) (11) 4) (2) - (42)
(167) (567 (345  (171) (43) - - (1,126)
12 484 294 151 4(—} - : 969
(14,851} (5,359) (2,642) (3,645 (1,800) (1,460) (2,524) (17,430)

Fixed rate term debt of $1,500m (£955m) and £300m were 1ssued 1n the year and used to repay floating rate borrowings
maturing within two years The term debt was 1ssued in five, eight and ten year maturities

87




19.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2009

Financial instruments {continued)

T'he carrying amount of derivative financial habilities comprises £9m (2008 mil} in relation to fair value hedges, £42m
(2008 £168m) 1r relation to cash flow hedges and £19m (2008 £39m) held for trading The carrying amount of
dertvative financial assets compnses £12m (2008 £7m) in relation to cash flow hedges and £1m (2008 £5m) held for
trading Denvative financial assets and htabilities held for trading comprise interest rate derivatives and forward foreign
exchange contracts that were not designated as hedging istruments

At 31 December 2009, the group had access to a $2,500m commuitted bank facihty matunng in May 2010, which was
undrawn, and a $2,000m committed bank facility, forward starting in May 2010 and maturing tn May 2012 In January
2010 the $2,500m commutted bank facility maturing in May 2010 was cancelled and the start date of the $2,000m
committed bank facility brought forward to start immediately This backup facility provides secunty of funding for
$2,000m of short term debt to May 2012

After taking account of the maturity of commutted bank facilities that back short term borrowings at 31 December
2009, and after utihsing available cash resources, no third party borrowings mature within one year (2008 ml) no
borrowings mature in the second year (2008 17%), 14% of borrowings mature 1n the third year (2008 50%), 15% mn
the fourth and fifth years (2008 9%), 54% in the sixth to tenth years (2008 13%), and 17% beyond the tenth year
(2008 11%)

I'he Reed Elsevier Group ple group also has borrowings from its affiliate Elsevier Finance SA totalling £7,054m
(2008 £8,040m) of which 30% mature in the next year (2008 22%), 18% mature 1n the second year (2008 17%), 16%
mature 1n the third year (2008 18%), 27% mature 1n the fourth and fifth years (2008 31%), and 9% mature 1n the
sixth to tenth years (2008 12%)

Market Risks

The Reed Elsevier Group ple group”s primary market risks are to interest rate fluctuations and exchange rate movements
Denivatives are used to hedge or reduce the risks of interest rate and exchange rate movements and are not entered into
unless such risks exist Derivatives used by the group for hedging a particular risk are not specialised and are
generally available from numerous sources The impact of market risks on net post employment benefit obhgations and
taxation 15 excluded from the following market risk sensiivity analysis

Interest rate risk

The Reed Elsevier Group plc group’s interest rate exposure management policy 1s aimed at reducing the exposure of 1ts
businesses Lo changes 1n nterest rates

At 31 December 2009, 81% of net borrowings were either fixed rate or had been fixed through the use of interest rate
swaps, forward rate agreements and options A 100 basis point reduction in interest rates would result 1n an estimated
decrease 1n net finance costs of £21m (2008 £39m), based on the composition of financial instruments including
cash, cash equivalents, balances with fellow joint ventures and Reed Elsevier Group plc’s shareholders, bank loans and
commercial paper borrowings at 31 December 2009 A 100 basts point rise in interest rates would result in an
estimated increase 1n net finance costs of £21m (2008 £39m)

The impact on net equity of a theoretical change 1n interest rates as at 31 December 2009 15 restncted to the change in
carrying value of floating rate to fixed rate interest rate derivatives in a designated cash flow hedge relationship and
undesignated interest rate derivatives A 100 basts point reduction 1n interest rates would result 10 an estimated
reduction 1n net equity of £3m (2008 £15m) and a 100 basis point increase 1n interest rates would ncrease net
equily by an estimated £3m (2008 £14m) The impact of a change in interest rates on the camrying value of fixed rate
borrowings in a designated fair value hedge relationship would be offset by the change in carrying value of the related
interest rate dertvative Fixed rate borrowings not in a designated hedging relationship are carried at amortised cost
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Fmancial instruments (continued)
Foreign exchange rate risk

Translation exposures arise on the earnings and net assets of business operations 1n countries with currencies other
than sterling, most particularly 1n respect of the US businesses These exposures are hedged, to a significant extent, by a
policy of denorminating borrowings in currencies where significant translation exposures exist, most notably US dollars
{see note 25)

A theoretical weakening of all currencies by 10% against sterling at 31 December 2009 would decrease the carrying
value of net assets, excluding net borrowings, by £476m (2008 £558m) This would be offset by a decrease in net
borrowings of £911m (2008 £1,139m) A strengthening of all currencies by 10% against sterling at 31 December
2009 could increase the carrying value of net assets excluding net borrowings, by £593m (2008 £695m) and increase net
borrowings by £1,114m (2008 £1,392m)

A retranslation of the group’s net profit for the year assuming a 10% weakening of all foreign currencies against sterling
but excluding transactional exposures would increase net profit by £13m (2008 decrease £10m) A 10% strengtheming
of all foreign currencies against sterling on this basis would reduce net profit for the year by £16m {2008 increase
£12m)

Credit risk

The Reed Elsevier Group ple group seeks to limit interest rate and foreign exchange risks described above by the use
of financial instruments and as a result has a credit risk from the potential non performance by the counterparties to
these financtal instruments, which are unsecured The amount of this credit nisk 1s normally restnicted to the amounts of
any hedge pain and not the principal amount being hedged The group also has a credit exposure to counterparties for the
full principal amount of cash and cash equivalents Credit nisks are controlled by monitoring the credit quality of these
counterparties, principally licensed commercial banks and investment banks with strong long term credit ratings,
and the amounts outstanding with each of them

The Reed Elsevier Group plc group has treasury policies in place which do not allow concentrations of risk with individual
counterparties and do not allow significant treasury exposures with counterparties which are rated lower than A by
Standard and Poor’s, Mcody’s or Fitch

The Reed Elsevier Group plc group also has credit risk with respect to trade receivables due from its customers
that include national and state governments, academic instituttons and large and small enterprises including law firms,
book stores and wholesalers The concentration of credit nisk from trade receivables 1s limited due to the large and
broad customer base Trade receivable exposures are managed locally in the business umits n which they arise Where
appropriate, business umits seek to mumimise this exposure by taking payment in advance and through management of
credit terms  Allowance 1s made for bad and doubtful debts based on management’s assessment of the risk, taking into
account the ageing profile, experience and circumstance The maximum exposure to credit risk 1s represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset, including derivative financial instruments, recorded 1n the statement of financial
position

Included within trade receivables are the following amounts which are past due but for which no allowance has been
made Past due up to one month £241m (2008 £279m), past due two to three months £66m (2008 £123m), past due
four to six months £24m (2008 £35m), and past due greater than six months nil (2008 £10m) Examples of trade
recervables which are past due but for which no allowance has been made include those recevables where there 1s no
concern over the credit worthiness of the customer and where the history of dealings with the customer indicate the
amount will be settled

Hedge accounting
The hedging relationships that are designated under IAS39 — Financial Instruments are described below
Fair value hedges

The Reed Elsevier Group ple group has entered into mterest rate swaps and cross currency iterest rate swaps to hedge the
exposure to changes in the fair value of fixed rate borrowings due to interest rate and foreign currency movements which
could affect the income statement
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Financial mstruments (continued)

Interest rate derivatives with a principal amount of £300m were 1n place at 31 December 2009 swapping a fixed rate term
debt issue denominated 1n sterhng to floating rate sterling debt for the whole of its term

The gains and losses on the borrowings and denvattves designated as fair value hedges, which are included 1n the income
statement, for the two years ended 31 December 2009, were as follows

Gains/(losses) on

Fair value Fair value
borrowings and | January  movement De-  Exchange 1January movement Exchange 31 December
related derivatives 2008  gain/(loss)  designated  gamni(loss) 2009 gam/(loss) gan/(loss) 2009
im £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

GBP debt - - - - - 9 - 9
Related interest rate

swaps - - - - - 9 - (E)]
USD debt {13) 37) 31 (1} - - - -
Related interest rate

swaps 13 37 (51 ; - - - -
EUR debt (149 161 - {12} - - - -
Related EUR to USD

CTrOSS-CUITENCY

interest rate swaps 149 {161) - 12 - - - -
Total GBP, USD and

EUR debt (162) 124 51 (13) - 9 - 9
Total related interest

rate derivatives 162 {124) (1)) 13 - (9) - ()]
Net gain - - - - - - - -

All fair value hedges were highly effective throughout the two years ended 31 December 2009

Gross borrowings as at 31 Decemnber 2009 included £49m (2008 £64m) 1n relation to fair value adjustments to borrowings
previously designated i a fair value hedge relattonship which were de-designated in 2008 The related denvatives were
closed out on de-designation with a cash inflow of £51m  £9m (2008 nul) of these fair value adjustments were amortised
1n the year as a reduction to finance costs

Cash flow hedges
The Reed Elsevier Group plc group enters 1ato two types of cash flow hedge

1) Interest rate derivatives which fix the interest expense on a portion of forecast floating rate debt (including
commetrcial paper, short term bank loans and floating rate term debt)

2) Foreign exchange derivatives which fix the exchange rate on a portion of future foreign currency subscription
revenues forecast by the Elsevier science and medical businesses for up to 50 months
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Financial instruments (continued)

Movements in the hedge reserve (pre-tax) in 2008 and 2009, including gains and losses on cash flow hedging
instruments, were as follows

Foreign Total hedge

Transition Interest rate exchange reserve pre-

loss hedges hedges tax

£m im £m £m

Hedge reserve at 1 January 2008 (losses)/gains deferred m - 33 32
Losses arising tn 2008 - (15) (179) (194)
Amounts recognised 1n income statement 1 - (24) (23)
Exchange translation differences - 4) 4) 8)
Hedge reserve at | January 2009 losses deferred - (19) (174) (193)
(Loosses)/gains ansing 1n 2009 - n 63 62
Amounts recognised 1n income statement - 3 57 60
Exchange translation differences - 2 3 5
Hedge reserve at 31 December 2009 losses deferred - (15) (51) {66}

All cash flow hedges were highly effective throughout the two years ended 3t December 2009

A tax credit of £21m (2008 £57m) in respect of the above gains and losses at 31 December 2009 was also deferred 1n the

hedge reserve

Of the amounts recognised 1 the income statement 1 the year, losses of £57m (2008 gains of £24m) were recognised
n revenue and losses of £3m (2008 £1m) were recogrised in finance costs A tax credit of £17m (2008 charge of £5m)

was recogmsed in relation to these iems

The deferred losses on cash flow hedges at 31 December 2009 are currently expected to be recogmsed 1n the income

statement 1 future years as follows

Foreign Total hedge

Interest rate exchange reserve pre-

hedges hedges tax

£m £m £m
2010 (5) (33) (38)
2011 (4) (16) (20)
2012 4) (1) 5
2013 {2) (N )
2014 - - -
Losses deferred in hedge reserve at end of year (15) (51) (66)

The cash flows for these hedges are expected to occur in line with the recognition of the losses in the income statement,

other than in respect of certain forward foreign exchange hedges on subscriptions, where the cash flows may be

expected to occur 1n advance of the subscrniption year, and in respect of the interest rate hedges where the cash flows

occurred 1n January 2009 on the close out of the denivatives
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2009

Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabihties

Total

Movements n deferred tax habialiues and assets are summansed as follows

Deferred tax (hability Wasset at
1 January 2008
{Charge¥credit to profit
Credit to equuty
Acquisitions
Thsposals
Exchange translation differences

Deferred tax (liability)/asset at
1 January 2009
(Charge)/credn to profit
Credit to equity
Transfers
Acquisitions
Exchange translation differences

Deferred tax (Labihity)/asset at
31 December 2009

Deferred tax habilities

2009 2008
£fm fm
205 349
(1,265) (1,517)
(1,060) (1 168)

Deferred tax assets

Inventories and pre-publication costs

Raw maternials
Pre-pubhcation costs
Fimished goods

Total

Excess of tax Excess of
allowances Acquired Other  amortisation Tax losses Other
over ntangible Pensions temporary over tax carried  Penstons temporary
amertisation assets assets differences allowances forward habilittes differences  Total
im £m £m £m im £m £m £m £m
{125) (498) (51) (15) 8 5 52 72 (552)
(37 69 %) (5) 2 - (10} (39) (26)
- - 13 7 - - 103 29 152
- (536) - - - - 4 63 (469)
- 7 - - - - - - 7
{37) {281} - (2) - 1 4| 18 (280)
21%) (1,239) (44) (15 10 6 150 143 (1,168)
(20} 118 ) 3 19 3 29 (56) 39
- - 17 - - - Q2n (17) n
- - - - - - - (mn an
- () - - - - - - M
23 115 - 1 2) - (mn 6) 114
(216) {1,007y (31) 1y 27 9 122 47 (1,060)
2009 2008
£m £m
9 11
166 232
92 100
267 343
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For the year ended 31 December 2009

Trade and other receivables

2008
£m

1,571
(77

1,494
181

2009

£m

Trade recervables 1,358
Allowance for doubtful debts (80)
1,278

Prepayments and accrued income 199
Total 1477

1,675

Trade receivables are predominantly non-interest bearing and their carrying amounts approximate to their fair value

Trade recervables are stated net of allowances for bad and doubtful debts The movements in the provision during the

vear were as follows

2009 2008
£m £m
At start of year 77 48
Charge for the year 33 29
Trade recervabies written off (24) 20)
Acquisitions - 4
Exchange iranslation differences (6) 16
At end of year 80 77
Assets and habihtes held for sale
The major classes of assets and habilities of operations classified as held for sale are as follows
2009 2008
£m fm
Goodwill - 24
Intangible assets - 3
Property, plant and equipment - 7
Trade and other recervables 5 15
Total assets held for sale 5 49
Trade and other payables 5 2
Total habilities associated with assets held for sale 5 2

Assets held for sale as at 31 December 2009 relate to Reed Business Information’s US conirolled circulation titles
2009 assets and associated habilities held for sale at 31 December 2008 were retamed and reclassified accordingly

93




24.

25

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Trade and other payables

Payables and accruals
Deferred income

Total

Borrowings

Financial habilities measured at
amortised cost
Amounts owed to the Elsevier
Reed Finance BV Group
Short term bank loans, overdrafis
and commereial paper
Fimance leases
Other foans

Other loans in fair value hedging
relationships

Other loans previously 1n fair value
hedging retationships

Total

The total fair value of financial habilities measured at amortised cost 1s £9,908m (2008 £11,989m) The total fair value
of other loans n fair value hedging relationships 1s £344m (2008 nil) The total fair value of other loans previously 1n

For the year ended 31 December 2009

2009 2008
£m £m
1,208 1,362
1,205 1,357
2413 2,719
2009 2008
Falling due Falling due in
Falling due 1n more than Falling due  more than }
within 1 year 1 year Total  withm 1 year year Total
£m £m £m £m £m £Em
2,140 4914 7,054 1,750 6,290 3,040
89 - 89 61 - 61
7 20 27 2 1 3
54 1,990 2,144 - 3,311 3,311
- 291 291 - - -
- 355 355 - 406 406
2,390 7.570 9,969 1,813 10,008 11,821

fair value hedging refattonships 1s £376m (2008 £472m)
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Borrowings (continued)

Short term bank

Analysis by year of repayment loans, overdrafis

and commercial Amounts ovned to
paper Other loans ERF BY Group Finance leases Total
fm £m £m £m £m
As at 31 December 2009
Within 1 year 89 154 2,140 7 2,390
Within 1 to 2 years - 340 1,288 7 1,635
Within 2 to 3 years - 279 1,097 G 1,382
Within 3 to 4 years - - 1,264 7 1,271
Within 4 to 5 years - 341 625 - 966
After 5 years - 1,676 640 - 2,316
- 2,636 4914 20 7,570
Total 89 2,790 7,054 27 9,960
As at 31 December 2008
Within 1 year 61 - 1,750 2 1,813
Within 1 to 2 years - 733 1,351 1 2,085
Within 2 to 3 years - 1,790 1,435 - 3,225
Within 3 to 4 years - 311 1,222 - 1,533
Within 4 to 5 years - - 1,280 - 1,280
After 5 vears - 883 1,002 - 1,885
- 3,717 6,290 1 10.008
Total 61 3,717 8,040 3 11,821

Fixed rate term debt of $1,500m (£955m) and £300m were 1ssued n the period and used to repay floating rate
borrowings maturing within two years The term debt was 1ssued in five, eight and ten year maturities  Short term bank
loans, overdrafts and commercial paper were backed up at 31 December 2009 by a $2,500m (£1,548m) committed bank
facility maturing in May 2010, which was undrawn, with an additional $2,000m (£1,238m) commmtted bank facility,
forward starting in May 2010 and maturing 1n May 2012 In January 2010 the $2,500m committed bank facility
maturing in May 2010 was cancelled and the start date of the $2,000m comnutted bank facility brought forward to start
immediately This facility provides security of funding for $2,000m of short term debt to May 2012
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Borrowings {(continued)

Analysis by currency

As at 31 December 2009
US Dollars

£ Sterling

Euro

Other currencies

Total

As at 31 December 2008
US Dollars

£ Sterhng

Euro

Other currencies

Total

Short term bank
leans, overdrafts
and commercial

Amonnts oned to

paper  Other loans ERF BY Group Fuinance leases lotal
£m £m fm £m £m
61 2,099 6,323 27 8,510
- 691 32 - 723
- - 619 - 619
28 - 80 - 108
89 2,790 7,054 27 9,960
- 3,317 7,347 3 10,667
- 400 9 - 409

- - 607 - 607
ol - 77 - 138
61 3,717 8,040 3 11,821
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Lease arrangements
Finance leases

At 31 December 2009 future finance lease obligations fatl due as follows

2009 2008

£m £m

Within one year 7 2

In the second to fifth years inclusive 23 1

30 3

Less future finance charges 3) -

Total 27 3
Present vatue of future finance lease obligations payable

Within one year 7 2

In the second to fifth years inclusive 20 1

Total 27 3

The fair value of the lease obligations approximates to their carrying amount

Operating leases

The Reed Elsevier Group plc group leases various properties, principaily offices and warehouses, which have varying

terms and renewal rights that are typical to the territory in which they are located

At 31 December 2009 outstanding commitments under non-cancellable operating leases fell due as follows

2009 2008

£fm £m

Within one year 139 144
In the second to fifth years inclusive 353 424
After five years 228 291
Total 720 859

Of the above outstanding commitments, £674m (2008 £801m) relate to land and bulldings

The Reed Elsevier Group ple group has a number of properties that are sub-leased The future lease receivables

contracted with sub-tenants fall as follows

2009 2008

£m £m

Within one year 17 21
In the second to fitth years inclusive 36 52
After five years 7 14
Total 60 87
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Provisions
2009 2008
Property Restructuring Total Property  Restructuring Total
£m £m £m im £m £m
Al start of year 45 69 114 21 - 21
Charged 70 157 227 22 57 79
Utilised (20) (114) (134) 9 - (9)
Exchange translation differences (6) (6) (12) 11 12 23
At end of year 89 106 195 45 69 114

Property provisions relate to estimated sub-lease shortfalls and guarantees given 1n respect of certain property
leases for vanous periods up to 2024 Restructuring provisions relate to costs incurred n connection with the major
restructuring programmes announced in February 2008 and 2009, principally in respect of severance and outsourcing
migration costs, and the restructuring 1n anticipation of sate and related closures of Reed Business Informaton’s US
contrelled circulation titles

Provisions have been analysed between current and non-current as set out below

2009 2008

£m fm

Current habilities 134 79
Non-current hiabihities 61 35
Total 195 114

Contingent habilities and capital commitments
There are contingent hiabihues amounting to £22m (2008 £26m) in respect of property lease guarantees

The Company has accepted, in accordance with clause 403 Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code, responsibilities for the
liabiliies, including trade creditors and external borrowings, totalling £104m (2008 £115m) of subsidiary undertakings
registered 1n the Netherlands

Share capital

Authorised Nember £

Preference shares (cumulative) of £1 each

- Irredeemable 7 50% 100,000 100,000
Ordinary shares of £1 each

- 'R'ordinary shares 20,000 20,000
- 'E'ordinary shares 20,000 20,000
Total 140,000 140,000

All of the preference shares rank equally tn respect of the right to recerve fixed dividends

Allof'the “R  ordinary shares rank equally in respect of voting rights and the nght {o recerve dvidends All of the ‘E™
ordinary shares rank equally 1n respect of voting rights and the right to receive dividends
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Share capital (continued)

Preference
Preference shares R shares E shares shares R shares E shares
Called up, 1ssued and fully paid Number Number Number £ £ £
At 1 January 2008 and 2009 100,000 10,000 10,000 100,000 10,000 10,000
Issue of ordinary shares - 4,634 4,634 - 4,634 4,634
At 31 December 2009 100,000 14,634 14,634 100,000 14,634 14,634

During the year the company 1ssued 9,268 ordinary shares to the existing shareholders for atotal consideration of
£913m

Share premium

2009 2008
£m £m
At start of year 324 324
[ssue of ordinary shares, net of expenses 913 -
At end of year 1,237 324
Translation reserve
009 2008
£m £m
At start of year (1,290} 216
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 621 (1,335)
Cumulative exchange differences on disposal of foreign operations - 27
Exchange translation differences on capital and reserves 1 2
At end of year (668) {1,290)
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Other reserves

Other
Hedge resenve reserves Total Total
2009 2009 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m
At start of year (136) (5,746) (5,882) (4,152)
Profit attnibutable to parent compames’ shareholders - 26 26 185
Dividends declared - - - (1,453)
Actuarial gams/(losses) on defined benefit pension R 6 P (347)
schemes
Fair value movements on available for sale tnvestments - (82) (52) {(99)
Cumulative fair value movements on disposals of available
for sale investments - 1 1 -
Fair value movements on cash flow hedges 62 - 62 (194)
Tax recogrused directly in equtty (17) (10) @ 152
Increase 1n share based remuneration reserve - 16 16 46
Settlement of share awards - 3) (3) -
Transfer from hedge reserve to net profit (net of tax} 43 - 43 (18)
Exchange translation differences 3 (4) (n (2)
At end of year (45) (5,766) {5,811) (5,882)

Other reserves principally comprise retained earnings, the share based remuneration reserve, and available for sale
mvestment reserve

Related party transactions
The company 1s jointly owned and controlled by Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV

There were no maternial transactions during the year between the Reed Elsevier Group ple group and its fellow joint
ventures, other than those disclosed in these accounts

The group’s fellow joint ventures are Elsevier Reed Finance BV and 1ts subsidiaries Elsevier Reed Finance BV
15 incorporated 1n the Netherlands and jointly owned and controlled by Reed Elsevier PL.C and Reed Elsevier NV The
Elsevier Reed Finance BV group provides a range of treasury services and funding to the Reed Elsevier Group plc
group

Foreign exchange coniracts entered into during 2009 by Reed Eisevier Group plc and its subsidiaries with its feflow joint
ventures amounted to £3 261m (2008 £1,208m)

Transactions between the Reed Elsevier Group plc group’s businesses have been eliminated within the financial statements
Transactions with joint ventures were made on normal market terms of trading and comprise sales of goods and
services of £2m (2008 £4m) As at 31 December 2009, amounts owed by joint ventures were £4m (2008 £3m) Key
management personnel are also related parties and comprise the executive direciors of Reed E Isevier Group ple
Transactions with key management personnel are set out below

2009 2008

£m Em

Salaries and other short term employee benefits 6 7
Post employment benefits 1 1
Termination benefits 1 -
Share based remuneration 1 10
Total 9 18

Post employment benefits represent the service cost under IAS19 — Employee Benefits in relation to defined benefit
schemes, together with any contributions made to defined contribution schemes Share based remuneraton 15 the amount
charged in respect of executive directors under IFRS2 — Share Based Payment
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34 Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised for 1ssue by the board of directors of Reed Elsevier Group plc
on 17 February 2010
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PARENT COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
As at 31 December 2009

2009 2008
£m £m
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 6 -
Investments
Shares in subsidiary undertakings
Cost 1,778 866
Provided 4 4)
Net book amount 1,774 862
Joint ventures (cost and net book value) 29 29
1,809 891
Current assets
Amounts owed by Reed Elsevier PLC 3 2
3 2
Total assets 1,812 893
Creditors falling due within one year
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings (446) 411
Trade and other payables (6) -
(452) 1)
Net current hiabilities (449) (409)
Non-current habilhifres
Trade and other payables (19) -
Net assets 1,341 482
Capital and reserves
Called up share capual - -
Share premium account 1,237 324
Profit and loss reserves 104 158
Shareholders' funds 1,341 482

Approved by the board of Reed Elsevier Group plc, 17 February 2010

Wtk o

M H Armour
Chref Financial Officer
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PARENT COMPANY RECONCILIATION OF SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS
For the year ended 31 December 2009

Share Profit and loss

Share capatal premium reserve Total

£m £m £m £m

At 1 January 2008 - 324 663 987
Loss attributable to ordinary sharcholders - - 5 (5)
Ordinary dividends paid - - (500) {500)

At 1 January 2009 - 324 158 482
Loss attributable to ordinary shareholders - - (54) (54)

Issue of ordinary shares - 913 - 913

At 31 December 2009 - 1,237 104 1,341

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

The parent company financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with UK
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (UK GAAP) Unless otherwise indicated, ali amounts in the financial
statements are in milhions of pounds

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the company has not presented 1ts own profit and loss account
The Reed Elsevier Group ple accounting pohicies under UK GAAP are set out below and have been applied
consistently in the current and prior year

Investments

Fixed asset investments are stated at cost, less provision, 1f appropnate, for any impairment 1n value

Principal joint ventures and subsidiaries are set out in the supplementary information page

Foreign exchange translation

Transactiens entered into 1n foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rates applicable at the ime of the transaction
Taxation

Deferred taxation 1s provided in full for timing differences using the hiability method Deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that they are considered recoverable in the short term Deferred taxation balances are not
discounted
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
To the members of Reed Elsevier Group plc

We have audited the individual parent company financial statements of Reed Elsevier Group plc for the year
ended 31 December 2009 (“the company financial statements™) which compnse the parent company balance
sheet, the parent company reconciliatton of shareholders’ funds and the parent company accounting policies The
financial reporting framewcerk that has been applied in their preparation 1s applicable law and Umited Kingdom
Accounting Standards (Umted Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

We have reported separately on the group financial statements of Reed Elsevier Group plc for the year ended 31
December 2009

This report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a body, 1n accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members
those matters we are required to state to them m an auditors’ report and for no other purpose  To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explaimned more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement the directors are responsible for prepanng the
Annual Report and the parent company financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view

Our responsibility 1s to audit the parent company financial statements 1n accordance with relevant United
Kingdom legal and regulatory requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s (APB’s) Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures 1n the financial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the parent
company’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the parent company financ:al statements

. give a true and fair view of the state of the parent company’s affairs as at 31 December 2009 and of 1ts
loss for the year then ended,

. have been properly prepared i accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice, and

. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Compamies Act 2006

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opimion

. the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared 1s consistent with the parent company financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the fellowing matters where the Compames Act 2006 requires us to report
to you 1f, in our opinion

. adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit
have not been recerved from branches not visited by us, or
. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit
=
Douglas Senior stat auditor)

For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London, United Kingdom

17 February 2010
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Principal subsidiary undertakings at 31 December 2009

Holding Compantes

Reed Elsevier (UK) Limited (1)
Reed Elsevier (Holdings) Ltd (6)
Reed Elsevier (Investments) plc

Reed Elsevier Holdings B V (The Netherlands)
Reed Elsevier Nederland B V (The Netherlands)
Reed Elsevier Overseas BV (The Netheriands)
Reed Elsevier US Holdings Inc (USA)

Reed Elsevier Inc (1) (UsA)

Reed Elsevier Caputal Inc (USA)

Reed Elsevier Properties Inc (USA)

Elsevier

Elsevier Limited

Elsevier B V (The Netherlands)
Excerpta Medica Medical Communications B V (The Netherlands)
Elsevier [nc (USA)

Excerpta Medica Inc (USA)

Academic Press (2) (USA)

Elsevier Health Sciences (2) (USA)

Mosby, Inc (USA)

MC Strategies Inc (USA)

Masson SAS (France)

Masson SA (Spamn)

MDL Information Systems GmbH (Germany)
LexisNexis

LexisNexis Risk Assets lne (USA)
LexisNexis Butterworths Tolley (3)

LexisNexis (4) {USA)

Matthew Bender and Company, Inc {USA)
Martindale-Hubbell (4) (UsSA)
LexisNexis Risk Solutions FL Inc (USA)
LexisNexis Risk Data Management Inc {USA)
LexisNexis SA (France)
Butterworths Austraha (5) {Austraha)

Reed Exhibrirons

Reed Exhitntions Limuted

Reed Exhibitions (4) (USA)

Reed Expositions France SA (France)

Reed Midem Orgamsation SA (France)

Groupe Strategies SA (France)

Reed Exhibitions Japan Limited (Japan)

Reed Business Information

Reed Business Information Limited

Reed Business B V (The Netherlands)
Reed Business Information US (4) (USA)

Reed Construction Data LLC (USA)
BuyerZone com LLC (USA)

All are wholly owned subsidiary undertakings registered and operating in England and Wales unless otherwise stated

(1) Holding company, but aiso trades through one or more operating divisions

(2) Dwvision of Elsevier Inc

(3) Division of Reed Elsevier (UK) Limited

(4) Division of Reed Elsevier Inc

(5) Division of Reed Intenational Books Austraha Pty Lid
(6) Direct subsidiary undertaking of Reed Elsevier Group plc

Principal joint ventures at 31 December 2009

Operating in Principal place of business
Dott A Giuffré Editore Spa 40% lialy, Via Busto Arsizio, Milan
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